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Affected by various factors in 2020, the world economy has been in
turmoil, which had a great impact on the supply and demand of the
entire market, and the fluorosilicone market was inevitably impacted.
In 2020, the price of a large number of products in the fluorosilicone
industry was falling, and the profit margins of the industry were
suppressed, resulting in a difficult operating environment. However,
through adequate management, the Group has leveraged its
advantages in industry chain as well as comprehensive support of its
industry park, and has ensured normal production and operation. The
Group has also made every endeavour to expand the market share,
which allowed us to achieve an outstanding performance in difficult
times and continue to strengthen the leading position of the Group in
the industry.
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Business Review

1.

Stable operation during the “pandemic”

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of “COVID-19" in China
severely affected the normal life of the people nationwide.
Numerous enterprises suspended operation and production due
to the pandemic, and logistics and transportation were greatly
affected. Under such severe circumstances, the management
of the Group promptly realized the importance of pandemic
prevention and control. The subsidiaries and departments of the
Group took prompt action to formulate a plan for the pandemic
prevention and control, and fully and strictly implemented it to
ensure the normal production and operation of the Group. The
Group also actively coordinated with the domestic pandemic
prevention and control departments to resolve the transportation
of raw materials and products to the utmost, so as to reduce the

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 03
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impact of logistics and transportation on the Group's supply chain
and sales network. In response to the sluggish market demand,
the Group further increased its sales efforts, expanded its customer
base, enlarged the market share and developed the sales of high-
end products in advance, which led to a slight increase in the
Group's overall sales volume instead of a decrease in a shrinking
market. The Group donated RMB8 million to fight the pandemic
in addition to its own efforts in pandemic prevention and control,
demonstrating the Group's social commitment and responsibility.
The Group was awarded the honorary title of “Advanced Private
Enterprise in Fighting COVID-19 Pandemic” by the All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce.

With the efforts from the Group’s employees at all levels, the
Group still produced at full capacity and achieved full sales during
the period under review and maintained a leading position in the
industry. During the period under review, the Group recorded a
total revenue of RMB10,044 million, gross profit margin of 22.35%
and a net profit of RMB903 million. During the period of economic
downturn, the Group successfully overcame various unfavorable
factors and achieved satisfying operating performance.

Significant results from capital operations

Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicone”), a subsidiary of the Group, was successfully listed
on ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020,
raising RMB2,070 million in IPO, which provided substantial capital
support for the further development of Dongyue Organosilicone.
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On 9 April 2020, the Board passed a resolution that Shandong
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (“Future
Hydrogen Energy”) would be independently issued and listed on
the Science and Technology Innovation Board of Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The fuel cell membrane produced by Future Hydrogen
Energy is the core component of hydrogen energy equipment.
Future Hydrogen Energy has world-leading technology. As
hydrogen energy will become the development trend of energy
storage and energy supply in the future, the spinoff and listing of
Future Hydrogen Energy, if implemented, is expected to accelerate
the development of future hydrogen energy business, broaden
its financing channels, and also to enhance its development
potential, competitiveness and industry position.

Adjusting R&D mechanism to enhance R&D
capability

During the period under review, the Group brought in a number
of industry experts, reorganized the Group’s R&D organization
structure, integrated R&D resources and formulated the Group's
“14th Five-Year Plan” for innovative R&D. In 2020, the R&D
expenses of the Group reached RMB590 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 79.34%. During the year under review, the
Group launched more than 60 new grade products, submitted 98
patents applications and was granted approval of 31 patents, with
one of the patents of the Group's subsidiary, Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd. winning the National Patent
Golden Award. The Group also participated in the formulation of
12 standards, including 2 national standards, 2 industry standards
and 8 group standards. During the period under review, the Group
also participated in a total of 27 external cooperation projects,
all progressing smoothly. The Group has also actively applied for
relevant policies, and a number of subsidiaries have obtained
the high and new technology enterprise recognition. Currently,
six subsidiaries of the Group have been recognized as the high
and new technology enterprise, which has effectively reduced
the tax paid by the Group. The Group has set up R&D centers in
Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen, and the R&D of certain projects
have been commenced. During the year, the number of R&D staff
increased from 380 in 2019 to 430, including an increase of 4 staff
with doctoral degrees or above.
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Fruitful project construction

Project construction is an important measure for the Group to
expand its scale and enhance its revenue. The Group has been
striving to increase its project construction efforts in recent
years, and 2020 is an important year for the Group’s project
construction. During the period under review, the Group's capital
expenditure totaled approximately RMB1,900,497,000, representing
an increase of 39.13% over that of RMB1,365,954,000 in 2019.
During 2020, the Group has completed the R125 expansion
project for the refrigerants segment to cope with the growing
market demand. During the period, Future Hydrogen Energy
completed the first phase of the new proton exchange membrane
production line, with a production capacity of 500,000 m?, which
is now in operation, providing a guaranteed basis for the future
marketization of Future Hydrogen Energy's proton exchange
membranes. In terms of raw materials, the Group also completed
an anhydrous hydrogen fluoride project to fill the demand for raw
materials due to production expansion, and its scale of anhydrous
hydrogen fluoride is ranked among the leaders of the world. The
fund-raising investment project of Dongyue in organosilicon,
namely 300,000-ton monomer and 200,000-ton deep-processing
projects, are under construction, and upon completion of the
project construction, Dongyue’s organosilicon production capacity
will be doubled, and it will vigorously develop the upstream raw
material base and downstream processing, providing significantly
increased revenue in organosilicon for Dongyue. In terms of
fluorinated polymer materials, the Group is constructing 20,000-
ton PTFE scale expansion project, which can cope with the current
market environment of PTFE supply shortage. Currently, the Group
is also constructing a large number of high-end fluoro-silicon
material projects, which will be able to increase the added value
of the products upon completion, contributing to the Group's
revenue and providing an alternative of import substitution for the
domestic material market. During the year, the Group also made
great efforts in constructing environmental protection projects
by completing hydrogen chloride recycling projects, waste alkali
emission reduction projects, wastewater treatment projects and
exhaust gas recovery projects during the period. These are the
Group's contribution to sustainable production.
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Comprehensive improvement in all aspects of
management

During the market downturn, the Group further stabilized
its production and operation through the improvement of
management in all aspects, which became the impetus for
the Group’s pleasing performance. The Group’s management
improvement mainly focused on areas such as safety and
environmental protection, capital management as well as internal
control management.

In regard to safety and environmental protection, the Group has
been implementing Dupont Safety Management System for three
years and has now established a complete safety management
system, which has reduced our safety hazards year by year.
Through the development of information and automation
system, the monitoring and early warning system as well as the
emergency response system have been optimized, which reduced
the number of high-risk operations of the Group year by year
as well as the production safety risks. The Group has also made
significant efforts to upgrade the pollution control technologies,
construct pollution control facilities, and increase the emission
reduction and waste recycling capacity. Currently, a number of our
subsidiaries have achieved “zero” wastewater discharge.

In regard to capital management, during the period under review,
the Group has established an interconnection with banks to
safeguard the capital and form a complete capital management
system. The Group has also actively utilized certain domestic fiscal
and taxation policies introduced during the year under review to
reduce expenses in all aspects, which significantly contributed to
the satisfying performance of the Group.

In regard to internal control management, the Group conducted
a number of special internal control audits to rectify various
production and operation processes such as contracts, tenders
and projects, in order to further improve the internal control
system and prevent operational risks.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 07
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Prospect

2021 will be a new challenge for the Group. The Group needs to seize
the opportunities brought by this challenge and will further expand
the scale of production, optimize the product structure and enhance
the level of R&D, so as to contribute to the domestic new materials
substitution in China. In response to the current national requirements
for high quality development of the industry and the schemes for
"Peak Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and “Carbon Neutrality”, we have the
following development plans for 2021:

1. Accelerating project construction and production

The management of the Group has fully discussed various future
development plans, including a number of projects related to
fluorine, silicone, membrane and hydrogen industries, which
include energy supporting projects, supply chain integration
projects, waste management projects, and high-end product
production line construction projects. The Group has put forward
the project of “Building a New Dongyue” and is fully prepared for
the new industry landscape under the domestic and international
economic situation.
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Currently, the Group's projects under construction include
a 20,000-ton high performance fluoropolymers project, and
it is expected that the first phase of the project, a 10,000-
ton polytetrafluoroethylene plant, will be completed in
2021, which will increase the Group’s production capacity of
polytetrafluoroethylene by 25% upon completion. The projects
under construction also include a 5,000-ton FEP project that will
double the Group's FEP production capacity upon completion,
as well as a 2,000-ton PFA project that can significantly increase
the Group’s production capacity for high-end fluoropolymers at
a high price level and will create substantial revenue and profit
for the Group upon production and market launch. The fund-
raising project of Dongyue Organosilicone’s listing on ChiNext of
the SZSE is also underway. After the completion of the 300,000-
ton monomer and 200,000-ton downstream deep-processing
projects, Dongyue Organosilicone’s production capacity will be
doubled and its downstream deep-processing production capacity
will be enhanced by more than double. Moreover, a 100,000-
ton chloromethane project and a 100,000-ton other methane
chloride project are also underway, and the completion of these
two projects will provide a good raw material auxiliary for the
Group to enhance its production capacity for fluorine and silicone
chemicals. The Group will acquire a local power plant in 2021
and carry out transformation. The acquisition and renovation will
allow the Group to increase the capacity of 220 million kWh of
electricity and 470,000 tons of steam per year. On this basis, the
Group will also establish an energy center, which can ensure the
energy support of the Group’s industrial chain in the course of
future development. In addition, a number of other projects will
significantly enhance the Group’s product capacity, environmental
governance capability and upstream and downstream
supporting production capability, which will improve the Group'’s
competitiveness.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 09
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Implementing R&D innovation program

The Group has always insisted on independent innovation and
attached great importance to research and development of
technologies, thereby our R&D expenditure has been increasing
in recent years. In 2021, the Group will further implement its R&D
innovation program. Firstly, the Group will optimize the R&D
system and talent training mechanism to introduce professional
talents. Secondly, the Group will accelerate the establishment of
R&D centers in Japan, Canada and Germany, acquire international
professionals and strengthen its R&D capabilities. Thirdly, the
Group will conduct further in-depth research and development
on the four major industries of fluorine, silicone, membrane and
hydrogen to extend to the high-end of the industrial chain and
promote the application of fluorosilicone materials in 5G, new
infrastructure, new energy and other areas. Lastly, the Group
will boost the sales of new products and high-end products to
increase the proportion of revenue from these products.

Increasing marketing efforts

The market condition in 2020 was tough due to the “pandemic”
as well as the domestic and international economic situation.
We expect that the domestic economy will probably rebound
in 2021, which will be an opportunity for the Group to further
accelerate its development. The Group will seize this opportunity
to adjust its marketing strategy by increasing marketing efforts to
expand the market in existing areas and explore new downstream
applications, such as further exploration of applications in 5G,
new infrastructure, new energy and other areas. Currently, high-
end material applications are the most important direction for the
Group's breakthrough. With the introduction of the “14th Five-
Year Plan” in China, we will find greater downstream demand for
fluoro-silicon materials, and the Group will do its best to cope
with the growth in demand for fluoro-silicon materials in different
areas.
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Strengthening capital operation

On 12 January 2021, the Group announced the formation of a
partnership fund, in which the Group established “Zibo Runxin
Dongyue New Materials Equity Investment Fund Partnership
Enterprise (Limited Partnership)” (1885 & ¥ # BH I #E &
BEEHSHEBEE(BRAR)) with Dongyue Organosilicone (a
subsidiary of the Group), China Capital, and a local state-owned
enterprise and other parties (see the Group’s announcement
for details). By establishing the Fund, the Group can leverage
on the resources from the parties and the experience of China
Capital to invest through the Fund in the chemical industries of
fluoropolymers, organic silicone and other related materials and
by doing so, discover and develop high-quality enterprises in the
industry, and expand the Company’s business within the trade
without significant initial investments while at the same time and
the Group may benefit from the potential synergies with these
investee companies and their potential growth and financial
return through income distribution of the Fund. The Fund will
help further expand and strengthen the Group in the fluorine,
silicone, membrane and hydrogen industries and facilitate the
Group's development in the future.

Currently, the Group has started to conduct the corresponding
inspections. It expects to achieve significant results in the industrial
chain capital cooperation in the fluorine, silicone, membrane and
hydrogen industry in 2021, laying a sound foundation for the
Group's 14th Five-Year development plan.

In addition, for the listing of Future Hydrogen Energy, the Group
will continue to support Future Hydrogen Energy’s listing on
the Science and Technology Innovation Board to achieve a
breakthrough as soon as possible.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 11
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5. Further strengthening management capabilities

A solid management foundation is essential to maintain the
normal production and sales of the Group. While the economy has
not yet recovered, the Group will put great efforts to strengthen
management in all aspects, including improving safety and
environmental protection management, enhancing automation,
informatization and intelligentization management of production
equipment, optimizing customer service management as well
as promoting costs and expenses management. The above
management enhancements will allow the Group to stabilize
production, maintain sales performance, reduce costs and enhance
competitiveness. In 2020, the Group has achieved pleasing results
in a difficult environment through outstanding management
capabilities. In the face of the unknown year of 2021, we need
to advance our management capabilities to ensure healthy and
stable development of the Group.

In addition, as the current domestic and overseas economic
environment is unstable and the compliance risk has increased,
the Group needs to strengthen the assessment and management
of compliance risk. In this regard, the Group will set up a
dedicated department to specifically manage the compliance risks,
in order to enhance the sensitivity to legal compliance and avoid
illegal and non-compliance conducts, preventing the Group from
suffering relevant losses.

Through the efforts Dongyue Group made in 2020, we successfully
overcame the challenges brought by various uncertainties. It has
been proved that we can not be defeated by these challenges; on the
contrary, these challenges have streamlined our business and improved
our development, making us stronger. In 2021, we will move forward in
accordance with our development plans, strive to create good returns
and repay all shareholders for their trust and support for the Group.
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Financial Review
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB10,044,313,000, representing a decrease of 22.49%
over RMB12,958,692,000 in the previous year. The gross profit margin
decrease to 22.35% (2019: 26.59%) and the operating results margin
was 11.04% (2019: 17.50%). During the year under review, the Group
recorded profit before taxation of approximately RMB1,016,621,000 (2019:
RMB2,120,300,000), and net profit of approximately RMB902,856,000 (2019:
RMB1,742,281,000), while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s
owners was approximately RMB772,167,000 (2019: RMB1,462,974,000).
Basic earnings per share was RMB0.37 (2019: RMBO0.70).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.14
(2019: HKS0.23) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 21 June 2021.
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DEBU R R AR AR Segment Revenue and Operating Results

AREBEHE2020F K2019F12831BIEEEIRE Setout below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments,

AR SRS KB R U S R 2 B B EE B 0 of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2020
T and 2019:
BZ2020F12831ALEE HZ2019F 128318 1L5E
For the year ended 31 December 2020 For the year ended 31 December 2019
g e
[ £ g S Yrzs B =
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERREE DT Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AR®TT AR%TR AREFTT AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BATHH Polymers 3,191,941 436,461 13.67% 3432978 460,282 13.41%
HilHE Organic Silicone 2,453,749 281,494 11.47% 2,686,292 507,410 18.89%
2RH Refrigerants 2,066,120 189,464 9.17% 2,677,890 355,368 13.27%
“ERk - BEZ  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
& (Tpvc] ) Chloride (PVC") and Liquid
R Alkali 1,224,183 42,294 3.45% 1,505,076 256,788 17.06%
REME Property development 725,118 102,066 14.08% 1,852,300 357,867 19.32%
Hith Others 383,202 57,463 15.00% 804,156 331,634 41.24%
A Consolidated 10,044,313 1,109,242 11.04% 12,958,692 2,269,349 17.51%
Wram R & EE DT Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results
AEEHRRN  SEBRERIIMNSEL# %L  During the period under review, affected by the pandemic and changes
E . TEMSEERITER  WRERH DK ARS in domestic and overseas economic conditions, the downstream demand
HEEEENBRBEY — @ SUETEMESTREE - was low and logistics transportation became one of the restrictions on
REBABOEBELBRETRERENTE production and sales. As the fluorosilicic industry has been impacted,
BEME @ SAR) TS HBERRARE - the prices of most of the Group’s business products have declined to
ZRER/  EMEBRHBIZEERAK o varying degrees. The fluoropolymer segment was relatively less affected

as its prices were more stable, while the other business segments were
more affected.
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Polymers

During the period under review, the external sales of Polymers segment
was RMB3,191,941,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.02%
(2019: RMB3,432,978,000), accounting for 31.78% (2019: 26.49%) of the
Group's total external sales. The results of the segment recorded a profit
of RMB436,461,000, representing an decrease of 5.18% as compared with
RMB460,282,000 in the same period of the previous year.

Currently, Polymer segment is the one which contributes the largest
proportion to the Group's revenue and profit, and whose high value-
added products account for a larger proportion. Benefiting from larger
proportion of high-end products, the segment was less affected by market
fluctuations, and maintained stable performance.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production of
polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level
of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation, and aging and
chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and can also be further
processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be widely applied in
the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics and automotive
industries) and HFP (an important organic fluorochemical monomer,
which can be used to produce various fine chemicals). Furthermore, the
refrigerants segment of the Group supplied R22 and R142b as the raw
materials for the production of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer
fine chemicals including FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with
HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer,
thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM
(Fluorine Rubber, a specialized fluorinated material, which is mainly used
in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry
because of its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical
and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce
VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating
resin and lithium battery electrode binding material and VDF), in which
Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals
formed another major production category of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 15
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Refrigerants

During the period under review, the refrigerants segment’s external sales
decreased by 22.85% to RMB2,066,120,000 from RMB2,677,890,000 in
the previous year, accounting for 20.57% (2019: 20.66%) of the Group's
total external sales. The result of the segment recorded a profit of
RMB189,464,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 46.69% from a
profit of RMB355,368,000 in 2019.

Faced with the pandemic and the domestic and overseas economic
conditions, the downstream demand for refrigerants was subsequently
low. And the difficult transportation of products in some areas also added
to the decline in product price. In addition, pursuant to the Montreal
Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased out as a refrigerant by the
end of 2030 and would be replaced by other green refrigerants. Starting
from 2013, the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for
the sales of R22 as a refrigerant for all R22 producers in China. During the
period under review, the R22 quota was significantly reduced, resulting in
a material decrease in the Group's revenue from the sales of R22 product.

Although the Group has a huge production capacity of R22 and is
significantly affected by the quota system, the Group has used the saved
production capacity of R22 to the production of fluoropolymer in order
to cope with the increasing market demand for fluoropolymer, as R22 can
be used as raw material for the production of fluoropolymer. With respect
to the shortfall in the refrigerants’ market after the phase-out of R22, the
Group had strategic deployment to respond to the shortfall and the Group
would continue to strive to strengthen its position as the world’s largest
producer of refrigerants.

The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world. R22
is the Group's backbone refrigerants product. Moreover, R22 is the most
widely used refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used in household
appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key raw materials for
the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream
fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant
mixture for other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a) to replace
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R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal replacing refrigerant which
has been widely applied in inverter air conditioners and other green
home appliances. R134a is broadly used in the refrigeration and air-
conditioning systems in automobile air conditioners, while R152a is
another key refrigerant product of the Group which can also be used as
blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that
R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and
intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw
materials for the production of VDF.

Organic Silicone

During the year, the organic silicone segment’s external sales decreased
by 8.66% to RMB2,453,749,000 from RMB2,686,292,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 24.43% (2019: 20.73%) of the Group's total external
sales. The result of the segment recorded a profit of RMB281,494,000,
representing a decrease of 44.52% from a profit of RMB507,410,000 in
the previous year. Similarly, as a result of the pandemic and the domestic
and overseas economic conditions, the price of products in the organic
silicon segment was relatively unstable during the period under review,
resulting in a significant decline in its performance.

This segment mainly included the revenue from the production and sales
of DMC (upstream organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw
materials to produce deep processed mid-stream and downstream silicone
products, such as silicone ails, silicone rubber and silicone resins), 107
Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively referred
to as “Silicone Rubbers”, deep processed organic silicone rubber products,
where Raw Vulcanizate is a key material for producing Gross Rubber), and
other by-products and other high-end downstream products, such as
Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils. Named as “Industrial MSG”, organic silicone
is widely applied in military, aviation, automotive, electronic, construction
and other industries, mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals
stabilizers, lubricants and sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial
processes. The Group initially produces silicone monomers with silicone
powder and internally generated chloromethane and further processes
them to become silicone intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion
of which the Group produces for Silicone Rubbers and other organic
silicone products. The Group can also produce and generate other by-
products and high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and
Silicone Oils through its production processes.
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Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales decreased by
18.66% to RMB1,224,183,000 from RMB1,505,076,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 12.39% (2019: 11.61%) of the Group's total external sales. The
results of the segment recorded a profit of RMB42,294,000, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 83.53% (2019: profit of RMB256,788,000). The
products of this segment are chemical commodities and their prices are
significantly affected by economic factors. During the year, the product
price in the industry declined to a certain extent due to the pandemic
and unstable domestic and overseas economic conditions.

This segment included the revenue from production and sales of two
major auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants
Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic chemical
product from the production of methane chloride (essential chemical for
the production of refrigerants and organic silicone products), and used
in the textile, power and materials industries. Methane chloride includes
dichloromethane, which is mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a
foaming mode for polyurethane. The Group is engaged in the production
of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction
industry to replace traditional building materials). The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is
one of the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the Group's
PVC production can ensure production synergies, increasing economic
value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.
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Property Development

As at the date hereof, this segment includes four property projects, which
are located in Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Zhangdian
District, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Yucheng City, Shandong Province,
and Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province, respectively. The segment’s external
sales during the year was RMB725,118,000, representing an decrease of
60.85% as compared to thatin 2019 (2019: RMB1,852,300,000), accounting
for 7.22% of the Group's total external sales. The segment result was
RMB102,066,000, representing a decrease of 71.48% as compared with
that in 2019 (2019: RMB357,867,000). We concentrated our delivery time
for a number of projects in our business segment in 2019, and there was
no significant concentration of delivery in 2020, resulting in a decrease
in our revenue during the period under review.

Others

During the period under review, the external sales of the segment was
RMB383,202,000, representing a decrease of 52.35% as compared with
RMB804,156,000 in the previous year. The results of the segment recorded
a profit of RMB57,463,000 (2019: RMB331,634,000), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 82.67%. Since the performance of the segment was closely
correlated to the market environment, it was to some extent affected by
the volatile market in this year.

This segment included the revenue from the production and sales of other

by-products of the operating segments of the Group, such as Ammonium
Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine.
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
decrease slightly by 3.43% to RMB353,683,000 from RMB366,263,000 of
the previous year, which is attributable to the decrease in the sales revenue
during the year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses decreased by
46.59% to RMB356,845,000 from RMB668,112,000 of the previous year.
The decrease is attributable to the year-on-year decrease in the results in
2020, resulted in a decrease in total employee remuneration. In addition,
the Group has carried out the saving campaign during the year, resulted
in a decrease in administrative expenses.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs increased by 4.01% to
RMB104,560,000 from RMB100,528,000 of last year. During the year under
review, the Group demanded a higher level of funding required for the
new production lines. Although there is an increase in bank balances
and cash resulting from the cash proceed received from the listing of
Dongyue Organosilicone during the year, which could not be used by
other subsidiaries for their construction projects. Therefore, the average
loan balance of the Group increased slightly, resulting in a slight increase
in financing costs. During the year under review, the net interest expenses
of the Group was RMB34,574,000, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 44.77% (2019: RMB62,598,000).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB1,900,497,000 (2019:
RMB1,365,954,000). The Group’s capital expenditure is mainly for the
construction of the new production lines.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's total equity amounted to RMB10,530,512,000, representing
a increase of 17.59% as compared with that as at 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash totaled
RMB4,275,728,000 (2019: RMB2,943,792,000). The increase in the Group's
bank balances and cash is mainly attributable the proceeds for the
spin-off and separate listing of Dongyue Organosilicone were received.
During the year, the Group generated a total of RMB2,260,565,000 (2019:
RMB2,330,301,000) net cash inflow from its operating activities. The current
ratio” of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was 1.73 (31 December
2019: 2.04).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and support from
its banks as well as its sufficient operational cash flows, the management is
confident that the Group will have adequate resources to settle any debts
and to finance its daily operational and capital expenditures.
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Proposed Spin-off and Separate Listing of Future
Hydrogen Energy

On 9 April 2020, the Board has resolved to approve the spin-off of Future
Hydrogen Energy (R 2R &8E) from the Group, which is primarily engaged
in the business of production and sale of hydrogen energy materials,
hydrogen membrane materials, packaging materials and fluoropolymer
fiber, by way of separate offering and listing of Future Hydrogen Energy’s
shares on Sci-Tech innovation board (STAR Market) (BIAI#R) of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “Proposed Spin-off”).

The Proposed Spin-off is at a preliminary stage and the detailed terms
of the Proposed Spin-off including the possible Pre-IPO investment are
subject to further determination and final decisions of the Board, taking
into account various factors including, among others, prevailing market
conditions. The Company will comply with the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules (including Chapter 14 thereof) as and when
appropriate.

Details of the Proposed Spin-off are set out in the Company announcement
dated 9 April 2020.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company did not repurchase or cancel
any of the Company’s listed securities. The number of issued shares of the
Company was 2,111,689,455 as at 31 December 2020.
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As at 31 December 2020, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB1,904,550,000 (2019: RMB1,931,150,000). The gearing ratio? of the
Group was -29.06% (2019: -11.31%). The negative gearing ratio as at 31
December 2020 represents the Group is “net cash” positive (i.e. has more
cash & equivalents than its debt) which is usually a good sign.

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB497,900,000 which are
repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,406,650,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates.
The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
4.87% (2019:5.61%) and 3.72% (2019: no fixed rate borrowings) per annum,
respectively. As at 31 December 2020, 89.55% (31 December 2019: 100%)
of the Group's borrowings bear variable interest rate.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
(2)  Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Equity

Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank deposits of RMB290,788,000
(2019: RMB309,241,000) were used for bills payable, undrawn borrowing
facilities, deposits of letters of credit and supervision deposit from pre-
sale of properties. In accordance with the requirements of the real
estate industry in China, real estate companies are required to deposit
supervision deposits in their escrow account, which cannot be used until
the completion of construction and the provision of residential mortgage
loans for the customers. In 2020, the capital amount of the relevant section
was RMB211,800,000 (2019: RMB256,122,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of use assets/lease prepayments with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately RMB10,145,000 pledged to the Group'’s
borrowing but the relevant borrowing was fully repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2020, therefore the respective pledged assets were
released.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States dollars)
were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group normally
converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking into
account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 5,576 employees in total as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
5,664). The Group implemented its remuneration policy and bonus based
on the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social insurance, employee option scheme and pensions
to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 61, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 33
years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman
of Dongyue Chemicals and Dongyue Polymers etc., and a director
of Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt, all of which are the
Company's subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a professor-level senior officer of
political affairs. He had served the People’s Liberation Army Navy from
1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang is the vice chairman of the 11th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce (58 +— &2 Bl L), currently
serves as vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce (FBR
I ®), the president of the Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce,
the standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine
and Silicone Material Industry and a standing committee member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong
Province (LLIERE ). He has obtained the honorary titles of National
Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth
Session), “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs during the 40 years
of reform and opening up”, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and
Chemical Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese
Brands in the International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized
Soldier, and Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong
magazine “Capital CEO" ("BZARA & ").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 63, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party secretary,
deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import and Export
Group (& T2 M #E H O£ B), and associate leader of social
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working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu served as the
member of executive committee, standard committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of participation and
deliberation of politics committee of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the tenth All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy chairman of the eleventh
of China Chamber of Commerce. He also served as the eleventh, the
twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC member, the member of the social
and legal committee of CPPCC, and the chairman of Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. He was appointed as deputy chairman of the
board of Central South University and Beijing Foreign Studies University.
He was selected for several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism

"o

with Chinese characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China
Economic Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs
at the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years” and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,
Ld. GrEER: bR ZERERH AR A A]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and executive
director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited GHFEEEEAREGR A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Fu
owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding,
which wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a
substantial shareholder of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited.

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 57, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Wang has worked for the Group
since September 1996 and is responsible for technology R&D and
corporate management matters. During the period, he chaired the overall
preparation works for incorporation of fluorosilicone companies as well
as organic silicone companies. He then acted as the general manager of
fluorosilicone companies, silicone companies and chemical companies
of Dongyue. Mr. Wang is also the chairman of Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed on the ChiNext of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He has over 30 years’ experience for
manufacture and management in the chemical industry. He is currently
the president of the Group, a director of Shandong Dongyue Future
Hydrogen Energy Materials Co, Ltd. (LR EERR I LMD BRA
7)) and the director of the subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr. Wang also
received various awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical
engineerer (2Bt TEFEHET T 1E#) from Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation (F R F1{t T T 212, Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (£ B & BA 7 2 &R ) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (LA EFBFER). Mr. Wang holds a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
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Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 46, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in May 2017.
Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from 2006 to
2007. He has served as the financial controller and general manager of
MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. GETEEBTE S G R 2 7)) from February 2008
to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director of Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed on the ChiNext of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang graduated in the Hunan
University in 2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance.

Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 51, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in May 2017. Mr. Zhang is a master postgraduate. He is also
a certified accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC. In his earlier
years, Mr. Zhang worked for state-owned enterprises and government
authorities. He joined the Macro-Link Group in October 2004. He has
since served as the deputy financial officer of the Macro-Link Group, the
chairman of Macro-Link Weihung Food Company Ltd. (¥TZEE{E B R
mABR A A]), the director and the general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt
Holdings (iR &4 242X B BR 72 B]) and the financial officer and the chief
officer of the investment department of the MacroLink Group. Mr. Zhang
is currently the senior vice president, chief accountant and the president
of the chemical and tyre business department of the Macro-Link Group.
In addition, Mr. Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of
Sichuan Hongda Co,, Ltd. (Tl ZRERMDBR AR (@ company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Sailun
Group Co,, Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Asia-
Pacific Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. and Daxinganling Rural
Commercial Bank.
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Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 48, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the director,
senior vice president of the Marco-Link Group and the director of its
integrated corporate management and merger department, as well
as an executive director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a
company listed on the HKSE) and Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the HKSE), the vice-chairman of Keda Industrial
Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and
a director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,, Ltd. (372=Hj
XAbLiREEE B R D BBR A ) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen VMH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and is the partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group
Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China
SCE Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. MA Zhizhong, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Ma has over
35 years of teaching experience. Since July 1998, Mr. Ma has been
working at Zibo University (the predecessor of Shandong University
of Technology) as a director of the legal affairs office and he was
appointed as a professor of the law school of Shandong University of
Technology in January 2018. Mr. Ma is also a qualified PRC lawyer since
September 1992. Mr. Ma holds a bachelor’s degree in politics from Qufu
Normal University and a master of laws from Shandong University.
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Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of
Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of National Organic
Silicone Engineering and Technological Research Centre and National
Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre, and the
chief secretary of the Organic Silicone Professional Committee of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is
currently the honorary president and the chief engineer of the Expert
Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry.
In addition, Mr Yang is currently an independent director of Hubei
Xingfa Chemicals Group Co., Ltd (3t EE (L TEERHER A F)),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, an independent
director of Ningbo Runbe High-Tech Materials Co., Ltd (B R ERS
FIM BRI AR AR, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Henan Hengxing Science & Technology Co. Ltd.,, a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent director of
New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry Co., Ltd. (¥738 585t E2 % A IR 2 7).

Senior management

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 53, obtained a bachelor's degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University and the title of senior political
scientist of professor level. He has worked for the Group since March
2002 until now, currently serves as the deputy president of the
Group. He excels in management, innovation and corporate culture
development, and has promoted the management reform of the
Company under the support and guidance of the Group’s management.
He is the author of Management Revolution (‘&) E#5)), etc.
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Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 39, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 17 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions
of a leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition
team of a Hong Kong listed company; finance and accounting; and
strategic investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong
Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 128.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 (six months ended 30 June
2019: Nil).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKS$0.14
(the “Final Dividend”) (2019: HK$0.23) per share in respect of the year
2020, to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company (the “Register”) on 21 June 2021, subject to
the approval of the members of the Company at the Company’s annual
general meeting (the "AGM"). The Final Dividend is after excluding the
applicable PRC income tax.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 10 June 2021. A notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 7 June 2021 to 10 June 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
4 June 2021.
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The Register will be closed from 17 June 2021 to 21 June 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
16 June 2021.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 131.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB1,150,007,000 of which HK$295,636,524 (approximately equivalent
to RMB263,116,506) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year under review, other than as disclosed under the
section “Employee Option Scheme”, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Employee Option Scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee option
scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and
effective for a term of five (5) years. The purposes of the Employee
Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by certain
employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Shandong Dongyue Future
Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd,, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee will purchase existing Shares
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such Shares on
trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the Group selected
by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The Board may, from time to
time, at its absolute discretion grant to any Selected Employee the right
to purchase the relevant Shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee
may, when exercising the Option, elect the number of Shares which he
wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (i) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of the
Option.

The cash dividends derived from the Shares under the Employee Option
Scheme will form part of the residual cash of the trust fund which can
be used to purchase Shares subject to instructions given to the Trustee.

During the year ended ended 31 December 2020, Shares in the
amount of RMB54,640,000 (approximately HK$61,393,258) have been
purchased by the Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme. No
Options have been granted under the Employee Option Scheme
during the reporting period and up to the date of this report. As at 31
December 2020, Shares in the amount of RMB223,539,000 (approximately
HK$251,167,416) in total have been purchased and are held by the
Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 27 December 2018.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

Mr. Liu Chuangq (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company'’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian and
two newly appointed directors (effective from 11 March 2021) including
Mr. Wang Weidong and Mr. Ma Zhizhong will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 46 to 65.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 66 to 119.
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Nature of interest

Disclosure of interests

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

B 10 S B B 1 BB
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HERITRABSL
% of issued
share capital

KBRS
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

2EHEE
Mr. Liu Chuangi

RESL
Mr. Zhang Jian

REIEFE
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

SR 20
Corporate interest”
EamtkEn

Beneficial interest

20
Corporate interest®

ERERC
Corporate interest®

En L e
BEmiEms

Beneficial interest

BNl e N
EmiEem

Beneficial interest

EmitE s
Beneficial interest

258,948,451 (L) 12.26 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.34 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
7,053,454 (L) 033 ()
397,091 (L) 0.02 (L)
650,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 466,646,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s
interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO:

RORABBRDEE
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREABDLL
% of issued
share capital

Macrolink Overseas

R B

Macrolink International

P
Macrolink Industrial

FEE AL
Macrolink Holding

A
Cheung Shek

BHXEZ+t
Ms. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited

gt bl
Beneficial interest!

B
Beneficial interest’
R

Corporate interest!

AR
Corporate interest!

DEER
Corporate interest!

g
Corporate interest!

e E
Corporate interest!

B L 4AE Lo
E\/\$g/\

Beneficial interest?

150,000,000 (L) 7.1

466,646,818 (L) 221 (L)
150,000,000 (L) 7.1(L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
258,948,451 (L) 12.26 (L)
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These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 466,646,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

L: Long Position
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ZHEARANEERREE

Name of substantial shareholder
of such subsidiary

(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at
31 December 2020

HEBEREA R
BRITRE
ZMEXRB DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

such subsidiary

HEEME

Nature of interest

IWRREREN HBRAF HEREEARAR A 16.78
(IRERED
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Zibo Juyue Commercial Limited Corporate
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue F&S")
AELARESBRLCTIERDA TRER IS SRR BR A A NGl 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine  Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate

Chemicals Co., Ltd.

FEEABERR AT

Technology Co., Ltd.
TRIER IS SRR BR A A NGl 20

Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd. Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate
Technology Co., Ltd.
WERFRECTAM AR AF W ERSGAFT FHER 2 A R A 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Wenhe New Materials Corporate
Chemicals Co,, Ltd. Co,, Ltd.
BREEHEMELHREBRAR  KREFHREFRAA NGl 30
Ycheng Boyu Real Estate Marketing Dalian Zhongyu Investment Co., Ltd. Corporate

Planning Co., Ltd.
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Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2020, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report.
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Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 4.83%
— five largest suppliers combined 14.35%
Sales
- the largest customer 2.60%
— five largest customers combined 9.18%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”) as
below:

On 28 May 2020, Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd
("Dongyue Organosilicone”, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the Letter of Intent with the Shandong
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (the "Target
Company”), pursuant to which Dongyue Organosilicone conditionally
agreed to make capital injection of RMB100 million into the Target
Company by entering into the capital injection agreement.
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After the completion of capital increase, Dongyue Organosilicone holds
approximately 5.56% equity interest in the Target Company. As at 31
December, Dongyue Organosilicone holds approximately 5.43% equity
interest in the Target Company.

As at the date of this transaction, Paramita Times Technology Holdings
Limited (“Paramita”) holds more than 10% equity interest in and
therefore is a substantial shareholder of the Target Company. Paramita
is held as to 66% by an associate of an executive Director. Therefore, the
capital injection constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Rule 14A.28(2) of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
dated 28 May 2020.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 not falling under Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

ERLE
Actual
(AREBEET)
(RMB million)

FELR
Annual Cap

(NREBET)
(RMB million)

EERIURREARENHARAR
%FE?%W%M%%%i%%
IEA

MERTREERHER AR
TR IRIS & & SRS A0 £ B AR
T EESBREHE])
(FtaE2)

EIRETRTUMREMHEER
TER B (AEE3)

Renewal of raw material master supply agreement 340
for the supply of raw materials to Shandong
Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (Note 1)

Financial services master agreement for provision of 410
deposit services and loan services by Marco-link
Holding Group Finance Company Limited (the
"Renewed FS Agreement”) (Note 2)

Renewed raw materials S&P Framework Agreement
with Dongyue Hydrogen (Note 3)

288.29

319.78
(REREA
20197 A258 )
ERemRBRE)
(under the Renewed FS
Agreement dated
25 July 2019)

330 32142
(REBHE
202057 A 220
EERRBRE)
(under the Renewed FS
Agreement dated
22 July 2020)

() 2019E3H1H%
2020€2H29A
HE—FH
For the first year term
from 1 March 2019 to
29 February 2020:
77 37.71
(HEFELR)
(Sale annual cap)
138 90.66
(BEFELR)

(Purchase annual cap)

(i) 2020F371HF

202142285

ME_FH

For the second year term

from 1 March 2020 to

28 February 2021
145 78.53
(HEFELR) GIELY
(Sale annual cap) (note 4)
141 86.89
(BEEELR) (FzE4)

(Purchase annual cap) (note 4)
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

The Company had, on 31 December 2019, entered into the second renewed
raw materials master supply agreement with Dongyue Organosilicone (a
connected subsidiary of the Company), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to supply raw materials to Dongyue Organosilicone for its production
and operations up to 31 December 2020. Details of the transaction are set out
in the Company's announcement dated 31 December 2019.

On 25 July 2019, the Company and Macro-link Finance entered into the
Renewed FS Agreement, pursuant to which Marco-link Finance has agreed
to continue to provide the Group with deposit services and loan services on
normal commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course of business for a
term of one year from 26 July 2019 to 25 July 2020 with an annual cap at
RMB410,000,000.

On 22 July 2020, the Company and Macro-link Finance entered into the
Renewed Financial Services Master Agreement , pursuant to which Marco-
link Finance has agreed to continue to provide Dongyue Polymers with
deposit services on normal commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course
of business for a term of one year from 22 July 2020 to 21 July 2021 with an
annual cap at RMB330,000,000.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 29.20% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an
executive Director).

On 1 March 2019, the Company and Dongyue Hydrogen (a connected
subsidiary of the Company as at the date of Agreement) entered into the
Renewed Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to supply and purchase the raw material to Dongyue
Hydrogen for a term of two years, starting from 1 March 2019 and up to and
including 28 February 2021. Details of the transactions are set out in the
Company announcement dated 1 March 2019.

It is the actual amount incurred from 1 March 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual

course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms

or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or

from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has

confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the

aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year are set out
in the note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions are also the connected transactions (including the
continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which have been complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 9 March 2021
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate

governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Liu Chuangi resigned from his office as the
Company's Executive Director and Mr. Yue Rundong resigned from his
office as the Company'’s Independent non-executive director with effect
from 11 March 2021, and that Mr. Wang Weidong was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director and Mr. Ma Zhizhong was appointed as
the Company’s Independent non-executive director with effect from
the same date, there was no change in the structure of the Board,
which currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out

as follows:
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Executive Directors (“EDs”):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuang (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 25 to 30 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 47




TREREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

REEFE EFeEHReTRAKERER
B AR BB BB G RIE - WRHM RAEAEEF
BERAHEGEARERER - RHEE - B -
BAR - HFWESHF c REBEFE - XABTAR
EZggdak—RERBFAS(RRBEX
) REFHFEEZERMBRABAFREN
BREN T o W - BT AR UISEBER
SREERGNERENEREETNEMRERT
PABRER o

FR - BEFHREFSEERNERAIIIWT

During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital, remuneration and spin-off. During the year under
review, five Board meetings and an annual general meeting ("AGM")
were held. The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
the AGM is set out as follows. In addition, certain matters relating to
entering of the continuing connected transaction and the connected
transaction were dealt with by written resolutions of the directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HiE BT HERR
EEEERRHE BEXE
Number of
Board meetings Attendance
attended/held of the AGM
BITES : EDs:
REBRIE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 3/5 v
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 1/5% X
RETEE Mr. Liu Chuangi 1/5* X
REIESTE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 5/5 v
RNESE Mr. Zhang Bishu 5/5 X
REEAE Mr. Zhang Jian 5/5 v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TREBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 5/5 v
BT A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 5/5 v/
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 4/5 v/

* BRAERIEEZERKRREERFEHHRELEE

P B
EEEE -

*

Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on
their behalf during their absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020 the Board has dealt
with matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual
and interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment and remuneration. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board. In addition, the
Chairman held the discussion with all the INEDs without the presence
of other EDs to exchange views on matters concerning the business
development and internal control of the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. During the year, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house training on the Listing Rules.
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RIBARATFENTSE  EEREEEANCESR  According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
THEHEHEEEREERNE received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

EBEZHEEEREN
EE - RAR
ERNERER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiTES EDs:

SRIERSTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
ZETLE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
R E 4 Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
RMNBLEE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYKBITES: INEDs:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
ERmRAEE Mr. Yue Rundong v/
EEELEERTHNER Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

EEDERIGESIEENLEAMNEEM Ry The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for

WEMNEE - At - OEETALREEeBAE(HT maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,

BIE)EEAARTNDES AREREFRIALK the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among

NEIRLESFTRIAIRE AR E - others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

FLHABEHNAREDEERZE S | —5IHM  More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
FEEA © headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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Except Mr. Wang Weidong, other EDs of the Company did not enter
into service contracts with the Company. Mr. Wang Weidong entered
into the service contract for a term of two years commencing from 11
March 2021. In addition other INEDs (except Ma Zhizhong) signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of approximately
two years commencing from 1 January 2020. Mr. Ma Zhizhong entered
into the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two
years commencing from 11 March 2021.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company's and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee to consider
the remuneration for Directors and senior management of the
Company. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
(Chairman) and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who are independent
non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang Jianhong who is an executive
Director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

eREE BITER
Number of
meetings
attended/held

ZEE®XE - Committee member:
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong X

SEUE TEE2020F12 A31 B IEF BEFEE HH
TEERAEBSEEEABOGFH o 1o - &
BEREENRIENTESRASEREEE
ABRFN R AEEFERESHE -

EEEBABREE2020F 128318 ILFEENTH
BHEsEE T

During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group'’s
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management
and the Group's remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

AE

Number of

HMEE (B T) Remuneration bands (HKD) persons
3,500,00124,000,000 3,500,001 to 4,000,000 1
8,00,00128,500,000 8,000,001 to 8,500,000 1
19,500,001 220,000,000 19,500,001 to 20,000,000 1

RIZE EMARRIMI S 6ZETHRENBBESH X
Afuke & E S ME — LB H R B REM
11120

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company was established on 16 November
2007 in accordance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The existing
audit committee comprises Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman),
Mr. Yue Rundong and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The audit committee met with the management on 3 March 2021, to
review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial reporting
including the review of the Group's annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020 before proposing them to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HiE BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

LZEGKE - Committee member:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
HEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3
BEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3

ARBINEZBERARERHEEREABNG

B aTa ey
R2ESH

The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2020, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2019; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

On 14 January 2021, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit meeting
with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2020. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with management on 3
March 2021 to review the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control and
financial reporting including the review of the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2020 before proposing to the Board
for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
were appointed as the members of the nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 and the attendance of each member is set out as

follows:

SREEBR
Attendance of
the meeting

LZEGKE - Committee member:

REBRIGE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
HBEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/

€L ZBEXEBHURTEFSNAKERSE
H YHRHAESSELERZZAEEZE 5
EEENEZLL  RERBAFAELERES
W EE S EfEZ PR ERAH T2 B R
2 R TBIFMITEEHBIUIE -

During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of the
directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable objectives
that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with
a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board's composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2020:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee with
written terms of reference on 21 March 2013 to be responsible
for reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure in the report on corporate
governance code and other related matters. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the corporate governance committee and
Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Zhang Bishu were appointed as the members
of the corporate governance committee.
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Risk Management Committee

The Company established a risk management committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the risk management committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the risk management
committee.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT
ZEEEENRE
Number of

Committee meeting

attended/held
ZEEKE - Committee member:
TRIBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
ERRAE Mr. Yue Rundong 2/2

REE2020F812A31BUEFRFERITHEZ
o BEKERRERESEHER  SIREEHRT
ERAADRNAIPEEE B RBERE L EERERN
EHUKAPEERE (BBULEARRRR)

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2020, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to
the Company’s internal control measures and polices and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has also
conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2) Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business

goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant

misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for

handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,356,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$750,000 (approximately RMB631,050)
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2020.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings (“EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
“EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit
02, 15/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the
EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists.
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Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
Capital Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

Capital Centre,

151 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.



ARARERNHHNEEH

REBEFEMNEEARESEH - AATEREXMF
WA EE) -

REREZFE

EJ=1
RER

REARAFME - 2021F3H9H

ERERRE .
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 9 March 2021
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About the report

Time frame

The report covers from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
while partial contents are beyond the above time frame.

Publication cycle

The environmental, social and governance report of Dongyue
Group Limited is published on an annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including: Shangdong Dongyue Chemical
Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.,.Shandong
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine
Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying
Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals
Co., Ltd,, Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd.,
Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd,, Huangtai Dongyue
International Trade Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Trulene International
Trade Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy
Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zibo
Herun Shuiwu company Limited.

Basis of preparation

The report has been prepared in reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Explanations on short names

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed as

noon

“Dongyue Group”,

"o ", nou

the Group”, “the Company” and “we”, “our” or
“us” in the report.

Explanations on Information

Historical data cited in the report is the final statistical data. In case
of any discrepancy between financial data and annual report, the
latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in
the report as functional currency.

Access to report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://www.dongyuechem.com/

Board Statement

The purpose of this statement is to explain the governance and

supervision responsibilities of the Board of the Dongyue Group with

respect to environmental, social and governance related work.

Dongyue Group Limited is well aware of the importance of good

corporate governance and risk management processes, including

the management of environmental, social and governance issues

that are critical to the sustainable development of the Company. The

Group is committed to enhancing sustainable business practices and

establishing a sound ESG governance mechanism. The Group also

strives to integrate with the environment and society to create long-

term and stable environmental, social and corporate values.
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The Group has implemented a management structure in which the
Board is responsible for the reviews and decision making related to ESG,
and the ESG task group is responsible for the overall implementation
of ESG-related work. The Board attaches great importance to the
sustainable development performance of Dongyue Group Limited and
is responsible for the formulation of the Company’s overall ESG strategy,
reviewing and listening to the reports on ESG management work, and
supervising the implementation and progress of ESG-related programs
and targets. The Group has authorized the investor relations department
to set up an ESG working group as its subordinate department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis to ensure
that the risks associated with each aspect of ESG are properly managed
and relevant plans are implemented. The Company has also regularly
organized internal and external activities to communicate closely with
stakeholders to identify and assess important ESG issues in a timely
and comprehensive manner. Based on the external macro environment
and the Company's development strategy, under the organization
and coordination of the ESG Working Group, the Group has regularly
discussed the environmental, social and corporate governance risks
and opportunities of the Company, and has regarded the management
of key issues as the annual strategy for sustainable development. The
Group regularly publishes annual ESG reports in accordance with the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s guideline documents on environmental,
social and governance, and the Board reviews and validates the ESG
reports.

In 2020, the Board has conducted major review and supervision on
the core tasks of the following key issues, including integrity and
compliance, technology innovation, security, green developments,
employees’ rights and interests, and community contribution.

This report discloses in detail the progress and effectiveness of the ESG
work of Dongyue Group Limited in 2020, and was submitted to the
Board for consideration and approval on 9 March 2021.
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ESG Management
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and implemented by relevant functional departments. The ESG
management system also identified the specific division of work and
responsibilities at the ESG levels.

AAEFE2ENSGETEAFENEZEAR - DEEESRBESHOGE - Y
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The Board of the Company reviewed and decided on major social responsibility matters,
including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing special reviews
on the annual ESG report.

NAEREEBEREBRIEMITE NG - BEHFABFESCERILIE - BRERHS
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The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation
of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization of

training and promotion.
NAEIZBEEBFARS FRABAIABERESCGRENEANER - FHIMXEHEEE
B EREREREFRERY - ARBBESCIHEEDHEBRE M

Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible for

the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant management
initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all types of ESG
activities.

HEEERTIN MBS ESRSE - FIZSHE Dongyue Group pays close attention to the expectations and pursuits of
BHNEZEAATIESCERIBHTEEZRE oA stakeholders, and the suggestions from stakeholders provide important
B AEBMEBZERAEKZHMZIEMBEITES  references for the ESG development of the Company. Meanwhile,

TERERBBEES -

the Group has established a regular communication mechanism with
various stakeholders through various forms.
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In order to enhance the pertinence and responsiveness of the report,
the subject of sustainable development related to the industry were
identified and ranked in order of importance through determination of
significance in accordance with the requirements of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (ESG
Guide), in order to ensure that the information disclosed in the report
covers the key issues which are relevant to the Company’s development
and the shareholders’ concerns.

In 2020, in light of the changes in the global political situation and the
adjustment of national policy direction, as well as the changing trend
of market and downstream customer demand, the Group updated
the determination of significance, and raised the issue of “energy
conservation and emission reduction” as an important issue.
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Responsible Operation

Dongyue Group adhered to the principle of legal and compliance
operations, safety first and stable development, integrated
responsible operation into the daily operation and future planning
of the Group, and persistently followed the operation concept
of integrity and compliance. The Group continued to improve
product quality and provide quality products and services, actively
performed its responsibilities towards stakeholders such as
suppliers and customers, and coordinated and managed various
resources to assure supply.

Integrity and Compliance

Dongyue Group adhered to its business ethics of “embracing all
with a high virtue, building itself on integrity” and integrated this
ethics into the daily operation of the Group. In the process of
building an excellent goodwill, the Group adhered to the notion
of legal compliance. The Group required all employees to strictly
comply with the industry norm, and improved its capability of
corporate governance according to the laws in an all-round way.

To build a corruption-free working environment, the Group strictly
comply with the Opinions on Issues Concerning the Application
of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases of Commercial Briberies,
Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the Application of
Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases of Embezzlement and
Bribery and other laws and regulations, and continued to improve
its governance mechanism against corruption and strengthened
its institutional improvement on an ongoing basis. Internally,
the Company developed the Dongyue Group Risk Management
Manual to improve its risk management system, and to identify
and control the Company’s risk; developed the Dongyue Group
Regulations on Anti-fraud Management to regulate employee
professional behavior and prevent fraud; developed the Eight
Rules for the Party Cadres of the Group during the Chinese New
Year to reinforce the requirement for cadres and employees to
celebrate festival with integrity; developed the Rules regarding
Weddings and Funerals of Party Members and Cadres of Dongyue
Group to forbade party cadres from organizing extravagant
weddings and funerals, requiring them to adhere to the code of
conduct of thrift and integrity.
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In order to prevent various types of duty-related crime and
enhance development of the legal system, the Group carried out
a series of legal education activities in 2020.

Legal education activities such as “Corporate Criminal Legal
Risk”, “Quality Management Regulations on Procurement of
Equipment” and “Prevention and Control of Duty-related
Crime of Business Personnel” were organized.

Online education courses on various topics such as legal
affairs, protection of trade secrets, and integrity education
were offered, among which the course of “Dongyue Trade
Secrets Management Regulations” had over 30,000 attendees.

Legal education and legal training on the prevention of duty-
related crimes were conducted for newly promoted cadres
and newly recruited employees.

The Group established independent reporting mailboxes and
reporting hotlines to encourage the reporting of fraud, illegal and
corrupt conducts. Establishment of systems, integrity education,
disciplinary inspection and other approaches also facilitated the
healthy development of the Company. In 2020, the Disciplinary
Inspection Department under the Disciplinary Committee of
the Group, the Auditing Department and the Human Resources
Department have formed a discipline inspection and supervision
team to conduct discipline inspection and supervision on the
six major companies of the park, the property company and the
Group's three main offices. A total of 446 front-line employees
were interviewed, 10 reports were received and verified, 22 cadres
were interviewed and 4 cadres were punished. The discipline
inspection and supervision work has effectively corrected
unhealthy practices, promoted the integrity of the cadres and
stimulated the entrepreneurial passion of party members.
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1.2 Quality Products

We alwaysregard quality products asthe core
competitiveness of our business development and control
the quality of our products with high standards and strict
requirements, aiming to provide products in excellent quality
to customers. In accordance with the Product Quality Law
of the People's Republic of China, the Company internally
established rules such as the Quality System Management
Manual, Quality Management System and Measures for
the Implementation of Quality Management Assessment
so as to make strict control of the full life cycle of the
product such as raw material purchasing, manufacturing
and quality inspection and every other stages of the
production and operation process. Meanwhile, in order to
strengthen quality control on equipment and implement
the system of responsibility, the Company formulated
the Quality Management System on Procurement of the
Group's Equipment. The Group established a comprehensive
management system for Dongyue by compiling the
contents of DuPont’s management solutions of equipment,
environmental management system, occupational health,
quality control, technology control and safety control.

The Group has strictly executed the product inspection
process following national standards and the finished
product inspection procedures, and disposed of the
unaccepted products in accordance with the Nonconforming
Product Control & Management Procedures to ensure the
provision of high-quality products to customers. In 2020,
there was no products recall incidents due to safety and
health issues of the Group.

Over the years, Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, has a worldwide reputation for
providing high-quality products, leading the market with its
primary products, green environmental refrigerant, which
ranked first in terms of size, technology and market share
over the world; and it is an excellent supplier to domestic
and overseas famous enterprises including DuPont, Daikin,
Mitsubishi, Haier, Hisense, Gree, Midea and Changhong.
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1.4

Quality Services

The Group attached great importance to customers’
opinions and feedback, and is committed to providing
quality and efficient services to customers through a smooth
communication mechanism. The Group has, through a
variety of channels, maintained the long-term and stable
contact details with customers, such as phone call, mail
communication, customer visit, customer annual meeting
etc. Meanwhile, the Company attached great importance
to the feedbacks from customers, conducted timely
investigation, reason analysis, measure formulation and
feedbacks regarding to customer complaints according to
the Customer Complaint Management Measures, and kept
tracking and improving such measures.

In view of its own business characteristics, each subsidiary
companies of the Group understood the individual needs
of customers through different customer relationship
maintenance channels, provided quality services and
products, and strived to comprehensively improve quality
of customer service in every aspect so as to achieve mutual
benefits with customers. During the reporting period, the
Group received 13 customer complaints. In response to
various complaints, the Group will promptly follow up on
the complaints, rectify relevant issues and continuously keep
track on customer satisfaction regarding the results.

Assuring Supply

The Group assured quality of supplied products through
supplier management and procurement management. In
line with the Dongyue Group Materials Purchasing Process,
the Group strengthened the management of all aspects of
procurement, and ensured the smooth production through
effective control of the supply of materials. At the same time,
the Group optimized the relevant process system through
a detailed evaluation criteria for suppliers, as well as verified
the production qualification and sales performance of
suppliers on the basis of the Supplier Management System,
SO as to assist suppliers to improve their performance and
achieve win-win cooperation with suppliers.
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Currently, the Group's suppliers are divided into three
categories according to the scope of supplied products:
major raw material suppliers, suppliers of packaging and
auxiliary materials, and suppliers of production equipment
and other equipment. As of the end of the reporting period,
the Group had a total of 771 suppliers, and the manufacturer
optimization rate accounted for 62.7%, representing a slight
year-on-year increase.

HEER I E D
Geographical Distribution of Suppliers
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In the face of the special market market environment during
the pandemic, the Group optimized its rules and procedures,
strengthened its quality control on procurement and
endeavored to lower the cost of procurement:

By strengthening control on procurement process,
increasing procurement channels, carrying out
normalized monthly benchmarking against peer, the
total procurement in January to November 2020 has
substantially dropped by 6.6%;

By strengthening quality control on procurement,
strictly executing maintenance processing, the
maintenance expenses in 2020 have achieved a year-
on-year decrease of 36.25%;
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By strictly carrying out contracts and quality tracking
and feedback system, the pass rate for major raw
material in 2020 reached 96.31%.

2. Led by Innovation

Enterprise innovation capacity is fundamental to the development
of enterprises. Taking “innovation-driven development” as its
development strategy, the Group orients with the market and links
with intellectual property rights, cultivating the enterprise research

and development as well as creative capabilities.
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2.1 Inspire Technology Innovation

Donyue Group has prepared management system such
as Incentive Scheme for Technological Innovation in
Dongyue Group and Application Process for Invention and
Innovation, such that technology innovation incentive is no
longer limited to the research and development of specific
products, but also include new usage and development
of new markets, innovation in processes, utilization of by-
products to achieve efficient deep processing, etc., which
encourages technological innovation and improvement in
techniques.

Dongyue Group has extensive industry-university-research
institute collaboration and set up 20 joint laboratories,
including an organic silicone laboratory with Shandong
University, and a perfluoropolyether catalyst laboratory
with Shanghai Institute of Technology, forming a
research mechanism for the integration, combination and
coordination between non-local R&D centers and joint
laboratories, and research institutes in the campus and
research institutes of various companies.
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The Company has formulated administrative guidelines,
namely Patent Management System of Dongyue Group
and Patent Appraisal & Approval System to manage the
application for patents, and improves its technological R&D
management expertise in accordance with the Administrative
Measures for Investments in the Construction, Refurbishment
and Expansion Projects of Dongyue Group, and guides its
affiliates and subsidiaries through the certification process
of their management systems for intellectual property
management specifications and standards under the
Intellectual Property Management Standards for Business
Enterprises (20490-2013) to promote the standardization
of its intellectual property management. In 2020, five
subsidiaries under Dongyue Group passed the national
intellectual property management system certification
and obtained the certificate of authentication, achieving
the scientific management and strategic employment of
intellectual properties.

In 2020, the Company invested a total of RMB590.4714
million in its R&D activities, completed the 21 new product
development projects, 16 automation enhancement
projects and 5 by-product conversion projects (including
environmental improvement projects). The Group submitted
98 patent applications, was granted approval of 31 patents,
and registered 10 new trademarks during 2020. The patent of
"Perfluorinated ion exchange resin and preparation method
and application thereof” by Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Materials Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, won the 21st
China Patent Gold Award.

Application Innovative Achievements

The Group is dedicated to the transformation of Application
Innovative Achievements to actual products and the
commercialization of the products to meet the requirements
of the market and customers.
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Dongyue Group clearly divides stages of product development
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The Group focuses on scientific research and innovation, actively
carrying out research and development in the areas of organic
silicone and core catalysts in chemistry, producing remarkable
innovative achievements. In 2020, with the use of the catalyst
reforming platform, the Group introduced multiple industrial
application of catalyst technology, among which, the DY series
of catalyst was used in the new R125 project, enhancing the PCE
conversion rate from 60% to over 90% under the same conditions,
while the selectivity of the target product is above 90%, laying a
good foundation for the commissioning of the R125 construction
project. Under the backdrop of the national strategic deployment
of 5G communication, the Group researches and develops
polymeric high binding polytetrafluoroethylene emulsion for
laminates, which promotes the popularization in the high and
new technology fields of 5G. During the year, organic silicone
hydrogen-terminated silicone oil and epoxy blocking agent
entered as new product series, as mass production enriched the
number of product types in the textile auxiliary product series, thus
promoting the development of the textile auxiliaries industry.

2.3 Nurturing Leading Talents

Dongyue Group values the cultivation of high-quality
talent echelon, follows the concepts of “Reflecting values
with benefits, and using wealth to return intelligence”
and “Let the innovative talents to gain honor, status and
wealth”, rewards scientific research innovation, incentivizes
for initiative and enthusiasm for the creativity of scientific
research and technical personnel. The Group fully arouses
the enthusiasm and creativity of scientific and technological
personnel through the formulation of a series of mechanisms,
including the Administratiive Measures for scientific Research
Initiatives and Selection of Outstanding Scientific Research
Talents in the Research Institute. Meanwhile, the Group
organizes monthly individual incentive activities on research
project progress, which rewards individuals who have made
outstanding contributions on advancing the project progress
during the month.
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In attracting and retaining innovative talents, the Group
adopts the view on value and on wealth of "Realizing value
with value, and using wealth to reward intelligence”, building
Dongyue into a platform for fair competition and explores
three major talent mechanisms through practice: the first
being the talent integration mechanism of “not seeking
to own but seeking to use”; the second being the talent
introduction mechanism of “special policy for special talents”;
and the third being the selection mechanism of “putting
actual working performance above talent identification”. The
Group advocates the “621" Taishan Scholars Climbing Plan,
and has built 6 R&D centers in cities and countries such as
Beijing, Shanghai and Japan respectively. The Group also
jointly established 16 R&D platforms with Beijing University
of Chemical Technology, Shandong University and Lanzhou
Institute of Chemical Physics, carrying out 35 cooperative
projects and integrating over 40 academic leaders inside
and outside the PRC. As a leading scientific research unit,
Dongyue Research Institute focuses on R&D work and
endeavors to build a R&D team of technical talents. Moreover,
the institute is also responsible for transforming research
projects into productivity, enhancing quality, technology and
techniques, as well as developing external exchange and
cooperation. In 2020, the Group has 432 researchers with an
average age of 33.14, with 43.1% of being postgraduates.
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2.4 Leading Industry Development

Dongyue Group is built on the Group's industry and
innovation platform. While paying attention to its own
technological innovation, it actively engages in industry
exchange and promote the synergistic development of the
whole industry. The Group actively participates in industry
discussions, participates in the formulation of industry
standards and drives industry development. As the vice
chairman of the Fluorosilicone Association, the director of the
China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation, chairman
of the Fluoroplastics Processing Association, and the deputy
secretary-general of the Membrane Industry Association, the
Company actively organizes and presides over the academic
exchange meetings of the fluorosilicone industry. In 2020,
Dongyue organized important meetings such as the “14th
Five-Year Plan” Seminar on Development and Planning for
the Chinese Fluorosilicone Industry, Hydrogen Energy Key
Material Summit Forum and Dongyue Group 2021 Industry
Chain Cooperation Annual Meeting, Shandong Province
Chemical Industry Quality Development Forum and the Third
General Meeting of the First Session of the Representatives
of the Promotion Association, discussing with professionals
in the industry and leading business leaders the direction
of development for the industry. Moreover, Dongyue Group
actively participated in the formulation of national standards.
It participated in the drafting of 46 standards in total,
including 5 national standards, 10 industry standards and 31
group standards. In 2020, the Group completed 12 standards,
including 2 national standards, 2 industry standards and 8
group standards.
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3. Security

In strict compliance with the national laws and regulations such
as the Safe Production Law of The People’s Republic of China,
the Group carefully implemented the national standards in
relation to safe production. By continuously improving the safety
management system, it strengthened its safety risk management
on an ongoing basis, consolidated the establishment of a
safety culture and steadily promoted production safety and the
implementation of safety management.

3.1 Management of Safety System

The Group followed Production Safety Law and other
relevant rules and regulations, formulated internal safety
management documents such as the “Must-obey Safety
Regulations” and “Production Safety Incident/Event
Management System”, standardizing production safety and
operational safety via setting up safety goals, embedding
safety and occupational health management in all aspects of
the operation.

To strengthen the importance of safety management
and coordinate the advantageous resources to be put in
safety management, the Group has set up the Production
Safety Committee (“PSC") consisting of Chairman as
director, President as vice director, Group Vice President, all
department heads and general managers of all subsidiaries
as members. The PSC holds regular meetings to acquaint
themselves with the production safety management
performance within the Group, look into the problems in the
production safety recently and lay down countermeasures.
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Construction of a Dual System

The Group carried out the construction of a “Dual System” of
risk grading and hidden danger screening, which combined
the processes of identification and control of internal security
risks as well as hidden danger screening, thus keeping a close
eye on the prevention and treatment of risks. The Company
set up a team of leaders for its risk grading management
and control system led by the general manager, with the
vice director of production and chief technical engineer as
the deputy team leaders, and the heads of the production
lines as the members, with clarified responsibilities of each
member, and detailed work plans and processes to ensure
safety. The Company assisted its subsidiary companies in
constructing the “"Dual System” with special counseling,
aiming to promote a scientific and effective safety
management model.

Standardized Management

On the basis of safety standardization, the Group learnt from
the international leaders in building a unified management
system within the Group, and classified and managed
the elements, establishing eight management teams.
Meanwhile, the Company uses the Dynamic Tracking Table
of the Management System of Dongyue Group to guide the
administrator of each element to optimize each management
standard and form, and check on the implementation of
each regulation, with regular assessment and strengthened
supervision, which has effectively improved the execution of
safety management.
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The Group launched “Benchmarking DuPont”, a consultation
on safety management in 2016, forming a safety culture with
Dongyue characteristics through the guidance of the DuPont
safety management concept. In 2020, the Company launched
a DuPont safety management improvement activity, and
in view of the shortcomings in safety management and
safety culture establishment found during the activity, the
Group will cooperate with DuPont to jointly organize a
second safety management improvement activity in order
to continuously improve the safe management capability
of middle and senior managers and build the core of safety
and environmental capability in Dongyue Group and other
companies.
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In 2020, the Group launched the Dongyue Safety and
Environmental Risk Monitoring, Early Warning and
Emergency Management System based on 3D Geographic
Information System (GIS), which allows one to keep abreast
of the Group’s real-time safety operation by controlling
and managing the four modules of map, safety production,
environmental monitoring and contingency plan. The system
is supported by 2D and 3D GIS, focusing on the Group's
safety, environment and contingency businesses, and has the
functions of online monitoring and early warning as well as
emergency dispatching and analysis for business data such
as the Group’s 91 major production equipment, 73 major
hazard sources and 229 hazardous chemical storage tanks.

Safety Risk Management and Control

The Group has paid high attention to safety risk management
and control, expanded the scope of management and
control, and improved the management and control
mechanism. In 2020, the Hydrogen Company, the Research
Institute and catering centre of the Group, the periphery of
the headquarters and factory area of the Group as well as
overseas subsidiaries were included in the scope of safety risk
management and control. The Group has successively carried
out safety management to establish annual safety audit
practices for overseas subsidiaries. The Group continuously
carried out the identification and rectification of hidden
dangers at all levels, and carried out 12 inspections in total in
2020, with a rectification rate up to 98%. During the year, no

safety production accident has occurred.
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Equipment Safety Management

As the focus of safety management, the Group continued
to expand its scope of work and carried out various related
initiatives steadily in 2020:

Safety improvement activities for the special
equipment of the subsidiaries: In order to ensure
the safety operation of the special equipment of its
subsidiaries, the Group carried out special equipment
safety management campaigns for its subsidiaries
quarterly. In 2020, the Group conducted the publicity
of the laws and regulations for its subsidiaries in the
first quarter, promoted the knowledge on the use
of gas bottles in the second quarter, introduced the
forklift specifications in the third quarter, carried out
comprehensive management promotion in the fourth
quarter and assessed the learning progress of each
subsidiary.

QA (quality assurance) management improvement
of equipment: The Group implemented the "Best
Practices for Inspection and Acceptance of Shenzhou
Equipment” and “Best Practices for Manufacturing
Supervision of Huanan Equipment”, upgrading the QA
quality management of the full-lifecycle management of
equipment and formulating the management process
of equipment maintenance. The equipment department
will take the lead to set up an inspection team to clearly
define the rectification obligations to manufacturers
that do not meet the standards in accordance with the
technology agreements, national compulsory standards
and other inspection criteria, providing an effective
improvement model for equipment management.

Equipment FMEA analysis: The Group actively
promoted the application of equipment FMEA analysis
to identify system, item or function failures and identify
single individual failures and their impact on the
entire system. Through the implementation of FMEA
analysis, the safety management of the Group can be
transformed from prevention and control to a predictive
maintenance model, laying the foundation for safety
management improvement in the future.
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Emergency Responding and Dirills

According to relevant regulatory requirements, the Group
has revised regularly the comprehensive emergency plans,
special emergency plans and on-site disposal programs
for accidents. All subsidiaries are required to, on the basis
of the emergency plans, formulate emergency plans at
corresponding levels, strengthen the emergency plan
exercise, and improve the emergency response capability of
subsidiaries and positions as well as employees’ self-defense
and self-rescue abilities.

The Group has established an emergency plan system and
developed targeted plans for specific accidents to improve
accident response capability. It has also set up a rescue
teams and defined the responsibilities of each team to jointly
work on the rescue and handling of various accidents. As
for the operation of power plants, the Group has formulated
comprehensive emergency plans and special emergency
plans, and developed targeted emergency plans for different
accidents to enhance accident response capability.

To ensure safety in workplaces and improve employees’
awareness of safety and prevention, the Group conducts fire
drills every year to enhance employees’ awareness of fire
safety and enhance their abilities to prevent and respond
to unexpected disasters. In 2020, 390 safety exercises have
been organized at all levels, with a total of 10,920 employees
involved, including 119 fire drills and 13 fire inspections
of subsidiaries, with 5900 employees involved. Through
fire drills and fire inspections, a total of 152 fire safety
hazards were identified. The Company promptly urged the
rectification and inspected the rectification work to ensure
that the fire-fighting facilities are in a good state for use.
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Contractor Safety Management

The Group has included the production safety of contractors
into the focus of the Company’s safety management,
and raised the HSE management level of contractors by
formulating the Dongyue Group Contractor Management
System. The Company has required its contractors to meet
the entry criteria, sign a safety responsibility agreement
and strictly abide by the provisions on occupational health,
safety and environmental protection. The Company regularly
supervises and assesses the contractors’ performance,
including the maintenance of the contractors’ safety
education record, site inspection log book and daily report
on the inspection of contractors’ on-site construction safety
to strengthen the control of contractor safety. Furthermore,
the Company aroused the contractors’ initiative concerning
safety management through safety education and training in
addition to assessment and incentives. In 2020, the number
of serious accidents involving contractors of the Company
was 0.

Safety and Health Protection

The Company highly values the health of employees. The
Group has established an occupational health management
department, improving its occupational health hazard
management and implementing various measures
concerning occupational health protection.

The Group has been attaching great importance to the
health and safety protection of employees, and has strictly
followed the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases to provide
comprehensive occupational health protection for its
employees.

The Group conducted occupational physical
examination regularly, established occupational health
record and checked the daily hazards protection. In
2020, the employees’ occupational health examination
rate was 100%, with zero incidence of occupational
diseases.
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Conducting on-site occupational hazard monitoring,
and continuous improvement of the automation and
intelligence level of the devices on such basis, the
Group adopted strict confined isolation measures to
reduce the exposure of personnel to occupational

hazards.

The Group provided protective equipment to prevent
accidents that may occur during operation and placed
first aid kits in workshops to provide immediate
assistance in emergency situations to protect the
personal safety of employees.

The Group is equipped with professional safety
management personnel, among which, all of the special
operation staff must be licence-holders. Regulations
for the Management of Special Equipment have been
formulated to ensure the safety production of special
equipment during operating activities.

The Group organized special trainings on occupational
disease prevention and treatment, provided
comprehensive occupational health protection
equipment and emergency equipment, and improved
the awareness and level of labour protection of

employees.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has implemented
stringent measures for the prevention and control of the
pandemic, such as conducting body temperature checks for
all personnel entering the factories, supervising employees
to wear masks properly, purchasing disinfection products
and requiring registration of outsiders and vehicles to ensure
workplace safety. In the face of material shortages, the Group
made every effort to guarantee the supply of pandemic
prevention materials, coordinated hospital resources and
sent agents to purchase masks through various channels
from places such as South Korea and Japan, effectively
guaranteeing the supply of masks for all employees in the
factories.
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Face recognition cameras were installed on the existing access control equipment.
Each doorkeeper is provided with a visitor machine which helps enter the information
of personnel into the management platform. Through creating visitor records with the
use of face recognition and capture technology, attendance reports can be generated
automatically, thereby enhancing the level of automation and information
management of the Group.
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The Group strictly complied with its regulations on the transportation management of
hazardous chemicals and monitors the hazardous chemicals transport vehicles
entering the park. Moreover, the Group fully implemented electronic waybills for
hazardous chemicals and monitored vehicles entering the park in real time through
the monitoring platform for the hazardous chemicals park. It also diverted traffic in a
timely manner based on the number and time of hazardous chemicals transport
vehicles arriving at the factory to minimize the time for vehicles entering the park to
queue for unloading, so as to prevent hazardous chemical vehicles for staying for a
long time.
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The Group adopted a positioning system for hazardous chemical transport vehicles to
monitor the positioning and route of vehicles within a range of 20 km radius of the
park.
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3.4 Safety Culture Construction

Building a safety culture, building up employees’ safety
awareness and improving related skills are particularly
importantin the process of implementing safety
management.

The Group has set up an employee training base which
is divided into several functional areas such as high-risk
operation practice area, chemical unit practice area, corporate
promotion area, safety production area, and accident
emergency drill and training area to disseminate safety
knowledge to employees and conduct employee safety
training. In 2020, a total of 2,000 employees participated in
the training through the employee training base. The safety
training rate of the Company’s employees reached 100%,
with an average training hours of 28 hours per employee.

The Group attaches great importance to safety promotion.
It carried out various campaigns to share the knowledge in
relation to occupational health and chronic disease to create
a safety culture atmosphere in the Dongyue Group. In 2020,
the Group organized safety activities such as the micro-video
competition with the theme of safety to create a strong
safety atmosphere through constantly organising different
forms of safety activities.

The Group adopted various incentive mechanisms to
motivate the progress of safety management. It set up
the special incentive fund of “Benchmarking DuPont”
to reward the frontline employees for safety experience
sharing, risk management and hidden danger screening,
excellent production of training courseware, etc. The “Five-
one” incentive activity was designed to motivate senior
management and middle management of each company to
practice inductive leadership. The Instant Safety Award and
the Thumb Award encouraged employees to standardize
their operational behaviors and develop good operational
habits.
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4. Green Development

Dongyue Group places great importance on reducing the
impact on the ecological environment in the operation process.
It strictly complied with the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations
to optimize the construction of the standardized management
system for environmental protection, formulated and improved
the Assessment For Standardized Construction For Environmental
Protection and Standardized Construction Plan, and promoted
the improvement of energy-saving and environmental protection
technology, striving to reduce pollutant emissions, improve
energy utilization efficiency and establish the business philosophy

of corporate green development.

4.1 Climate Change Risk Analysis

Climate change poses many challenges to water resources,
ecological environment, energy development and other
fields. With the imminent impacts of climate change,
Dongyue Group set out itself to embed the consideration of
climate risks into its existing risk management system, and
actively identify and evaluate the risks and opportunities
associated with climate change.
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. Exposure to climate change risk

Transition Policy China has been actively participating in global climate governance and fulfilling

risks risks the commitments of the Kyoto Protocol and the Paris Agreement, and regards
tackling climate change as an important goal and content of modernization in
the new era. In 2020, China scaled up its nationally determined contributions, and
pledged to peak carbon dioxide emissions by 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality
by 2060. With the tightening of relevant policies and the expectations on the
disclosure of the identification of climate risk by the Stock Exchange and other
institutions, Dongyue Group will also be subject to restrictions on greenhouse gas
emissions by regulatory authorities, leading to increased compliance costs.

In 2020, the Ministry of Ecology and Environment announced the implementation
of the Administrative Measures for Carbon Emission Trading (Trial) from 2021,
pursuant to which a national carbon emission trading system will be launched
with an aim to meet its carbon neutrality commitment. China began to transfer
the responsibility for greenhouse gas control and emission reduction from the
national level to enterprises, forcing enterprises to carry out technological and
process innovations by using the market mechanism to reduce the intensity of
carbon emissions. Although the first batch of carbon trading pilot enterprises are
power enterprises, taking into account the continuous expansion of the scope of
carbon emission control in the future, Dongyue Group shall develop low-carbon
development plans in advance and implement technological innovations to be
prepared for policy risks.
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Market risks ~ Customers’ demand for green product solutions and low-carbon footprint

products continues to increase, especially for European customers, who require

higher production standards for refrigerants. If Dongyue Group does not take

this into consideration and has excessive exhaust emissions in the production of

fluorine materials and organic silicone materials or fails to effectively develop new

sustainable environmentally friendly product solutions, its market sales may be

adversely affected.
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Physical risks  Physical risks  Extreme weather such as heavy rain, typhoons and sandstorms, or long-term

climate changes such as water shortages caused by climate change will potentially

affect the upstream supply chain and the transportation of raw materials, and

damage and destroy the production facilities. This may lead to an increase in

the Company’ s operating costs and a decline in production capacity or even

production suspension, affecting labor management and planning.
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. Opportunities from climate change
Based on the preliminary identification and assessment
of the above risks, Dongyue Group is considering and
formulating measures to respond to climate change
risks, including but not limited to:

- To reduce the impact of relevant policies on its
operations, the Company will fully study relevant
national policies and strategies, increase daily
monitoring of relevant laws and regulations
and strengthen communication with regulatory
authorities. Furthermore, the Company will
timely adjust its risk management measures in
accordance with policies and regulations, make
relevant disclosures and prevent risks in a timely
manner.
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Based on extensive industry benchmarking with
reference to the ESG reporting guide of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and the principles of the
science-based carbon targets, the Company is
exploring its setting of carbon emission targets.

The Company will take the initiative to introduce
clean energy and strive to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from products and operations through
technological innovation and equipment energy
efficiency upgrades.

The Company maintains a diversified portfolio of
suppliers which helps avoid over-concentration of
procurement resources, thereby reducing the risk
of unstable supply resulting from climate change.

Through participation in industry communication
and academic exchanges with universities,
the Company will actively introduce more
internationally advanced technologies and
equipment to improve energy efficiency and
reduce carbon emissions in production.

The Company will actively conduct research on
market trends, systematically explore new markets,
carry out forecast and analysis of technological
and market changes and develops low-carbon
green products that meet the needs of the
community.
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4.2 Green Products

Dongyue Group actively promoted the development of
energy-saving and environmentally-friendly products to
prevent and mitigate the adverse impacts of production and
operation activities on the environment. Green environmental
refrigerant is one of the major new environmentally friendly
products vigorously promoted by the Company. R410A
and other HFC refrigerants are gradually replacing R22 and
other second generation HCFCs refrigerants and are well
received by consumers. In particular, pentafluoroethane
(R125), a key green refrigerant researched, developed and
manufactured by the Company, is characterised by a high
refrigeration coefficient, zero ozone depleting potential and
low greenhouse effect coefficient. It is an alternative of Freon
which has excellent thermodynamic performance with an
enormous development prospect.

Meanwhile, adhering to high standards and strict
requirements, the Group vigorously invested in the
construction of future hydrogen energy material projects
and conducted research and development of products in
various fields such as hydrogen energy materials including
high-performance fuel cell membrane, high-performance
fluoropolymers and high-end fluorinated fine chemicals,
facilitating the transformation of new energy and ensuring
the national strategic security of the hydrogen energy

industry.
BERE 20195 20205
Greenhouse gases 2019 2020
BERIBEERE (W) Emissions of greenhouse gases (tons) 3,259,067.1 3,298,246.1
BTEBREREHNE Greenhouse gas emission per
(Mg, BLEE) RMB10,000 of output value (tons/
RMB10,000 of output value) 2.51 3.28
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4.3 Enhancing Energy Efficiency

As the first intelligent manufacturing pilot enterprise in
the fluorochemical industry, Dongyue Group has been
actively exploring and improving intelligent management
and control. In terms of energy management and control,
based on the Baosight Energy Management System, the
Company implemented the unified scheduling management
and integrated allocation of the energy of the Group’s
subsidiaries, managing the energy media such as high-
voltage power distribution and steam in the industrial parks
in a centralized manner.

In 2020, Dongyue Group actively implemented the
“Energy Conservation Management System for Special
Equipment”’, promoted improvements for energy saving
and environmental protection technologies, and reduced
energy consumption in production with the principle of
using new energy sources and saving energy. The Company
reduced steam and heat consumption rate by modifying
the compressed air system and the condensing turbines
sets and optimized the boiler combustion system to reduce
the utilization amount of ammonia water and the power
consumption of the wind turbine. Also, in order to enhance
the reasonable operating efficiency of the power grid
economy, the Company replaced old electrical equipment
and strengthened the comprehensive coverage of power
automation and information.

At the same time, Dongyue Group actively promoted the
concept of “green office”, encouraging online work and
online management of documents to decrease paper
waste. Moreover, the Group strictly managed vehicle fuel
consumption according to the Vehicle Management System,
and offered full reward or punishment to drivers who save
fuel or use excessive fuel. It also implemented the Dongyue
Group Regulations on the Use of Air-Conditioners in Office
Buildings to control the time of using air-conditioners and
promptly shut down the air-conditioners after work, aiming
to raise employees’ awareness on energy conservation. In
2020, the gasoline consumption of Dongyue Group was
reduced by 32,054 liters as compared to previous year.
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The energy consumption of Dongyue Group in recent three

years is shown as follows:

EREE 20185 HEE 20195 HMEE 20205 H#EE
Consumption in Consumption in Consumption in
Use type 2018 2019 2020
HNEE (FRLRF) Purchased electricity
(kwh) 1,461,252,200 1,540,000,000 1,526,811,300
B FEE (BNE) Total coal consumption
(10,000 tons) 64.23 65.29 67.34
BEE(TRE) Generating capacity
(kwh) 287,568,000 327,266,000 360,986,500
AEZ(BHA=2)(WE) Steam production volume
(self-used volume)
(tons) 1,472,565 1,468,928 1,660,774
ol (1) Gasoline (liter) 72,065 69,945 37,891
gem (71) Diesel (liter) 5,456.89 0 11,010
KAR(IFHAK) Natural gas (cubic meter) 14,433.95 21,580,300 20,638,353
BEROBE#E 2018% 2019% 20205
Energy consumption 2018 2019 2020
URABERE(BMBIZIE - Total energy consumption
BB - F - KA (10,000 tons standard
/o Am ) coal, including coal,
electricity, natural gas,
gasoline, diesel) 639,428.20 686,600.61 697,312.32
ETLEELREEF(E  Total energy
WEIZH - BFEMAME -~ consumption per
T RRE - M - RMB10,000 of output
sl BILEE) value (10,000 tons
standard coal, including
coal, electricity, natural
gas, gasoline, diesel/
RMB10,000 of output
value) 0.45 0.53 0.69

R EFRRERTHE - EH2018FF2019
FHEREEREE - KIBGRE R EREA
GB-T25892008 4R &. °

Due to adjustments in the conversion factors for total energy
consumption, the total energy consumption data for 2018 and 2019 have

been updated, and are prepared according to the General Principles for

Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB-T25892008).
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4.4 Optimization of Water Utilization Management
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Focusing on the improvement of the utilization efficiency
of water resources, Dongyue Group advocated water
conservation, enhanced technological innovation,
strengthened comprehensive wastewater treatment and
reuse and implemented comprehensive water resources

management.

Leveraging the abundant seawater resources and salt field
resources, the Company conducted brine concentration and
salt crystallization after extraction of bromine from seawater.
During the filing period of the construction project, Dongyue
Group carried out safety assessment and environmental
assessment in strict accordance with relevant requirements,
aiming to ensure that the operating activities were in
compliance with the requirements on site selection for
environmental protection and avoid causing major impact
on the environment and natural resources. Moreover, the
Company reduced wastewater discharge through measures
such as equipment upgrades and process optimization.
In 2020, Dongyue Group invested RMB13.6 million for the
upgrade and renovation of the sewage treatment project
with a treatment capacity of 2,200 ton/day, achieving
effective sewage treatment and zero emission while ensuring
the quality is stable and up to standard.
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The water consumption and wastewater discharge of

T Dongyue Group in the past three years are shown as follows:
2018 HEH 2019F HEik~ 2020 HEpk,
KR KB ER AXE k& k&
Discharge/ Discharge/ Discharge/
Water consumption and wastewater discharge consumption in consumption in consumption in
indicators 2018 2019 2020
7K REKBE A & (WR) 4,346,415 4,395,965.00 4,566,981
Wastewater Total discharge of wastewater
(tons)
CODHE = (WA) 58.70 57.90 57.80
COD emissions (tons)
S[AYEHE (W) 231 1.86 142
Ammonia nitrogen emissions
(tons)
FE7K HAKE (ME) 11,000,000 13,905,821 13,474,550
Water Total water consumption (tons)
consumption FEKZE (ME, B EKA) 7.74 10.73 1342

Water consumption intensity
(tons/RMB10,000 of operating
income)
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4.5 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

Dongyue Group effectively managed and controlled pollutant
emissions during operation and strived to minimize pollutant
emissions. The Company strictly abided by the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution and other relevant laws, strengthened
pollution treatment, improved the system and carried out
technological innovations. It implemented emission control
and inspection for wastewater, exhaust gas, noise and solid
waste to ensure compliance with laws and regulations for
the emissions of the above three types of wastes.
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Exhaust gas management

Dongyue Group actively implemented the Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Action Plan to carry out exhaust
emission reduction works and practice the concept of
green and sustainable development. The exhaust emissions
of the Company complied with the requirements of the
Regional and Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
(DB37/2376-2019), achieving emissions compliance. In 2020,
the total volume of exhaust gas pollution was reduced
by 45.86%, reducing a total of 11.53 tons of sulfur dioxide
emission, 204.21 tons of nitrogen oxides emission, and 52.28
tons of dust emission.

In 2020, the Company prepared an emission reduction list
and strengthened the accountability system. The Company
also implemented online monitoring of emission data of
incinerators such as sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and
dust, achieving networking with the local environmental
protection bureau and coordinated the promotion of the
transformation of the incinerator waste gas treatment
facilities transformation of all subsidiaries. The Group carried
out leakage detection and repair work in accordance
with the frequency requirements. 10 aspects including
pollution control technologies, storage tanks, volatile
organic liquid loading, sewage collection and treatment,
heating furnaces, discharge limits, monitoring and control
levels, environmental management levels, transportation
methods and regulatory requirements were analyzed and
upgraded, striving to become a benchmarking enterprise
in environmental protection. Meanwhile, the Company has
successfully completed the application of benchmarking
enterprise in environmental protection for Dongyue
Organosilicone, Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Polymers
in conjunction with the market situation to ensure full-
capacity production and provide environmental protection
supports for the Group’s best-selling products. In addition,
the Group adjusted the production capacity of products on
the organic chemical emission reduction list, among which
polytetrafluoroethylene devices of Dongyue Organosilicone,
Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Polymers were adjusted
from full capacity to 80%, and chemical, polymer, and
fluorosilicone materials were adjusted to 70% from 80%
in the original list. In terms of transportation management
and control, the Company minimized the access of heavy
vehicles, suspended the delivery by heavy vehicles (except
for environmentally friendly electric transport vehicles), and
required that only vehicles for the procurement of imported
raw materials meeting the national V emission standards
for motor vehicles and above could enter the factories for
unloading.
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20195 HEph &

Emissions in 2019

2020F HEph 2

Emissions in 2020

118.12
416.90
73.00

145.61

106.59
212.69
20.72

68.02

—SbFR(HR) Sulfur dioxide (tons) 157.06
REfty(ug) Nitrogen oxides (tons) 542.29
fEEE R EE (W) Soot/dust (tons) 78.28
B A Y (8E) Volatile organic

compounds (tons) 220
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Solid waste management

Dongyue Group strictly followed the General Solid Waste
Management System, General Solid Waste Accountability
System, Hazardous Waste Management System, Hazardous
Waste Accountability System and other relevant solid waste
management systems, and strictly regulated the disposal
process of solid waste and the supervision and inspection
methods to avoid environmental pollution incidents.

Dongyue Group formulated the Standardized Management
Index System for Hazardous Wastes. Through the
improvement of management account, the Company
strengthened the supervision and assessment of solid waste
treatment as well as hazardous waste management of its
subsidiaries. During the pandemic in 2020, the Company
optimised its internal management assessment plan. It
formulated the KPI assessment based on themes concerning
environmental protection and prepared a solid waste
assessment form every month. The Company sought to build
models through assessments to promote best practices and
guide management personnel in implementing solid waste
management, achieving steady improvement in the Group's
overall environmental management and laying a solid
foundation for becoming a benchmarking enterprise. In 2020,
the Company invested RMB10 million in the construction
of a desulphurization gypsum project, which improved the
efficiency of boiler coal incineration. The Company also
introduced Ukraine’s defluorination technology, achieving the
reduction and recycling of solid waste. During the reporting
period, the output of general solid waste decreased by 16.5%
or 40,149 tonnes compared to last year, and the self-disposal
rate of hazardous waste rose from 66% to 68.02%.
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RESEER=FEEEMEERIN The disposals of solid wastes of Dongyue Group in the past
i three years are as follows:
BRER 2018FRES 20195 RESE 20200F REE
Type of emissions Disposals in 2018  Disposals in 2019  Disposals in 2020
i aE (WE) Desulphurization gypsum

(tons) 94,142 61,370 29,964
BRI () Ash and slag of power

plant (tons) 172,009 166,358 177,478
A SERIIR (HE) Domestic waste (tons) 48 45 87.6
oAt (W) Office waste (tons) 12 13 10
BAJE(WE) Acetylene sludge (tons) 351,432 378,724 351,022
—REEEYELMRE  Total general wastes

(Wg) (tons) 266,211 227,786 207,540

—MEBEEVEEZE  Intensity of general
(Mg BILEHEWA)  wastes (tons/
RMB10,000 of operating

income) 0.19 0.18 0.21
. HEEERRLOE  EmKE - EAR Note: The treatment of desulphurization gypsum, ash and slag of power
MR AINE - EITEATFIE - plant and acetylene sludge of Dongyue Group is externally sold for

comprehensive utilization.

REEECREEYEREREEEER Transfer of hazardous wastes of Dongyue Group to qualified
BEEBRIT : institutions for disposal is as follows:

BERYER 20195 BEE 20205 BERE

Types of hazardous wastes Emissions in 2019 Emissions in 2020

Bz e () HWO06 1,777.6 1,319.88

Transfer volume of hazardous wastes HWO08 122.62 122.60

(tons) HWQ9 18.66 0

HW11 52216 297.70

HW50 247.99 628.98

HWA45 13,041.59 20,179.76

HW18 165.63 411.16

HW29 155.10 157.59

HW49 123.60 595.21
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5. All-win Harmony

The Company always regards employees as the cornerstone for
its development. Adhering to the talent concept of “reflecting
values with benefits and using wealth to reward intelligence”, the
Company strongly advocates an equal and non-discriminatory
employment policy, strives to protect the rights and interests of
employees and improves employee promotion channels as well
as remuneration and welfare system. Also, it constantly provides
employees with trainings on vocational skills and occupational
health and continuously nurtures industry leaders, creating a fair,
harmonious and inclusive working environment for employees to
grow together.

5.1 Respecting employees’ rights and interests

Dongyue Group adheres to the concept of “people-oriented”
and protects the legitimate rights and interests of employees.
The Company has, in strict accordance with the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other national laws and
regulations, pursued fair and legal employment practices,
being impartial to employees different genders, nationalities,
ages, ethnicities, religions and cultural backgrounds. It
provides equal opportunities for all employees and purchases
basic social insurance for employees in accordance with
national regulations. At the same time, the Company strictly
prohibits and opposes any use of child labor and forced
labor, carries out supervision to ensure no employment of
child labor and forced labor, and respects and safeguards the
legitimate rights and interests of all employees. As at the end
of the reporting period, Dongyue Group had a total of 5576
employees.
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RUBIBINETEAAY REREASHNETHEAHY
Total Number of Employees by Gender Total Number of Employees by Grade
84
602 — N\ 426

N 4974

N\ 5,066
mE8T ZB8T m AR B TE ETWET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
REFRETNETAAY
Total Number of Employees by Age
353
\ Va 976

1,902

N 2345
u 30EmREIAT 31-40/E 5%,
Aged under 30 Aged between 31-40
= 41-50/88% ® 50/ B L

Aged between 41-50  Aged over 50
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5.2 Promoting staff development

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the career
development of employees, insists on empowerment based
on individual needs and has developed a hierarchical training
system for employees. With the Measures for Position
Promotion of Cadres and Employees of the Group, the
Administrative Measures for Appraisal of Newly Promoted
Cadres under Probation Period of Dongyue Group and
the Administrative Measures for Training and Appraisal of
Newly Promoted Management Cadres of Dongyue Group,
the Company clarified promotion measures for cadres and
continuously innovates the Company's training system on
the basis of implementation and results summary.
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BTIFIER Employee training
RUERESNZIEEAR RESEAAINZIEEAR
Number of Trained Employees by Gender Total Hours of Training by Employment Type
92
727 O\
N\ 668

43878
N— 4845
mE8T ZBT m BRI LR Sy LTWET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
R BB 12 Y48 /N BEESRAEE T NZIENER
Total Hours of Training by Gender Total Hours of Training by Employment Type

63278 —_ 8007 —_ 58142

N\ 424,581 - 421,710
= EET ZB8T mBEERIAE mEBEE ERBET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
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Innovation in training formats and methods

With the principle of “comprehensive professional training for
operation and maintenance to enhance the professionalism
of all employees” as the focus of training, Dongyue Group
considers professional skills training as the priority. In 2020,
the Company explored and introduced some innovative
practices in training formats and methods.

Professional skills training

In order to provide better targeted and professional
training, the Group spent considerable time in the
early stage to conduct demand research based on the
“going out + coming in” research method, soliciting
professional opinions and formulating professional
training plans. In 2020, the Group organized a total
of 72 professional skills training sessions, conducted
professional training for the three teams of operation,
maintenance and energy, and arranged certification
examinations, in which a total of 77 employees
completed the certification successfully. In addition,
the “new apprenticeship” professional training method
cooperated by the Group and Zibo Technician College
adopted an online and offline integrated training
model, which produced better training results while
ensuring normal production at the front line. A total
of 33 trainees successfully passed the intermediate
certificate of general chemical control workers.

Trainings for newly promoted management cadres

In 2020, the Company conducted targeted, purposeful
and planned trainings for 175 newly promoted
management cadres. The trainings took the form of
exchange meetings, case discussions and sharing
through an innovative online and offline integrated
approach. In 2020, the Company organised a total of
700 courses in production, technology research and
development and management.
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Learning organization through online education college

The Company adopted the online learning method
through the online education college to broaden
the knowledge of employees, and opened a special
training course dedicated to knowledge on pandemic
prevention. In 2020, there were a total of 23,408
participants in the online education college with 5,178
login accounts, representing a login rate of 88.51%. The
average online time per user was about 69.28 hours.
Throughout the year, a total of 11,001 test questions
were uploaded and 277 tests were completed. A total of
4,571 knowledge Q&As and Weibo posts were updated,
21 questionnaires of various types were conducted,
and 1 live broadcast and 1 knowledge contest were
organised. Videos for a total of 298 internal courses
on various topics were recorded, edited and uploaded
to the online education college. Moreover, exercise
questions were available after the course to help
employees consolidate the course content.

Innovative training system for new employees

With the online and offline integrated approach
adopted by the Group coupled with new training
courses, group-level training for new employees can be
carried out steadily and smoothly during the pandemic
and post-pandemic periods.

Visits tothe Hydrogen Energy Technology
Demonstration Center and the History and Culture
Exhibition Hall of the Intelligent Control Center for all
employees

The Group organized 20 and 23 visits to the Future
Hydrogen Energy Technology Demonstration Center
and the History and Culture Exhibition Hall of the
Intelligent Control Center respectively for all employees.
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Caring for Employees’ Life

Dongyue Group values the physical and mental health of its

employees and listens to their demands.

In 2020, we held a series of events to show care for our
employees, such as Double Seventh Festival gathering,
Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day gathering, National
Day movie watching event, Autumn sports day, care and
gratitude event in March and International Women'’s Day
event, enriching the leisure time of employees while
facilitating the physical and mental health of employees and
increasing employee’s sense of belonging to the Company.

Contributing to the Social Development

The Company has always placed “social responsibility” as an
important component of its corporate development strategy,
insisting on "building hometown, repaying the society,
serving the country, repaying the party”, and vigorously
supports community building, supports rural development,
carries out activities such as public welfare donation,
voluntary service, community care and other related activities,
giving back to the society with love and warmth. In 2020, we
carried out activities to support employees in difficulty. We
visited more than 30 employees in difficulty before Chinese
New Year and provided more than RMB30,000 financial aid
in total. A visit to nursing home is also organised so to show
care and love for the elderly. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Group donated accumulatively RMB10.298 million
to social welfare undertakings in the fields of education,
transport, health and disaster relief through “Dongyue
Education Fund”, “Dongyue Elder Respecting Fund”, “Dongyue
Staff-caring Fund”, “Dongyue Scholarship Fund”, “Dongyue
Women and Children Fund”, “China Foundation for Guangcai
Program”, “Red Cross” and “Education Development
Foundation” of local universities.
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The Company actively responds to the call of the
government in fighting against the COVID-19 pandemic. We
promptly set up an pandemic prevention and control team
after the pandemic outbreak to carefully carry out pandemic
prevention and control works internally. Meanwhile, the
Group's cadres and employees at all levels have coordinated
to investigate and identify employees from Hubei Province
and Wuhan as well as employees and their family memebers
who have been in contact with personnel in the affected
areas, and have made every effort in conducting logstical
support work and promoting pandemic prevention. In 2020,

fli 300B LBBEARGATTEE the Group donated RMB8 million in total to the society
AIXIERAE%IRER » B NEMEIS for the prevention and control of COVID-19 pandemic
PHyaT1E - nationwide. Among which, RMB5 million was used in
supporting Wuhan through the China Foundation for
Guangcai Program, while the remaining RMB3 million was
used in supporting 3 hospitals in Huantai County through
the Red Cross of Huantai County to assist the local pandemic
prevention and control.
EEEH B AL HE kAR
Year of
Name Establishment  Targeted People and Purpose
REHEES 2000F AR ER A B HBKE R H OB MBS EEKAENS
o WHERBERBRT NERY[REEE ]
Dongyue Education Fund 2000 To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching performance
and students with outstanding academic achievements. “Dongyue
Studies” were established for the middle and primary schools in
Huantai County
REEZES 20074F NG F RE IS0 A L& ABHE2007T 4 B i 8h
Dongyue Elder Respecting 2007 To provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to elders aged over
Fund 80 in Tangshan Town
RERBES 20006 RBERS - ILRBIASREHBERNERENESEF
Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000 To reward the students of Tsinghua University and Shandong
University of Technology with outstanding academic
achievements
REFOES 20054F FRE R ZE S TH#TRE)
Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005 To support the Group's staff in financial difficulties
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BEEE =L
Disclosure Indicators Pages

#E R
A1 BER
— BB E General Disclosure

BHEBERRAREREHN  r kKR LHAES BEREZSEENMNELS
@ HE: K

(b) BFHETARERZENEEEZRACINER

i BRENEERELY R EREMZBETERRATRENSEY

Information on:

Aspect: Environment
A1: Type of emissions

(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas emissions discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
Note: Exhaust gas emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and regulations.
A1 BRI iR KR B R R 45 W IERE
4.5 Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

42 BBRIREM

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

Al12 BERBALNE () R(ER)BE(NMNBEESN - BAREHE)

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tons) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

4.2 Green Products

A13 FREAAERENAE VA E) R(WER)BE(MNBESEN - BEREH) 45 MR
Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of 4.5 Reduction of

production volume, per facility) Pollutant Emissions

Al4 FREAREREEYAE (VA E) R(WER)BE (MABESEN - BEREH) 45 WV TRIER
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per 4.5 Reduction of

unit of production volume, per facility) Pollutant Emissions

A1S R E B RS B R e S PR RCR 45 WA ETRE
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved 4.5 Reduction of

Pollutant Emissions

A16 HlRBAENEZEZYNG L  HEELENERIAERR 45 WA IERER

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives
and results achieved

4.5 Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
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A2 : EJRMER  A2: Use of Resources
—RHE General Disclosure
BRERAER(BEGER  KEEMERME)OBE -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
i BRAANEE  #7F  BR - BF STRES -
Note: Resources may be used in production, storage, transportation, buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
A21 EEANEISNERER AEEER(ME - Raloh) BFEE (U TREFE) REE (1R 43 REARCE
BESEN - BERETE)
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh) 4.3 Enhancing Energy

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Efficiency

A22 BRKERTE(NMABERBEN - BIARETE) 44 BALFIKER
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility) 4.4 Optimization of

Water Utilization

Management

A23 H AL IR0 A R R B R PSR R 43 RRB LR E
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 4.3 Enhancing Energy

Efficiency

A24 R SREGE AR LR B EAIRRE - AR KRS 8 R PSR R 44 BIERKER
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 4.4 Optimization of

efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Water Utilization

Management

A25 S mAABREMHNAE AN E) R (ER ) 8L EBMIGE TER
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tons) and, where appropriate, with Not applicable

reference to per unit produced
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REER B
Disclosure Indicators Pages

A3 RERXA A3:Environment and Natural Resources
&R

—BRE General Disclosure

RIEBETAHRERRAEREKEAT BHBEK

Policies on minimizing the issuer s significant impact on the environment and natural resources

A3.1 HREBERBHRERAARERNEAT ERCRNEREATENTE 4 BEER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources 4. Green Development

and the actions taken to manage them

gis - g Aspect: Social

EIRE4 T#R| Employment and Labor Standard
B1: {EfE B1: Employment

—BEE General Disclosure

BRHFMLRE  BREEN  LERH  RE - TSRS  Zal  REBUREMSEREM :

(@ BE: R

b) ETHETABEATENBBERIROINOER -

Information on:

(@)  the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare
B1.1 2R - BEEE - FRARREIDNESER SIBEBTHS
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region 5.1 Respecting
employees' rights and
interests
B1.2 RIER - FRRAR KR E D HEBRKLL X -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region -
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Disclosure Indicators

B
Pages

B2 : %2 B2: Health and Safety

— M E General Disclosure
EAREZ2TERERRERBBEBENZEN
@ B K

(b) BTFHBTABEAZENEBAEZERAONER -
Information on:
(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards

B2.1 BEZFRTEREMATHARLLER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years
B2.2 RATHRATERH

Lost days due to work injury
B2.3 HRFRANBERREL 2HEE - WREBRTRERTE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are implemented

and monitored
B3 : BER1EHI B3: Development and Training
—R#E General Disclosure
BHARMEERITLIERE MMM REENBER « ElEIEg o
i EIIERESY - eEHEENENRINIRE

3. RERE
3. Security
3. RRRE
3. Security

33 R #E

3.3 Safety and Health

Protection

Policies on improving employee s knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training activities

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer
B3.1 U REESEN(NERERE - PREEES)ASHRIEEBSL
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management)
B3.2 RUERIREEEMNED - BREETKT N TR

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category

S2ENhBIER
5.2 Promoting staff
development
S2BNEIER
5.2 Promoting staff
development
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HiR
Pages

B4 : % TR
— M E

B4: Labor Standard
General Disclosure

B EET G S TH

@ BE: X

b) BTHBTABEAFENHRBEIERAOOER -

Information on:

(@)  the policies, and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced

labor
B4.1

B4.2

BEEH
B5: HEH#ER
—REE

i BB B NEEARRET RARHST

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labor

A RIRERIT N HER A B R AT RO 5%

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

Operation Practices
B5: Supply Chain Management
General Disclosure

BERERNOREILGRBRBR °

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain

B5.1

B5.2

miRESNHERHE

Number of suppliers by geographical region

HAARRERHEENEN AERTEREANNHERHE  ARABEIHT
RERTTE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored

S1BEETRR
5.1 Respecting
employees' rights and
interests
S1BEETH#R
5.1 Respecting
employees' rights and
interests

14 RIS HE
1.4 Assuring Supply
14 (RIEHIE

1.4 Assuring Supply
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B6: EmET
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EAMREERNRENEBRELZS - BE  EERABRSEURBNG AN

(@)
(b)

Information on:

(@)
(b)

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

BER: R

B6: Product Responsibility
General Disclosure

BTHETABEATENREAERRMNER -

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

EENCEREMEHTREL 2 BERIEMMARKNAS T 12BEER
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons 1.2 Quality Products
BRENERNMRBORFEE AR EETE 13 BE R
Number of products and services related complaints received and how they are dealt with 1.3 Quality Services
$ii i B T R IE R AL E RS OB 1) 2.1 R R AR
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights 2.1 Inspire Technology

Innovation
N E SE AR RE R T 12 BEER
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures 1.2 Quality Products
HOHBEEBBERE LB - UKEBRTRERNE TR
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are implemented Not applicable

and monitored
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B7 : RE)S
—RHE General Disclosure
BN LS - 9% - BEFREREN
@ BE: X

B7: Anti-corruption

b) BTHBTABEAFENHRBEIERAOOER -

Information on:
(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering

B7.1 REFMAHETASERERERY D RENESHARFOHE RFAER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or

its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

B7.2 i EER L BRER - URBERRTR

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored
gan ') Community
B8 : #EIRE  B8: Community investment
—REE

General Disclosure

EENE 11 BIEER
1.1 Integrity and

Compliance

BN B2EREREERE  RFEENRRAXEIDEER P RNEOBE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities

take into consideration the communities interests

BS.1 EIEREB(IHE - BEEE - 4I5F  #F Ut - 85)
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor needs, health,

culture, sport)

BS.2 EEIREMPRER(NEEIFH)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

54 AR %R
5.4 Contributing to the

Social Development
54 BRHERR

5.4 Contributing to the

Social Development
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Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 128 to 265, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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EAREITEE Key Audit Matters

PARETEZERSBBETENEEHE - ZAYE  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
02012 A3 B ILEENGSMEHEFET  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
RABENSEE ZEEHEAESETEER statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. These matters were
EUBmELMEEERRFETRIER - BETE  addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
HZEEHREEBNER - statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREIEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BUCRERER G

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,236 million and provision
for impairment of approximately RMB4.11 million.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days. Management
performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the trade receivables and the sufficiency of provision for
impairment based on information including credit profile of
different customers, ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected
timing and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward looking information that
may impact the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses for
the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL") requires
significant estimates and judgements, including determination
of whether there is significant increase in credit risk, use of
models and assumptions in determination of probability of
default, incorporation of forward-looking information.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBFTUMEERRENSR

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 included:

- Understanding and evaluating the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and monitor
its credit risk, and validating the control effectiveness
on a sample basis;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 to
the underlying financial records and subsequent
settlements;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

-  Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy
and completeness, and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the expected credit
losses.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit
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Key audit matter

BREETEE

Fair value of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

BEAVEFARMEZEKRE ZREARENDFE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income ( “FVTOCI™) of
approximately RMB402 million.

The equity instruments at FVTOCI are within the scope of IFRS
9 and measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The Group irrevocably elected to present subsequent
changes in fair value of the equity investments at FVTOCI in
other comprehensive income.

We identified equity investments at FVTOCI as a key audit
matter due to the measurement of fair value requires
significant estimates and judgement, including determination
of model adopted, inputs and assumptions adopted, which
could give a material impact to the fair value measured.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENETNAEERRETSR

Our procedures in relation to management s valuation of
the equity instrument at FVTOCI included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuers;

-  Evaluating the methodologies used by the valuers in
their valuation of the equity investment at FVTOCI;

- Evaluating the management s future cash flow
forecasts and the process by which they were drawn
up and compared the inputs data used in the cash
flow forecasts against the historical figures;

- We challenged the key assumptions including
revenues growth rates in the cash flow forecasts by
comparing them to historical result, economic and
industry performance; and

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reasonableness of the input data provided by
management.
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



REERERBNEAT BEREWLERY
AMGREVBRRNETRAHEER - AMBEKE
REAEH BFERBMREPHEAZEF
A ﬁ%#xifixi%ﬁ?n ARRABBEZEFER X
ERmERNERLT  MRAEEHEEETRSE
¢%@%$E%W%EE&%@@E$M@%ﬂ
& BERETEERETEBZER -

HEARBYIZEBMRENETBEEARARRKRE
B4 IEBERIEAP06735 °

MR TTMEERERAF

X BT
)
E/J\ /J\

KX A EH1018

202193 A9H

'f
BY X BEN R 5

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Lock Kwong Hang, Simon with practising
certificate number: P0O6735.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

9 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EFE2020F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

__.-{'_J//

2020 20194

B aE AR®T T ARETFT

2020 2019

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

& Revenue 6 10,044,313 12,958,692

HERK A Cost of sales (7,799,717) (9,512,770)

EF Gross profit 2,244,596 3,445,922
H W A RE At (E51E),/ Other income and other net (loss)/

W Faa gain 7 136,207 138,523
DI REERY Distribution and selling expenses (353,683) (366,263)
1T M B X2 Administrative and other expenses (356,845) (668,112)
HAELE KB ARIAUWEE Gain on deemed disposal of a

) subsidiary 40,850 -
T 9T K FA B A AR Research and development costs (590,471) (329,242)
BAFEF A NBRZEREE Fair value change on financial asset
NEEE) at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") (3,978) =
FE(L —fEHs & A Bl A Share of profit from an associate 4,505 _
B A Bk X Finance costs 8 (104,560) (100,528)
BR 75 Al 2 A Profit before taxation 1,016,621 2,120,300
TSR Income tax expense 9 (113,765) (378,019)
F RS F Profit for the year 10 902,856 1,742,281
Hib2m(FX) ke Other comprehensive (expense)
income
B TEEH T HEEER Item that will not be reclassified to profit
IHH : or loss:
BAFEFAEMEEYEZ  Fair value loss on equity instruments
AT Az AT EEE at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") (279,531) (1,119,292)
AEEZMMRELEEE Total comprehensive income for the
year 623,325 622,989
TNEE TR ET] - Profit attributable to:
S N/NEIE DN — Owners of the Company 772,167 1,462,974
— IR AR R A - Non-controlling interests 130,689 279,307
902,856 1,742,281
TH&FFEMAREEZ2EYZ Total comprehensive income for the

MEE year attributable to:

. WNETE =N — Owners of the Company 492,636 343,682

— IR R - Non-controlling interests 130,689 279,307

623,325 622,989
I EF Earnings per share 13
EXRES(ARE) Basic and diluted (RMB) 0.37 0.70
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020912531 H
As at 31 December 2020

20205 20194
B aE ARET T AREFTT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EREBEE Non-current Assets
eI Y Property, plant and equipment 15 5,431,745 4,608,674
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 752,591 690,518
EBEWE WS NRE 2B Prepayments for purchase of
KIE property, plant and equipment 187,879 172,027
R—EBERR 2R Interests in an associate 17 178,030
EmEE Intangible assets 18 61,320 70,202
BAFEFAEMEEEE  Equity instruments at FVTOC
AT A 20 402,177 668,708
BAFEFABIZZE®MEE Finandial asset at FVTPL 21 15,799 =
FEEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 22 56,360 53,984
EES Goodwill 23 123,420 123,420
7,209,321 6,387,533
REBEE Current Assets
FE Inventories 24 878,046 981,472
TEHERBZME Properties for sale 25 2,740,757 2,605,832
B 5 R EAMEWEIE Trade and other receivables 26 1,727,219 1,703,469
BHEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 27 290,788 309,241
RITEHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 27 4,275,728 2,943,792
9,912,538 8,543,806
REBAE Current Liabilities
B 5 REMERNFKIE Trade and other payables 28 4,252,985 3,559,802
BE Borrowings 29 1,406,650 510,600
MIEEE Tax liabilities 47,044 87,395
HEAE Lease liabilities 30 4,827 4,795
PRIEW A Deferred income 31 19,569 23,444
5,731,075 4,186,036
REBEEFEE Net Current Assets 4,181,463 4,357,770

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 129

Y

i

2\



mEBRRR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020912531 H
As at 31 December 2020

_..-/'.-////
20204 20194F
Bi5E AR¥T T AREETIT
2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERARBAR Total Assets less Current Liabilities 11,390,784 10,745,303
EARR#E Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 32 200,397 200,397
EE Reserves 8,341,909 7,679,622
RAEIHE ANEERER Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 8,542,306 7,880,019
FEIE IR AR R M 2 Non-controlling interests 33 1,988,206 1,075,604
ERER Total equity 10,530,512 8,955,623
FREBER Non-current Liabilities
RIEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 22 78,749 58,929
Eg=y Borrowings 29 497,900 1,420,550
HEBE Lease liabilities 30 39,894 44,810
EEUTA Deferred income 31 243,729 265,391
860,272 1,789,680
11,390,784 10,745,303

F128E265 B 2 IR A RARLEZT 202143
AoB#bERIRETZE  WAHTIHIATREERE:

RER

Zhang Jianhong

EF

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to 265 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Zhang Zhefeng
EBEF

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

RAARREARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
BiFEH
A2 E fEREnE
hEzRA it S i 2R
Bt BBEE IRGE GRRRE  BARE 2GR i Bt REER N RRER L
MRETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Share
Equity held for
instruments Statutory ~ employee Non-
Share Share  atFVIOCI  Merger  Capita Safety ~ surplus  shareoption  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserves  reseve  resee  resee  reseve  scheme  eamings  Subdotal  interests Total
AMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBODO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOO
M) ) i) Ok (W) (B (B0 (W)
Pote3)  (oted)  Moreb)  Mloted  Moted)  (Noted)  (otef)  (otedl)
HgE1F1R At1 January 2019 00397 12494 nm) (3.0 195,790 141 %2016 585459 83606 10958 93199
EREH Prftforthe year . . . . . 46091 TR0 9T 174
BOTETAAMAANEZRETEZR Farvalueloss on equiy
TEER instiuments at FYTOC) . - 199) . . - M - (11929
TERREYaE Toel compehensive income o
the year - - (11929 - - 1462974 368 1930 62299
BOTEFAZHATREZRATANR Tinderof devecogniion of
BRETER equiy nstruments at V00 5 - 31108 - - - . (31,008 - - -
& Transter - - - - - 104 298853 (2568%) 104 60 1,106
EERREHETERRD Putches o shaes nder
employee share options - - - - - (168897 - (168897 - (16889
HRhREE Captl contrbuton from o
controllng inferests e - - - - - - 39200 39200
2ftke Dhidends pad 5 S S S S S (63418 (632418) - R
KEENBLACARIRE Didends pic by subsidares of
the Group - - - - - - - (%) (19856
H9EnANAR At31 December 2019 andat 1
H00E1A1A January 2020 00397 124924 (1160995 (322100 195790 397 120869  (168897) 6396154 7880019 1075604 895563
ERET Proftfor the year - - - - - - M6 T 13068 902856
BOTEAEGRAAGIRETAZD Favale oss onequiy
TEgR instruments at FVTOCI - - (s - - - - () - (s
TERRENA0E Totel comprehensive ncome o
the year - - (53 - - - - - TIal6T 492636 130689 613325
& Tianser - - - - - 86 9%6% - (9869 836 25 1101
EREREREE T EERN Putchese o shaes nder
employee share options - - - - - - (54,640) - (o440 - o4k
BHRRR IR -EHBATZEN Acouistion o addiond inteests
Eillio) ina subsidayfom nor-
controllng nferest (Note g) - - - - - - (8653 (86,653  (144061)  (30714)
EaLE-HNELADIER Deemed prtal dspose ofnerest
ina subsidiary - - - - - - - BEA3 T3 L ATT06 1985849
EAte-HiENT Deeme diposdl ofa subsiday - - - - - - - - - )
Biiks Dividends paid - - - - - - - (428035)  (428035) - (n803)
FEEMENAR RS Dividends paid by subsdaisof
the Group - - - - - - - - (166 (222,166)
HO0ENANA At 31 December 2020 00397 124924 (1440506) (322100 195,790 4803 1319563 (223531) 7293082 854306 198,206 10530512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EFE2020F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI reserves

The equity instruments at FVTOCI reserves comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the end of
the reporting period.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
Capital reserve

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HKS$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15
November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of
new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.

The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the
corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital
reserve.

Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"), some the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside an amount of safety reserve at
progressive rates from 0.5% to 4% of the total revenue from the sales of hazardous
chemical. The reserve can be utilised for the spending in improvements and
maintenances of work safety on the Group’s daily operations, which are considered
expenses in nature and charged to the profit and loss as incurred.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China ("PRC") and the
relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not
required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may
be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to
increase capital by means of conversion.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group further acquired 36% of the
equity interests of Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd. (“Union Property”),
from the minority shareholders. As at 30 December 2020, Union Property became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥T T AREBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ReETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PR Al A Profit before taxation 1,016,621 2,120,300
AEIER : Adjustments for:
Eﬁﬂu Interest paid 104,560 100,528
117 3R B IR Bank deposits interest income (63,422) (37,349)
?E/Al@p‘l')\ﬁ{ﬂiﬁuﬁl $27BE  Dividend received from equity instruments at
PRART A 2 BREBKA FVTOC (7,200) (10,800)
BIEW AN IR Realisation of deferred income (21,095) (23,734)
(#E),/ HREZEYFERE (Reversal of)/recognition of impairment on
trade receivables (120) 1,379
ME - WERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 639,354 552,653
B E Amortisation of intangible assets 17,231 14,692
FREESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 24,686 22,768
(Bm),/ MEEE (Reversal of)/Write-down of inventories (1,591) 10,577
'EH%%% - IR R ERE (Gain)/Loss on disposals of property, plant
=),/ B8 and equipment (4,089) 17,594
Jtﬁﬁn/uﬁiﬂﬁfﬁufi\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁuﬁl Loss on de-recognition of equity instruments
w2 BRAT AR EE at FVTOCI - 2,446
&R B QRN Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (40,850) =
AT ABR T A Eesgy  Fair Value Change on FVTPL 3,978 .
DG — RSB AN T % T Share of profit from an associate (4,505) _
HEFEREEE Y IS Gain on disposal of right-of-use asset (3,297) _
PEEFEE RS Loss/(Gain) on disposal of intangible assets 161 (948)
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets = 5,630
BRI - e RRERE Reversal of impairment of property, plant and
equipment - (3,128)
LBECEPRICKERERE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 1,660,422 2,772,608
FERD Decrease in inventories 90,731 114,672
BoREMBWZTIEGEM), B (ncrease)/decrease in trade and other
receivables (113,698) 262,882
EHERG 2 ERWEGEM),H4 (ncrease)/decrease in properties under
development for sale (134,925) 427,806
B 5N H b e IEE Increase in trade and other payables 274,560 32,638
RATEEWMEZIRESIEI,CRL)  Increase/(decrease) in deposits from pre-sale of
properties 611,525 (806,001)
IEIEU A IZ N Increase in deferred income 14,957 5,151
KEFSRE Cash generated from operations 2,393,572 2,809,756
SRS M IEIF Income taxes and withholding tax paid (133,007) (479,455)
RETHMERSEE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,260,565 2,330,301
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FERTRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Z 20201231 B IFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥T T AREBTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
REZE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEYE - MR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,735,378) (1,486,819)
HEME  HWELREMERE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and 30,039 88,359
equipment
THEREEE Payment for right-of-use assets (145,733) (109,892)
REFEREEEMSIA Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets 18,417 -
%E’\ﬁﬁ/ S B Purchase of intangible assets (19,386) (12,841)
HEETEEMSHKIEA Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets - 5,502
AR Interest received 63,422 37,349
BRAFEFAEM 2R 2 KB Dividend received from equity instruments at 7,200 10,800
RITEZREWA FVTOC|
HERNTESF AR 2 E a2 Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at 100,000 13,949
AT ARFSHRIE FVTOC|
H&Eﬁ}ﬁ”&ﬁ@ﬁ)\ﬁ%%@”&éZﬂﬁ Payment for acquire of equity instruments at (116,000) (3,000)
RIAZRH FVTOC|
B RRITIFRETF IR Proceeds from pledged bank deposits 18,453 53,892
WAL E BB A 7%@%@;‘”’%& Net cash outflow from deemed disposal of a (94,858) =
JFEE subsidiary
m—fEEERREE Capital injection to an associate (100,000) =
B —fEH A m U R B Dividend received from an associate 14,100 =
REZEFABRESEE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,959,724) (1,402,701)
MEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEEE Borrowings raised 848,000 1,182,600
BEEE Repayments of borrowings (757,755) (1,333,897)
1@5B%MEJQJIETE%;M%EHM Payment on purchase of shares under
employee share option scheme (54,640) (168,897)
Eﬁﬂ B Interest paid (104,560) (100,528)
XHHEERE Repayments of lease liabilities (4,884) (2,459)
BARE Dividends paid (428,035) (632,418)
2 M IR IR R X 2 IR A Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (222,166) (298,556)
mIEE AR s B — R B A AR Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiary
BBIMER from non-controlling interests (230,714) =
IR R ERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 1,985,849 39,200
METEME (A REFE NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 1,031,095 (1,314,955)
R RERBESWEAEM, (H4)  NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
= CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,331,936 (387,355)
FOREREFREEA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,943,792 3,331,147
FRESRZERAELER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR
Al - Represented by:
SRITHEBNIRS Bank balances and cash 4,275,728 2,943,792




0\.
=R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—REH
REEBEBRAR(ARRE ) RH200657H
LARHAEHETMRIARBRERA
7] - HFEMorEEAIAP.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands © 7K
REIMRD B2007F 12108 REBBHME
RHGFAAR AR EMR L -

AR H—EREZEBR AT » ARF R EH
BAR(AHEIAKEDEENERE - D
MEER D FIHE - Al HLBEE-R
Rkt - BREZE(TPVC]) RGEm AR E fth
BAN s AERETEFEARKMB((HE])
HeEMEFHE -

RAMBMRARNR B REMB AR 26
EBARBE(TARE D27 -

FE R 3T R] R ARMAE R] 2 B FR B %
HER ([ EPRM IR E 2
a1

(a) FAZSEEEEIRHIE AV EIEET BB
Pt R 22 A

RAFEE  AEEC B RERR2020F
1718 8z 1% 5 HA A 58 il A= 35 0 B
R 745 st 5 22 B b R S AR 2R O R Y
BRI R T B R & EREE R HEM
RRERT BRI MG R - ARELAR
SENEAMBEHRE

ARG AR RRARGH AR EACER
(Bi1%)

BRM RS RN (B A 3 W

ARMHREENSOY BRGENE ARRENE
ORI HREEAER(ETA)

1.

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale
of polymers, organic silicone, refrigerants and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others. In addition,
the Group is also engaged in property development in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

(@) Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
and the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform
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2. ERFE REBE 2BIBRME

s 22 A ([ B PR 35 3R 5 28
A1) (&)
(a) FAZE B IR HI 4 R H ISR EIRE

PR S 22 R ()

BR TPt SN - NAFERER 2 B
PARE RS R R B IR R A AV (B
7] M B R BIBR B R iR 5 R A B AR SR 8
RS HARE ROB A EARE eV BA T AROR B R IR
R/ SZEGAP BRI 2 REE
R EBERTE

() FEREREFENZS1RRERS
AFERESR (BT R [ERZE
e Z
RAEE - AEBERERBRF
S EAFE VR R ER G ERE
BSR(ERTAN) - BRI RERIEH
FEVER - HIBRMHER - #HRIR
MEEMEM AT AR EEHRER
EERAMBRR]IE-BKBENET
REAEEANZEMHRREHR
BRRERSER CMIEERHE
HZRE - AIZERBEK] - &
AINMESERRMEHRRNEE
N BEHRORREHOEE X

EE(ESXEEMENES
&) °

RAREE  BRZFETTEYH
AEEZ G EMBRRELELE

2. Application of new and amendments

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the

current year had no material impact on the Group's financial

positions and performance for the current and prior years

and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

(i)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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s 22 A ([ B PR 3 3R 5 2
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(a) FAZSEFEEEIR M)A AV IS ET BB
PR S 22 R ()

2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

(i) FEABEREEREIHE ST R) (ii) Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3
[EBrzERI2HE Definition of a Business

RAREE  AEBEREAZE
B5] - ZFERIBBE  BEER
BEAAEH B-HEEAH
AR EEBAELTNAER
BRET - PTIE R —EEE &
BEELABR-—ARAR R

HEVBED - T EWARIESRTS -

ZEEBAMBEHSE2EERTH
BENEUR MR KM T ARBIE
R BEREELONGE - ZFE
FIIRSI ABIMES|  AREER
SOEGELBRE -

BESN  RFERTSIA—BAEE
PR ARFEAKEN—H
AR EERE R ARBET
BCRPfl - RIFATE SR
HWMAKBHNEEENEX
BB R A &P R EE R #
BES—HBUEES  RIMK
B —HEEHREELIF—IHE
%o RAGNBEETERERS
;kERBREEB - EXERBEE
FELEHAERENTERELN
BE- A RENXZELEEER
LRAZATEST AR -

RAER  BARSETTEY
AEEZRANBHRELVE -

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments clarify that
while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not
required for an integrated set of activities and assets
to qualify as a business. To be considered a business,
an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs.
The amendments also introduce additional guidance
that helps to determine whether a substantive process
has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. Under the optional concentration
test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to
apply the optional concentration test is available on
transaction-by-transaction basis.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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(iii) P& P B PR B 7 3R 5 2E B BB 9 5%

2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

(iii) Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 9,

B & 52 Bl 553055 I B R B 7% 3R
HREAUBE7R(BITR) [RREXE
BEIZHE

RAFE AEEEREAZE
ER] - R FEFELEEH RS
FHRE S BEBAN R ELENE S
BN A X RS IEE S
HMTARBRIMNERERELE
RIEERAUDEFINITEZ
m e RASEERE TSR
HEER XK@ ZFETERN
SEBRE -

RAFE  BRAZSETTEY
REE GANEREELYE -

138 REKEBRAE —Z2ZTFFR

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments modify
specific hedge accounting requirements to allow hedge
accounting to continue for affected hedges during
the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or
hedging instruments affected by the current interest
rate benchmarks are amended as a result of the on-
going interest rate benchmark reform. The amendments
are relevant to the Group given that it applies hedge
accounting to its benchmark interest rate exposures.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. Application of new and amendments

to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

7N
RTIEHEE
MG FEEN
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
BBR A 5 5 RSB 1 755, Rig & L RBRER 20231 A1H
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
BN B F5 R 5 A R S 165k (BRI AR A ERRSEEZEES TR 202066 A1H
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BRI SRS R FE 3R (BT A) BSER 2 Rt 2022F1 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB B FS R 5 RIS 05 - BR g3 /‘EEH‘J M EEERE -F R 202151 A1H

253057 - BEUBRBI M ERIE 7R -
K%Eﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%&%
ZERZE 1655 (1BFTA)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

BIPR B s s 22 A 2B 105% M BIRR &a
BIIZE 285k ({ERTAN)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BIPR & et 2RI 15 (IEF] AN)
Amendments to IAS 1

Bl &t R 1658 (18R] A)
Amendments to IAS 16

BIFR & etERIZE 379 (18R] )
Amendments to |AS 37
BIPR B s s 2R (1B FTA)

Amendments to IFRSs

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

KEEHHBENANEECE R EELHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

BESEARBDEBIERBAR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

M - BE NRE—BEREN CFTSIE

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

BEEH-—BIT—HEKH IR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BB Bt 765 S 25 Y 1201 8 2020 F B AR F /E 2K
E

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018 — 2020

1 January 2021
el R HETE 2 B 2B

A date to be
determined

202317318
1 January 2023
20229F1 318
1 January 2022

2022F1 A1H
1 January 2022

20221 A1H

1 January 2022
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the directors anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

() Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
The amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19
related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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2. Application of new and amendments

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

(i)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 Leases if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on

the Group's financial position and performance as the
Group does not intend to apply the practical expedient.
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

(ii) Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
The amendments:

- update a reference in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued
in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
instead of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2010 issued in October 2010);

- add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
IFRIC 21 Levies, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

- add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to
business combinations for which the date of acquisition
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

(iii) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
relate to the modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting
requirements and disclosure requirements applying
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to accompany
the amendments regarding modifications and hedge
accounting.

- Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. A practical
expedient is introduced for modifications required
by the reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted for
by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current
IFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying IFRS 16;
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
(iii) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and

IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
(Continued)

Hedge accounting requirements. Under
the amendments, hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships
(and related documentation) are required to be
amended to reflect modifications to the hedged
item, hedging instrument and hedged risk.
Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting,
including effectiveness requirements; and

Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures
in order to allow users to understand the nature
and extent of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed
to and how the entity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark
rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

(ivy Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
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venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2. Application of new and amendments

to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

(v)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

- specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not
test compliance until a later date; and

- clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2020, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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2. Application of new and amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

(vi) Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018 - 2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or the lender on the other's behalf.

IFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the
illustration of reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to remove any
potential confusion.

IAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by
removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to

have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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3. Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by International Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income at
the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or IAS 17 (before application of IFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

- the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

- the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract liability relating to the same contract are accounted for

and presented on a net basis.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.
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The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

- the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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A
3. FESTEER(E) 3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
HE(E) Leases (Continued)
HESEE) Lease liabilities (Continued)
AEBERHEBBRNGEUBEARRKFTES The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
REIER - consolidated statement of financial position.
M SRS T RB A D A% & [0 R Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
BFEYAEA - RIHEDR Fmﬂﬁfﬁ ° FTB lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
HtwBHESEAKEHE - to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
CEHENFNHERANRE R EAER AR Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
Yo MR B R EEREE B 25 straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
EEEESKENRAEELBIBRIN o & systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
BHEELCHNATESRESBREER AR which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
X o Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
hig Foreign currencies
HESEREBEE BN IEHRERR - UZE In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
NI B AN B (BN ) ETH entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
R IR 5 B Bi R E A IE 18R - ek Hf currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
K LVNESHERME®BIER YR E BRER rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
[EXEHIHE o the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date.
EEERIEE NEAREERIEEMELS Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
BIEEN =5 - RESRRTERPER - and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights
Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

- the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

- substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

-  exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

- sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash- generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 169




ma

by 2 e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2020F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

FEREHRE A HRIRAR AN B ] S 37 FE A
BIREDER ° AR IEFIERE 7]
I FERETFENGTHEERA G T
PR B HETT 5 6 P A0 FR YRR

EHERB 2 M

EHERBRZRTIMERIEHER R 2 HRE
MEDBERRBEE - WIRRA R 7] # IR F
BEPREZEIR KABFEIHMBANEER
VEFREKAR - MEFREBRABIERENX
K BERAKE ST HRENMCZEERA
MAZHREE 2 ERBIERAN - HHEEHE
BB BAIRATIRA I FIEEE -

AERFEEERRARER ZERK - MR
EAHERS RIEMRTRA -

FHERGZERRMAGZME HERME
REKRREREFERERR W

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under development
for sale are classified as current assets and carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs for the properties.
Development costs of properties comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable costs incurred during
the development period. Cost of each unit in each phase of
development is determined using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables which are initially measured
in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. EEFFBER(E) 3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

- Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below) invest income are included in
the “other income” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments at FVTOC!

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the equity instruments at FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will continue
to be held in the equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and
cash which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime EGL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at each
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the

Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition when contractual payments are more

than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.



3. FESFBER(E)
EREE(E)
SRAERE ()

(iii)

EEBIEDMEE
TREEE-BERULEH(HZER
BEMGAARAKRRESREBKNTNZE)
BERBRKEERE SREEERE
BERENZEEEEAE TIIEMAE
REIE

— BOUASERANEARMEEREE

— ERAH - MEHOIEBEM

- BERANERARBBERAM
BRENLER S IR A M@ E
FARTERATERITERN
B

— fERAK A REPE A E S H (B

BER X

- BREREEMNAEMSEMBHE
HmHEK -

mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

- Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grant are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.



3. TESFEHE(E)

BEEHN

EHRAEMRMESER

R B E A R 8 R RS R TR Y
WEMNARBE S - IBERAEREREHNG
WHERSHAX - RIESBEBREM RS ER
BRFAFEEERNF AR -

EBREX MR EEEER - BERF RN
TERFZ FRERBRERFAE -

BEMEREERMNERNEEZASER
BEEZHmE B HMAREREGERFIEL
MEETARRR SR L HREFE - AR
K MEMREFAEELENBEREENE
MEBNERER S BERMEREE
AIZ SR A 7S H A B B R B B R
SN0

mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefit

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any
changes in the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another IFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee Share Option Scheme

Shares purchased under the Employee Share Option Scheme
are initially recognised in equity (share held for Employee Share
Option Scheme) at fair value of consideration paid including the
transaction costs at the date of purchase.

The fair value of services received from employees determined by
reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant date is
expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in employee share-based compensation
reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for Employee Share
Option Scheme and the amount recognised in employee share-
based compensation reserve is transferred to retained profits.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

Provision of ECL of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade and other
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments and unlisted Put Option, amounting
to RMB402,177,000 (2019: RMB668,708,000) and RMB15,799,000
(2019: Nil) respectively are measured at fair value with fair value
being determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2020, a deferred tax asset of RMB56,360,000
(2019: RMB53,984,000) in relation to certain deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2017 for a period
of two years till October 2019 and further renewed for a period
of two years till October 2021. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority upon
the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2021 at insignificant
cost. In addition, the directors of the Company assess the
impairment of the exploration rights by estimating the recoverable
amount of the assets. The carrying amount of exploration rights
at 31 December 2020 is RMB16,885,000 (2019: RMB16,885,000)
and no impairment was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB5,630,000). Further details are disclosed
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB123,420,000 (2019: RMB123,420,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 23.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 29, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

TRMIENEE (a) Categories of financial instruments
20204 20194F
AR¥T T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
TREE Financial assets
HEERN AT RN REE Financial assets at amortised cost 6,116,192 4,778,844
BAFEFAEMEZEWEZ  Equity investments at FVTOCI
RAIRE 402,177 668,708
BAVEFABZMERMEE  Finandal asset at FVTPL 15,799 -
6,534,168 5,447,552
TEAE Financial liabilities
BEER R Amortised cost 3,866,250 3,592,297
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, equity instruments at FVTOCI,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar "USS") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

BE aE
Assets Liabilities
20204 20194 20204 20194F
ARETRT AREFTT AR¥TRT AR®TRT
2019 2019 2019 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT uss$ 348,669 512,144 8,132 5,589

R2020812A318 - M ARBE X
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Bigmfig A/ THBRARKE
34,053,00070 (20194 = TB&,/ EFt
AR #50,660,0007T) © EFEE AR
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At 31 December 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB34,053,000 higher/lower (2019: RMB50,660,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated bank
balances and cash and trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate borrowings (see note 29 for details
of these borrowings). At 31 December 2020, 10.45%
(2019: none) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, and variable-rate
borrowings.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate arising from the
Group's RMB borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
borrowings at variable rates. The Group manages its
interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2019: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2019: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,279,000 (2019: RMB1,448,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2019: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would decrease/increase by RMB3,198,000 (2019:
RMB3,621,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and trade receivables represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all bank balances
were deposited in reputable financial institutions and were
hence without significant credit risk. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. Credit sales are made to selected customers
with good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that outstanding trade receivables are collected on
a timely basis. Trade receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss
rates are based on the historical payment profiles of sales
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

The credit quality of the other receivables excluding
prepayments has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default rates and
financial position of the counterparties. The directors are of
the opinion that the credit risk of other receivables is low
due to the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them. The directors believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding balance of
other receivables as of 31 December 2020 and 2019.



mEMBRERME .
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. EXEREMERREEER
RBUR (&)
(b) MERSEEBERERE)

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. The
Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB2,460,250,000 (2019:
RMB2,205,450,000). Details of which are set out in note 29.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

#2020
AR 1A3A
mETEHE 1ER R 1838R  3fAREIE 1F55F  RERELE WIREE
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 3 months to Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1year 5 years cash flows 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20205128318 31 December 2020
BAREMERZE Trade and other payables - 1378639 605,758 772,658 57850 2814905 2814905
i Borrowings
-&8 - Fixed rates 3.72% 100,326 300 99,000 - 199,626 199,000
-38 - variable rates 4.87% 259117 9,500 993,123 501,654 1,763,394 1,705,550
1,738,082 615,558 1,864,781 559,504 4,777,925 4,719,455
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5. EXAERRMEEKBEEBE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) MERREEEZERBER(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REE 2 RFRE R (E) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
R019%
AEHR 128318

MEFHH= 1AAR 1BAR 3EARIE 1EE5F HeNERE MERE
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETRE ARETRL ARETR

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 3 months to Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months 1 year 5 years cash flows 2019

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2019F12831R 31 December 2019
BARABENTE Trade and other payables - 1468939 810653 405475 8179 UBU 27BAUS
B8 Borrowings

-%8 - variable rates 415% 7778 17,545 681,102 1339091 2,045,516 1931,150

1476717 828,198 1,086,577 1387270 4,718,762 4,664,3%
(c) EMIAEMNAFEE (c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

PRI ERERN  AEESLS ST Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at
BIRNTFEEHE o fair value for financial reporting purposes.
TG AFER  AEBFERAIEMS In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
RS - (NEVRE - A observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
B AAREFEESE =S ERBREER 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
HITEE - TRIBHEBUNABTRE qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The following
SREENAEENEER - table gives information about how the fair values of these

financial assets are determined.
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5. EXEREMBEKREEBE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
RBER (48) objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) EMITENAFEFTE(E) (c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

FUBRBABE
HATEZHR
tREE RT5BEHATE AVE RERTRBRE A\ BE EXATTEEBAYE B/ B%
Fair value as at Sensitivity/
relationship of
20205 2019%F unobservable
Valuation technique and inputs to
Financial assets 2020 2019 Fair value key inputs Significant unobservable inputs fair value
ARBTR ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BATEFARMS FEMRARE- FETRFRE- £=E WAFE-HBRRERELER BRE LEERRAELEETEHAE IMEFHERRA
ERERARAT 402177 668,708 REGRRERRER ERRRRA /R THEARE - N RERZ T
& BRIREE 2 BBRRE T11.65%Z13.56%(2019%F : M F97%ZE TTHBRAIE -
BENRE - 14.8%) ° ATESS R
Z TR
RETERREMETHRE  KZREEH
BUEMETHRFERERRESE
ABMEET * £206%(2019F : 15%F
206%)
Equity instruments Unlisted equity Unlisted equity ~ Level 3 Income approach - discounted  Discount rate, taking into account the cost The lower the WACC
at Fv1oCI instruments - instruments - cash flow method was of equity (COE)/weighted average cost of or discount for
402,177 668,708 used to capture the present capital (WACC) determined using a Capital f control
value of the expected future Asset Pricing Model, ranging from 11.65% to \ack? Sl
economic benefits to be 13.56% (2019: 9.7% 10 14.8%). WELIE
derived from the ownership fair value, and
of this investee, based onan - Discount for lack of marketability, determined vice versa.
appropriate discount rate. by a number of research studies including
restricted stock studies by independent
valuer, was 20.6% (2019: 15% to 20.6%).
BRATEFABRN fTEERIA TER =R BRZ-REEE—EETE  ME REBZHERRAILOTEIREMEY FXHE AT
SRBE —SEEmREEE RETENSRTSHE REMRET - R281% RN
15,799 HEER - RESENT TR
ERMREMET
KiE - RETALRARCHERNARRE REEA - OF
A EUSRERNHERREDRNFE EHE Rz
REZRE  R4s%- TRER ©
Financial assets at Derivative financial N/A  Level 3 Black-Scholes model - Interest rate, based on the yield curve of China  The lower the
FVTPL instruments mathematical model for Sovereign Curve as of valuation dates, of interest rate,
- unlisted Put the dynamics of a financial 2.81%; the higher the
Option - market containing derivative fair value and
15,799 investment instruments, vice versa;
based on an appropriate
interest rate and the Volatility, estimated based on annualised The higher the
volatility. standard deviation of daily stock price return volatility, the
of comparable companies for the period higher the fair
before valuation date and with similar time value and vice
span as time to expiration, of 44.8%. versa.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

instruments (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

RAFETA

BRAFETA Hih2EUREH

BENERMEE BAETAE

ARETT ARETTT

Financial asset of Equity instruments

FVTPL at FVTOCI

RMB'000 RMB'000

7201941 A18 At 1 January 2019 - 1,801,394
s (B1E) Total gains (losses):

— R EA 2R EE — in other comprehensive income - (1,119,292)
BE Purchases = 3,000
HE Disposals - (16,394)
20198128318 K HR2020F1 818 At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January

2020 - 668,708
PR H 52 0m HARE Grant of put option 19,777 =
s (e ) Total gains (losses):

—REMEEkE — in other comprehensive income - (279,531)

—REx — in profit or loss (3,978) =
EE Purchases = 116,000
RAELE B AR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary - (3,000)
HE Disposals = (100,000)
R2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 15,799 402,177
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6. WKk oEER 6. Revenue and segment information
WESEREERMEEEEHIRE - Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

6.1 Wz 6.1 Revenue
FREEFPAHWEDI Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for
the year:
LIER LIS a
Chemical Property
products development Total
2020F 2019% 20205 2019% 20205 2019%
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ARBTR ARETT ARRTR ARETR ARRTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMB'00O RMBOOO  RMB'00O RMBO00

ERBBRKES Types of goods or service
HENTEm Sales of chemical product
BAFHE Polymers 3,191,941 3432978 - - 3,191,941 3432978
LR Refrigerants 2,066,120 267789 - - 2,066,120 267789
Y i Organic silicone 2,453,749 2,686,292 - - 2,453,749 2,686,292
8RR PVCRER Dichloromethane PYC and
liquid alkali 1,224,183 1,505,076 - - 1,224,183 1,505,076
8,935,993 10,302,236 - - 8,935,993 10,302,236
p-v S S Other operations 383,202 804,156 - = 383,202 804,156
FEyE Property development - S 725,118 1,852,300 725,118 1,852,300
ek Total 9,319,195 11,106,392 725,118 1852300 10,044,313 12,958,692
HELLIER Sale of chemical products
HEEY o W (KRG ER A Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
HEMIB) NERPHABEYERIE the sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in time
SIS ERERER  —RAED when customers have control of the promised goods, which
ERXNEFPMEFEEMAEMHER - is generally the time when goods are delivered to customers

and customers have accepted the goods.
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6.1

6.2
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6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.1

6.2

Revenue (Continued)

Property development

Revenue from sale of completed residential properties is
recognised at a particular point in time. This is the time
when legal assignment is completed which is the time when
the customer has ability to direct the use of the property
and obtain substantial all of the remaining benefits of the
property. Deposits and instalments received from customers
prior to this revenue recognition point are included in
“Contract liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Operating Segments

The Group's operations are organised based on the different
types of products and property development. Information
reported to the board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker ("CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of products and property development.
This is the basis upon which the Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Polymers;

Refrigerants;

Organic silicone;

Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

Property development — development of residential
properties in Shandong and Hunan Province, the PRC.

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-
products of refrigerants segment, polymers segment,
organic silicone segment and dichloromethane, PVC
and liquid alkali segment.
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6. ko HER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 & DEB(E) 6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)
RNEFIRZRMELED IR zE & ¥4E The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
BT o results by reportable and operating segment.
HZ2020F12A31BLEE For the year ended 31 December 2020

8RR
BRI gRH i PVCR SRR mENE  AfEE bif i
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers  Refrigerants Silicone liquidalkali  development  operations Eliminations Total
ARETR  AR®Tn ARETR ARETR  ARETn ARETr  ARMTR  AREfR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e Extemnal sales 3191941 2066120 2453749 1,224,183 125118 383,202 - 10044313
DiEEE Intersegment sales - 147585 - 15434 - TS (2169019) -
BRGE-SBHE ool revenue - seqment
Tevenue 3191941 3541976 2453749 1,239,617 125118 1060927 (2,169,015  10,044313
B%E SEGMENT RESULTS 436,461 189,464 281,494 42,294 102,066 57,463 - 1109242
MRS Unalocated corporate expenses (29438)
B Finance costs (104,560)
REHE-FNE  Ganon deemed disposal of
N subsidiary 40,850
BOTEFARE  Farvelue change on financial aset
LEREEY AL
NTEES (3978
ME-TEBEDR  Share of profit fom an associate
L 4505
IRBRATAR Prof before tavaion 1016621
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6. Wmk o EBER(H)

6.2 REHER(4E)

HZE2019F12831HILEE

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

e £
ROTIE BRE BBE  nCRER  RENE EMER Hl et

Dichloromethane

Organic PCand  Propery Other

Pq}ymeLs Refn’g@ranﬂs Siicone iquid akal deve\qpmegt operations  Eliminatons Tow
MRETT ARETn ARETn  ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR
AMBI00 RMBO0O RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBI000 AMBI000 RMBO0O RMBO00
ihsE External sales 3432978 2677890 2686092 1505076 1852300 804,156 - 12958692
NUENRE Inter-seqment sles - 1708956 = 7648 = 818046 (2534650) =
BiG-H80% Total revenue - segment revenue 3430978 4386846 2686202 151274 182300 1622200 (2534650 12958692
%R SEGMENT RESULTS 460282 355,368 507410 256,788 357867 331,634 - 2009349
AR Unallocated corporate expenses [%85)
BEAA Finance cost (100528
el Proft before taxation 2120300

202

DESEBRELED RN AR MK
A BRI R RITHAAA - EEFH
EMBERAZBERT T EBEE
4 o LR ERRAZRIAERR
DREERRBFENFTEERR - BRERH
BERABEND BEMALIFMABEER
RAZWAEERD B MR B FHEEIA
B BMAEZINZFER -

D EEHHE IRIRITHE & -

REEBERIE —Z2-F2FFR

Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated other income, other
expenses and central administration costs, directors’ salaries,
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. No segment information on assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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W&o BER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EfgRpagE Entity-wide disclosures
ERRER EZED IR DIBRBE IR Information about revenue from polymers segment by
EEHREER products from external customers
2020 20194
2020 2019
ARBTR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B PO LI (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,694,148 1,760,017
NEA I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 172,724 306,684
NEIRT It Perfluorocyclobutane 79,243 61,842
B2 NG (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 445,359 471,189
R L) (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 493,020 554,170
FIZRB (FKW) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 172,381 152,364
1R %L 2 )% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 5,869 15,709
Hity Others 129,197 111,003
3,191,941 3,432,978
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6. Wmk D EBER(HE)

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
B () Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

EBRRERTEZEASBE OB RENIRES Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by

ol g products from external customers
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—@m— &R THCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 740,020 1,104,308
PO Z KT (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 148,715 236,828
ERLKE(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 15,530 39,606
R410a R410a 239,425 256,699
R142b R142b 147,942 222,892
R152a R152a 120,805 144,259
R32 R32 414,933 312,312
R507A R507A 17,200 2416
R407C R407C 16,825 14,301
HAt Others 204,725 344,269
2,066,120 2,677,890
EBRRERTEEREDEREINIREF Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by

Ry U & B products from external customers
2020 20194
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC(ZREEAIBESIRE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 18,479 131,543
1075 B 107 Silicone Rubber 1,228,615 1,196,166
£B Raw Vulcanizate 384,957 387,499
RIRIE Gross Rubber 246,175 191,890
REAKE Gaseous Silica 87,121 118,196
DMCIK &) DMC Hydrolysate 17,559 82,982
=HRESER Trimethylchlorosilane 132,209 173,562
RES — &k Methyldichlorosilane 7,686 22,023
R AEEDMC DMC Lineament 34,644 81,098
DZAGANGEE-S$:-{usiES-y o)) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 60 19
D3 D3 8,322 =
ZREMEH Dimethyl silicone oll 93,313 120,923
Hit Others 194,609 180,391
2,453,749 2,686,292
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
EfeRpEpE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
EERERDE2-S%R R PVCRIER D Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and
MR EIIREE WS E R liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 614,796 646,794
—E Rk Dichloromethane 170,088 275,788
el Liqui alkali 439,299 582,494
1,224,183 1,505,076
FHRRERSBEHMKE s BREAIIKE Information about revenue from other operations segment by
F =& R products from external customers
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
iz Methanol 38,949 305,495
HFCs(Eatix{ba ™) HFCs (hydro fluorocarbons) 35,261 166,700
AHF(EKBILE) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 3,013 7,800
FLE® Ammonium Bifluoride 49,695 54,478
T Hydrofluoric Acid 46,200 27,125
RE Bromine 48,949 56,359
PR Neutral glue 26,183 20,263
EAE Fluorgypsum 14,824 12,925
Hith Others 120,128 153,011
383,202 804,156
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6. MKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EfeRpEiE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
BERETERFREHR Information about major customers
A E2020F 201912 A31 8 IF R AEE#E There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
KA E —RP 7 NESE A EFAEERED over 10% of the total sales of the Group both years ended 31
10%LA | o December 2020 and 2019.
hEE R Geographical information
NEFEKEINKRERE Z WRIEE P[RS The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical
FORNE location of customers is detailed below:
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
s PRC 8,498,807 10,986,136
oM (BreR BISI) Asia (except PRC)
— A= — Japan 267,938 440,049
— 8 ~ South Korea 363,054 267,186
—HE - India 60,895 46,013
— ¥ N - Singapore 18,648 39,473
— % ~ Thailand 30,439 37,390
— PR A A SR — United Arab Emirates 80,471 63,070
—EEins — Pakistan 33,143 33,522
—BREAEDR - Malaysia 36,281 35,182
— RS - Kuwait 14,779 20,041
— P ERHR(R - Saudi Arabia 6,821 3,190
—HIE e — Indonesia 13,227 9,417
— &3 — Israel 2,628 3,015
—JERE - Philippines 4,812 8,033
—#E - Viet Nam 25,491 29,183
—tHH ~ Turkey 62,817 45,741
— HAbEEZR — Other countries 15,636 12,640
NET Subtotal 1,037,080 1,093,145
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
EfeRpEpE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
thEE R Geographical information (Continued)
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EM America
— — United States of America 166,469 347,799
—BA — Brazil 56,440 182,030
— & F — Chile 1,548 1,993
—HMER — Other countries 39,752 49,667
INET Subtotal 264,209 581,489
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN Europe
— B XA ~ Italy 103,059 126,022
— - England 4,003 6,419
— & ~ Russia 11,301 16,912
— 2 - Germany 9,036 20,682
— £ - France 9,498 15318
— - Spain 2,638 5,405
— EE IR ~ Belgium 389 5,782
— K - Poland 3,603 9,009
—HMEHx — Other countries 37,274 2,009
INET Subtotal 180,801 207,558

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 207



‘}? mEMBRRME

E 2202012831 A LEF/Z
For the year ended 31 December 2020

S

6. Wmk D EBER(HE)

6.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

EfeRpEiE (&) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
EER (&) Geographical information (Continued)
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEM Africa
S ES — South Africa 15,930 33,556
—&Rk - Egypt 10,802 13,750
A= P EEL - Nigeria 22,486 26,530
—HMER — Other countries 4,851 6,210
INET Subtotal 54,069 80,046
HMBER, & Other countries/regions 9,347 10,318
10,044,313 12,958,692

FIEAKEZ ERBEEDMNRFTHE -

208

REEBERIE —Z2-F2FFR

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
Hitbp HER Other segment information
“ERR
BEATHHE ReH  HHE PCRER  BRUR  HRERE 5%
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Property Other
Polymers  Refrigerants  Silicone liquid alkali ~ development ~operations Total
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
2020 2020
n%  BERRENE Depreciation of property plant and equipment 174073 07329 112619 96,829 3358 45146 639354
ERELENE Depreciation of right-of use assets 5399 9630 4907 1,898 - 285 24686
A Amortisation of ntangible assets 12756 1,666 3% 1028 03 153 1731
BHMENEUE (E)/RE  (Reversal of impaiment on trade receivables 37 4 (1986) 35 1,044 7 (120
FRRRERA Research and development costs 237950 102437 180418 2,682 - 46984 5904M1
(BE)/HREg (Reversal of)/write-down of inventories - (7 803 (2,148) = (169)  (1,591)
HENF  RERRE Loss/lgain) on disposals of property, plant and
R/ &) equipment 4810 (1763 (4905) (1,316) 00 (L115)  (4089)
HERNERER Loss on disposalof intangible assets - - - - - - 161
HEFREEENG (Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (3,280) - - = = ) (3297
RATEANBEZEBEE  Fairvalue change on financial asset at FVTPL
AVEEY - - - - -39 378
BALE-BNBLRMME  Ganon deemed disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - (40850)  (40,850)
Bl —fi #%"NMJ Share of profit from an associate - - - - - (4505 (4505)
“§RR
BAFHH BRH  BRE CREE  FENE RbER g
Dichloromethane
Organic PVC and Property Other
Polymers  Refrigerants ~ Siicone liquid alkali ~ development  operations Total
ARETTL  ARETR ARETR ARBTL  ARBTR ARETT ARMTR
RMB000 RMBOOO  RMBI000 RMB000 RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMB(00
019§ 2019
N% BERRENE Depreciation of property plant and equipment 168021 13783 11672 75950 3495 BN 55683
FREAENE Depreciation o right-of use assets 5776 8268 494 1531 - 20600 2768
EYEERHE Amortisation of intangiole assets 11609 1539 41 799 101 603 14692
BHRUEA(RE)/BE  (Reversa of impaiment on trade receivables 0 (36) 1,265 () % 14 1379
FERFARRA Research and development costs M3 716 8410 745 - 9343 30942
HErs Wite-down of inventories - 6668 910 2% - 8410577
HENF  BRRRE Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant and
BE/ (&) equipment 174 8199 1) (0134 3o 175%
HERYEE G (Gain on disposal of ntangible assets = = = (49) = = (048)
% BERREHERD  Reversal of mpaiiment on property, plant and
equipment - B) - - - (3125) (3128)
EYAERE Impairment on intangible assets - - - - 5630 5630
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7. HEtiA R HE s FEE 7. Other income and other net gain
2020 20194
AR¥T R ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Hiug A Other income
g EED) Government grants (Note) 76,877 59,248
RITF T BHA Bank deposits interest income 63,422 37,349
RERAFEFAEMMEEWES  Dividend income received from equity
ZRART A Z R BMA instruments at FVTOCI 7,200 10,800
H A F2 WA Other interest income 6,564 581
EAitb Others 18,734 13,104
172,797 121,082
Hith(&518) W= FE Other net (loss)/gain
PEH ZREF5 Exchange difference, net (36,590) 17,441
136,207 138,523

MisE : BT EREMTERIMS - FEEHM

WHER BRI o 3% U B Rh I B R P A 1

s AREIR -

8. EE WA

Notes: The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research

activities which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to those government grants.

8. Finance costs

2020F 20194
ARBTR AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

alis! Interests on:
ARAFARIMEE ZRITER Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 102,354 98,074
HERE Lease liabilities 2,206 2,454
104,560 100,528

210 REEEERLAR —Z-ZFFRH
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9. FRIEHM=X 9. Income tax expense
2020 20194
AR%F T ARET T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ENHRFS 18 Current tax
PRI ERER ([ EEMER]) PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
—ERIFEE - Current year 95,820 294,207
—BERFEHBERE — Over provision in prior years (75,851) (97,340)
T IRE R ([ I ER ) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 15,918 18,798
35,887 215,665
BIERIR Deferred tax
—F BB AR DK ER 28 - Withholding tax for distributable
e profits of PRC subsidiaries 22,991 45,282
—HAth - Others 54,887 117,072
77,878 162,354
PS5 2 Income tax expense 113,765 378,019
BB HEBEERN TR B RS Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
NTIHRERRSRFE(E R R ER o IRiESD to the assessable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries established
BROEMERE(NCEMEREDRLE in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
FrEREEHIEN > PEEATNMRES (the "EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
25% (20194 : 25%) » B T EBER = the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%), except for
MEBLZHNPRMPBAT  IEZEH5%HE certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the Advanced-Technology
15%H B R BRI o Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a tax reduction from 25% to
15%.
B EEEREL Y HIER AR A EEIR Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
TRIRELE o prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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9. FEFMAX (&) 9. Income tax expense (Continued)
AREEHRERYHRGSBREEEMEEEA The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
MERBBRTE AN FAE IR T ¢ tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:
20204 20194
ARET T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AT A Profit before taxation 1,016,621 2,120,300
LA(25%) R FrS BB Rt E AFIIE Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
X i (Pt 5Ea) of (25%) (Note a) 254,155 530,075
REERETENEHNZE Effect of income taxed on concessionary
rate (79,955) (86,438)
PR RBIUW AR T IR R 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose (3,203) (1,620)
N HBH A OB IEE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 30,294 2,395
RERMIBEENTELE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised - 3,759
FIAR L AT AR FER I E BT IR Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
B previously not recognised (6,298) (297)
BT EHBEERHE Overprovision in respect of prior years (75,851) (97,340)
FEIM B AR D IREFAELETRIE  Deferred tax on distribution earnings of
(HMt&Eb) PRC subsidiaries (Note b) 22,991 45,282
T HIBER (i FEc) LAT (Note c) 15,918 18,798
THIRERNRIBERE Tax effect of LAT (3,980) (4,700)
Hitp Others (40,306) (31,895)
NEEHRIBRAEZ Tax expense for the year 113,765 378,019




9. FrEHiRAs ()

BiaE

(a)

5% B EEMERREEARRAIEMNBR
FIURREAEMBERAR(RERZ ] R
WRREBHHBEXERQR([BHAEE HF
BEEEAEHRRE - ILREBGAMMEER
AR(EEMA]) WRRESDFHHRAR
RARERHFD) - IWRREBEEM R
MAERARN(TREA#E]D RILVRRELTE
RAR(RECTDEAEHBER15% T
RECREEMRMEEER -

TR IR BB R B R B 15 48 BB A 25 L B B [2008)
F1RXM - PEIEIEE2008F 1 A1 ARATES
SEAF RS - BREGNGIRE B EMI
B EREYEIR27IEARINIIRE ¥
FHNE I FEFTISTEE B AR DS 01 KA IR T 4
MIFERBE - MBARKRD IREF IELTR
BEE,/ B ARM2991,0007(2019%F © A
R#45,282,0007T) EFT AFNIEE ©

IR ET R R I E A THER30%E]60%H)
REB R - BV E TS FRBA R
S BRI E AERRCR K FT P S B
X e

BT IR B AP RE22 ©

Notes:

(a)

REMBHERME
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9. Income tax expense (Continued)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd (“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of
the Company. The income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Co., Ltd. ("Huaxia Shenzhou"), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Polymers”), Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. ("Dongyue Organosilicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.,
Ltd. ("Dongyue Chemicals”) is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a
high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB22,991,000 (2019: RMB45,282,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 22.
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10. N EEimA 10. Profit for the year
FERBEMNEMNE (A ) TH&IE : Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting)
the following items:
20204 20194
AR¥ETF T ARETFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
A BIAK(BIEESRHE): a) Staff costs (including director’s
emoluments):
MAEE R Short-term employee benefits 632,995 683,527
RIKIER] Post-employment benefits 105,108 79,776
Hih 8 TREF Other staff welfare 55,099 40,030
BB I Total staff costs 793,202 803,333
b) EMIEE : b) Other items:
B EEEEGIABEEKA) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 17,231 14,692
ZEET NS Auditor's remuneration 2,356 2,467
EHER AR 2 FEKA Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense 7,525,683 9,376,076
M - e RRIBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 639,354 552,653
FREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 24,686 22,768
HE®EPAERE () Loss/(gain) on disposal of intangible
assets 161 (948)
BRI AT E AR MEE Loss on de-recognition of equity

Wz BAR T AR Eia instrument at FVTOC| = 2,446
EEERE Impairment on intangible assets = 5,630
EEME - #asREEKE), (Gain)/loss on disposals of property,

58 plant and equipment (4,089) 17,594
HEFRAEEERS Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (3,297) =
BAVESABRCEREEY Fair value change on financial asset at

NHEZE) FVTPL 3,978 -
BAEeEHE—FHB ARz Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary (40,850) =
BT B Government grants (76,877) (59,248)
PE R =R 55 Exchange difference, net 36,590 (17,441)
B S EWFE(BE),RE (Reversal of)/impairment on trade

receivables (120) 1,379
9T K FA B AR AN Research and development costs 590,471 329,242
Y% - HEs R ERERE Reversal of impairment on property,
plant and equipment - (3,128)
(BtE), MR FE (GTAEERK (Reversal of)/write-down of inventories
7)) (included in cost of sales) (1,591) 10,577
Mizk - AEBIRABREEEHS - Notes: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.
ERENHBIBIEL B AR17,492,0007TC The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB17,492,000 (2019
(2019%F : AR"18,515,0007T) ° RMB18,515,000).

N
AN
3
0
"
]
=
-
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

MEEREETHRABENKENHH®T

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

T~ executive were as follows:
2020%F 2020
Bigied REER 2
ik e (Wat)  BUGTEMRR ROXAAX  EHER o
ARETR ARMTR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR%T:R
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BiTEE Executive Directors
RELLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 11,321 - - - 17,465
BERLE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
flEsrs Mr. Liu Chuangi = = = = = = =
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - = - 144
REELE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 6,171 - - - 7,515
RUEEE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 - - - - - 144
BIFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 404 - = = = = 404
ERRLE Mr. Yue Run Dong 204 - - - - - 204
BEBLL Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - - - 204
1,532 7,200 17,492 - - - 26,224
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=
MNBEERFETHAEHFM(E) 11.Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)
2019 2019
i RS20
Be B (D) BAHERR RBXOEER  2eER e@
ARBTE ABETR ARMTTE ABETR ARMTE ABETR ARMTR
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTES Executive Directors
RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 12593 = 5 = 18737
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
fEsrs Mr. Liu Chuangj = = = = = = =
e Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
REELE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 5922 = e = 7,266
RUELE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 = = = = = 144
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 430 - - - - - 430
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 204 = = = = = 204
BEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - - - 204
1558 7,200 18515 - = = 27073

EXgIFERERELE  MAARAITHAR
B EXARBENHHEREERITRAR
AR R FTBN

FA - AEBYERAESSIAEERFTAT
XS A BB E MBEAREESIERIMAR
SEMNRSIBBAE  BIEXTETHRASR
SRR ZE B NEH E 20205 K%2019F 12 A31
HIEFERNEMRME -

e - BRIEAIRBEENEARBMETE °

Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman of the board of the directors,
is also the Chief Executive of the Company. His emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance
of the directors.



R.AEEEHES

FAN - AERRAEEaH EEREMAES
(2019%F : MEBES)  HMSFHFBHR EX
BEE11 c KEEHT=42(2019F : =8R) 3k
ARRBEEREBITHRABZREFIEED
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12. Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2019: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019: three)

HNFIFWOT highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

20204 20194

AR®TF T AREFT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

e Salaries 27,973 31,138

RIRET B Pension scheme contributions = -

Rt At & 2 LARRD AR Equity-settled share-based payment expense = -

27,973 31,138

FERRREZNHZRSHEEABOMSN T

IATEE :

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

20204 20194
EE AZ EE A
2020 2019

No. of employees

No. of employees

3,500,001% 7T £ 4,000,000 7T
4,500,001 7L 2 5,000,00078 7T
8,000,001 7T 28,500,000/ 7T
10,500,001 7L 2 11,000,00078 7T
19,500,001 7T 220,000,000 7T
20,000,001 7T 220,500,000 7T

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000
HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000
HK$20,000,001 to HK$20,500,000
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13.8RER

AARIER ARESRERREERT
TH BB E

Ty

13. Earnings per share

IERERNEERNM S K

(AR%)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
REFERARER ARMLERAF

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2020F 20196
TR TR
2020 2019
‘000 ‘000
Earnings for the year attributable to owners
of the Company for the purposes of
basic and diluted earnings per share
(RMB)
RmHER - Number of shares:
RERERREERNT S A EE
A& N T 35 85

772,167
Weighted average number of ordinary
BE2020F12A3BIEFE - EMEEBK

shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share

RERTZ)78 T A A R #54,640,0007T (2019

A R #168,897,0007T ) i B 18,341,0008% & i

A% (20194F : 42,579,000/% & #A% ) °
A% -

1,462,974

BEEBREEN  RFEARERD SR
IMERD PR ©

2,060,231

2,092,196
RMB54,640,000 (2019: RMB168,897,000) were purchased under

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 18,341,000 (2019:
42,579,000 ordinary shares) ordinary shares with amount of
employee share option scheme.

Other than the employee share option scheme, there is no
cancelled during the year.

ordinary shares were repurchased and no share has been
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14. R B 14. Dividends

2020 20194
ARBTR ARBFIT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

2020 BRI IR B, ¢ Dividends paid during the year 2020:

2019 KERRR S, © FRR023HETT 2019 final dividend: HK$0.23
(2019%F : 20184 KERRLS, : (2019: 2018 final dividend: HK$0.35)
' TR er share

FHR03557T) P 428,035 632,418

REHKRE - BLEZ2020F 128318 1L F
g #EHEEEHSTIK295636,0007% 7T(2019
F :481,205,0007 7T ) (FAR0.144 7T (20194
FRR023%TT)) 2 KBRS - HER AR
263,116,0007C(20194F © A K #428,035,000
TL) - MZEREERRE AR EERRIE -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
HKS0.14 per share (2019: HK$0.23 per share), amounting to
HK$295,636,000 (2019: HKS$481,205,000) in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020, equivalent to RMB263,116,000 (2019:
RMB428,035,000) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.
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S

15. 93¢ ~ B RHE 15. Property, plant and equipment
BT HERRE AE BAREE EEIR L]
ARETT ARETR AR®TT AREFT ARETR ARETR
Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles  and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KA CosT
01951 A18 At 1 January 2019 1,986,759 6,154722 56,427 741,993 244,585 9,184,486
RE Additions 90,080 369811 5570 111,245 827,246 1,403,952
FERE: Transfer 36616 202,181 390 33,045 (273,132) =
e Disposals (25,247) (163,198) (1407) (11.119) (3,249) (204,216)
019512 A31 B R At 31 December 2019 and at
2020F1A18 1 January 2020 2088208 6,563,516 60,980 876,068 795450 10384222
NE Additions 66,078 181,685 3458 68,542 1,399,763 1,719526
b Transfer 219985 734,256 - 81,022 (1,035,263) -
RALE—RHELR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (1,646) (33664) (80) (4851) (205,596) (245,837)
e Disposals (5916) (112,137) (4,156) (15,181) = (137,390)
#2020%12A318 At 31 December 2020 2,366,709 733365 60,202 1,005,600 954354 11720521
Rt TERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
0198 1A1R At 1 January 2019 718,585 4066418 35,651 500,504 3128 5,324,286
AEERR Charge for the year 98,823 364,336 3744 85,750 < 552,653
ERZRERE Impairment loss recognised 5 5 S = (3,128) (3,128)
HERE Eliminated on disposals (6,613) (83,852) (826) 6,972) - (98,263)
B2019E 128318 KA At 31 December 2019 and at
2020%1A18 1 January 2020 810,795 4346902 38,569 579,282 = 5,775,548
RERRX Charge for the year 101,286 419573 6454 112,041 - 639,354
RAHE—RIBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (310) (13204) 1) (1161) = (14,686)
HEREK Eliminated on disposals (2,160) (92,392) (3324) (13,564) - (111,440)
#2020%128318 At 31 December 2020 909611 4660879 41,688 676,598 = 6,288,776
FEE CARRYING VALUES
#2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 1,457,098 2672777 18514 329002 954,354 5,431,745
#019%128318 At 31 December 2019 1277413 2216614 241 296,786 795450 4608674
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15. Y% - HEBERRE(E) 15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
M20205F12A31B - "EBWE TEF As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not obtained the building
HMAMNEBEEEESZ  HEEEAARKE ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
174,987,0007T.(20195F = A B #192,809,000 RMB174,987,000 (2019: RMB192,809,000).

JT) °
W MR RREABESER Y Est] Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
FREHRNIRERANBESGEEEINE - the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual

values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

EF 205 Sk AH A (LABR S & A %) Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
M ki@ 5106 Plant and machinery ~ 5-10 years

TE 5% Motor vehicles 5 years

BIREE 54 Furniture and fittings 5 years

P20204F K 2019512 A31H » AREBE I E K As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has no pledged
WIEF MR N - BAREBSETEEE buildings and plant and machinery to secure bank loans of the
I o Group.

BREAaPRPE L FRREREEERS - The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under

medium-term lease.
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—— 4
__—-"/
16. fFFHEEE 16. Right-of-use assets
HELTH HEME st
AREET T ARET T ARETIT
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
720191 A1H At 1 January 2019 604,025 = 604,025
= Additions 108,281 980 109,261
nEEHR Depreciation charge (22,500) (268) (22,768)
201912 A31B &R At 31 December 2019 and at
20201 A1H 1 January 2020 689,806 712 690,518
= Additions 145,733 - 145,733
HeE Disposals (15,120) = (15,120)
BAEHE—EHEBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (43,854) - (43,854)
WEEH Depreciation charge (23,974) (712) (24,686)
7202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 752,591 - 752,591

2020F12A831H » REBHAMEEES
AR #81,000,0007T (20194 : E)WETHE
T ENGHEFT AR -

2020912 A31H » ANEE I AR
B E(2019%F « AREE5782,0007T) @ AARE
B ERITE IR -

BE2020F12A3HIEFE - HERESRE
a5 B A R#127,316,00070(20194F © AR
109,261,0007T) ©

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not obtained the
leasehold lands ownership certificates for certain leasehold lands
with carrying values of RMB81,000,000 (2019: nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not pledged right of use
assets (2019: RMB5,782,000) to secure bank loans of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total cash outflow
for leases was RMB127,316,000 (2019: RMB109,261,000).
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17. Rt E A R E R 17.Interests in an associate
20204
AR¥ETT
2020
RMB’000
72020561 H18 At 1 January 2020 =
B NRIRRERE R ATE Fair value of the associate as at the date of deemed
disposal 107,402
AEBZEE Capital injection from the Group 100,000
R Em 2z RRE g2 A TFE The fair value of option of not successfully listed of
Future Hydrogen (19,777)
eI AR 2B E R alm Share of associate profit of an associate 4,505
AEEPE I B Dividend received by the Group (14,100)
7202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 178,030

MR2020F12A31H » REERE QA RMFS

The details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2020 is as

wm follows:

FEEREN

aHER
L1-E1 EBRBYA AE TEREXBYE  FEROER 20205 TEEH

Registered

Principal capital held

Form of business Country of place of Class of share by the Group
Name of entity structure establishment  operation held 2020  Principal activity
IWRRERRDEMEROERRR AREERA hE P HEMER 3416%  HERHED
(TR%@gel) H
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Limited liability PRC PRC Registered Production and sales
Material Co, Ltd. company capital of hydrogen energy
("Future Hydrogen”) materials
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17.

REE R R RS ()

F20209F4 298 » 7K & B 1 H40% % 7 1
MEBARKRKREEEBIMBRIGE @ FEF
& AR B AR B100,000000TIEAE AR
105,000,0007TC ° &IEAFME R - KNEEH
B Z B HE R 40%E 58 £38.1% ° B2020%F5
A2BR  AEEXEHRKRITEESIAK
ZHREMIEHE  RUWEARERE—
FWEB AR MARSERANEER ZHE

NI

AT RARKEENHEAHNEEFE :

17.Interests in an associate (Continued)

On 29 April 2020, Future Hydrogen, a subsidiary of which 40%
equity interest held by the Group, enlarged its registered capital
from RMB100,000,000 to RMB105,000,000 through capital injection
from a new shareholder. Upon enlarged the registered capital, the
equity interest held by the Group was diluted from 40% to 38.1%.
Since 22 May 2020, the Group loss control over the majority of
the composition of the board of directors of Future Hydrogen,
therefore, it considered as deemed disposal of a subsidiary and
Future Hydrogen became an associate of the Group.

The net assets of Future Hydrogen, at the date of disposal were as
follows:

2020%F5H22H
AR¥ET T
22 May 2020
RMB’000
I E = Y& L Property, plant and equipment 231,151
TREEE Right-of-use assets 43,854
ELEE Intangible assets 10,872
BAFEFAEMERKEMRATA Equity instruments at FVTOCI 3,000
A E IR Tax recoverable 2,592
FE Inventories 14,286
B G e GRIE I eI s Trade and bill receivables 12,596
TEAS 508 K HoAh fE U SR IE Prepayment and other receivables 77,607
RITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 94,858
RITEE Bank borrowings (116,845)
o RMNFBRENEE Trade and bill payables (84,230)
H b e FOR Other payables (106,363)
AHaE Contract liabilities (1,207)
RIEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (6,389)
PEIEUTA Deferred income (9,399)
HEEEFHE: Net asset disposed of: 166,383
RALE-HNMEQRMRE : Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary:
REBEEZ X FE Fair value of retained equity interest 107,402
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of (166,383)
YR AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests 99,831
"SR Gain on deemed disposal 40,850
RAELEEENESREFE Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal:
IRITEHRKEIRS Bank balances and cash (94,858)
(94,858)
REEEERLAR —ZE-EFFH



17. REE R R R ()

M2020F5 4228 + KRS Re R R AN &
BrfBAREEMNEETASEES —MH
BN RIS EAAE - ARAEN AT (] ) o

MR2020F6 8240 - REABRERE TR
RORBREDBERRGRERT L IRIEEE
wE((EERZ]  LEEARSEEETAA
K #300,000,0007T * BEFHEARAREK
21,000,000t } B% 7 7 & A R #279,000,000
T o A #EEE RNA R %100,000,0007T
BIEEME A A R7,000,0007T K A AS G5
A R #93,000,0007T © &% p1sE & A% -
AEB AR 2 IR INZE34.95% ©

BERHRBREGRR  REREEHER
AETHRFRATCHEEBEAEERERRRE
DR IRE(EERE]) - RIFIEER
HERSR - RIREAEE T RIS M B I i
MR IR RREBEAR RSB 2023F 12831
Ht I EFREMSEAARES - Emk
BEERD - WBRFEBEREE  (RERE
AT 2024 1 B1H E2024F 12 831 B 81T
S - TR RS B A% AR 78 IR 3R [0 B %
T o

R202088H18H - AR EREB B H T
FREMEE BEAMEABARY
126,000,0007C & A &= A R #128,160,0007T
MALBERE 2 IRIEFEE3437% °

20208 10A298 + RIRGEEIZERFHH
1A% IR B AR AN B 1T 2,25 A% i AR AR 157 L e )
WARFEFLERE  REREERHED
& o HIRTEKE  AREREMNFMERHAA
R #128,160,0007T #& X & A R #416,520,000
TC MASKERFE 2 RIERMERFTE34.37% ©

20208128308 AR E BB — %
FREMEE BEEMELABRARE
416,520,0007C #& K & A R %419,019,120
T MASEEFE ZBRER437%EEE
34.16% ©
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17. Interests in an associate (Continued)

On 22 May 2020, the share capital of Future Hydrogen was
transferred from Huaxia Shenzhou, a subsidiary within the Group,
to Dongyue Fluo-Silicon, another subsidiary within the Group,
without any change in the equity interest.

On 24 June 2020, Dongyue Organosilicon and several new
shareholders (“Guaranteed Shareholders”) entered into capital
injection agreement (“Injection Agreement”) with Future Hydrogen
to inject RMB300,000,000, comprising RMB21,000,000 registered
capital and RMB279,000,000 capital reserve into Future Hydrogen.
Dongyue Organosilicon contributed RMB100,000,000, comprising
RMB7,000,000 as registered capital and RMB93,000,000 as capital
reserve. Upon the increase in registered capital, the equity interest
held by the Group was increased to 34.95%.

In the Injection Agreement, there is protective clause in which
Dongyue Organosilicon and several new shareholders can request
Future Hydrogen to repurchase all the equity interest when
certain conditions occur ("Put Option”). Pursuant to the terms of
the Injection Agreement, Future Hydrogen has irrevocable and
unconditionally guaranteed the Guaranteed Shareholders that
Future Hydrogen initial public offer, listed and trading of its shares
in the PRC market on or before 31 December 2023. In the event
that the certain conditions are occur, the Guaranteed Shareholders
can exercise the Put Option in the period between 1 January 2024
and 31 December 2024 and Future Hydrogen will repurchase the
equity interest from the Guaranteed Shareholders.

On 18 August 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB126,000,000 to RMB128,160,000 through capital
injection from several new shareholders and the equity interest
held by the Group was diluted to 34.37%.

On 29 October 2020, Future Hydrogen granted right issue to its
existing shareholders on the basis of 2.25 right shares per every 1
existing share capital held at that date and the consideration was
contributed out of its capital reserve. Upon the completion of the
right issue, the registered capital of Future Hydrogen was enlarged
from RMB128,160,000 to RMB416,520,000 and the equity interest
held by the Group remain unchanged at 34.37%.

On 30 December 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB416,520,000 to RMB419,019,120 through capital
injection from a new shareholder and the equity interest held by
the Group was diluted from 34.37% to 34.16%.
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17. REEE D R RV s (A])

BERRRAEDENZFRAMBRRA
R - RIEBBRM B REERRRNBHER

BEHINOT ©

17. Interests in an associate (Continued)

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial

information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.

2020%F12H31H

ARMTF T
—REBE AR 2 EERRE Summarised Financial information of an associate 31 Dec 2020
RMB’000
MENEE Current assets 258,725
EMBEE Non-current assets 477,190
nENaE Current liabilities (111,713)
ERBERE Non-current liabilities (48,967)
RERKGENEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy 575,235
Wz Revenue 87,119
BR A Profit for the period 13,187
FHKREREE Total comprehensive income 13,187
REEHER Reconciliation to carrying amounts:
HEARRSENEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy 575,235
HRRRMRIEREREE Capital injection from other shareholders after deemed
disposal (415,000)
160,235
REE R IMELIIFT B S Group's ownership interest in weighted average 35.54%
AEEELEETFE Group's share of net assets 56,957
BRIEDENAFERE Fair value gain on deemed disposal 40,850
AEBEFE Capital injection from the Group 100,000
BAFEFABRCEMEE Financial asset at FVTPL (19,777)
IREAE Carrying amount 178,030




mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. B EE 18.Intangible assets

EHHIm LLe HRUERE B
ARBTT AR®BTT AR®BTT ARBTET

Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

DEN CoST

7201951 H18 At 1 January 2019 128,176 20,784 80,000 228,960
NS Additions 10,120 2,721 - 12,841
He Disposals (5,634) = = (5,634)

M20195F12A318 &R At 31 December 2019 and

2020F1 A1H at 1 January 2020 132,662 23,505 80,000 236,167
=T Additions 16,220 3,166 - 19,386
WEAHE—FKHEB AR Deemed disposal of a

subsidiary (14,096) - - (14,096)
He Eliminated on disposals = (184) = (184)
MR20204F12H31H At 31 December 2020 134,786 26,487 80,000 241,273
B RORE AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
R2019%1 A18 At 1 January 2019 85,320 3,918 57,485 146,723
AFEERL Charge for the year 10,640 4,052 - 14,692
HE K 8 Eliminated on disposals (1,080) - - (1,080)
R EEE Impairment loss recognised = = 5,630 5,630

MR2019F 12 A31H kR At 31 December 2019 and

20204F1 A1H at 1 January 2020 94,880 7,970 63,115 165,965
REERY Charge for the year 12,575 4,656 = 17,231
WEAHE KB AR Deemed disposal of a

subsidiary (3,224) - - (3,224)
HE R 8 Eliminated on disposals — (19) - (19)
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 104,231 12,607 63,115 179,953
IREE CARRYING VALUERS
A2020%F12H31H At 31 December 2020 30,555 13,880 16,885 61,320
PR20194F12H31H At 31 December 2019 37,782 15,535 16,885 70,202
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e >

18. BILEE (&)

REEMBETLEEDRAE=TEE

BRI EMEG T ZAERMAER
FH - WREHEDRINSER10F M3FE
SRS o

R20NFE AREBULBEARE AR
80,0000007LME=FRBEFBE AT EH BA
B ARG R RERE - AR RESTEAES
MNEAEREE(BOARNEER B E
HEZRMAEL) o WEESFEAREREER
NEEBMKARGEENSEELaERMH
JT§ o

REFERERABEENE@ARE - REZH)
RNEETACDHNRFEE  AEEEE
RIRTEREAR WE - 72017108 - REBEK
M GRBEEEMFLEE2019F108 » Wik
—HEEMFE2021F108 - AR EBFE
R M ETES M IRTEMAE 4/ - Bl E2019
FRANBILEECEAREERBARE
5,630,000 - NABEERE - RNEZE2020
FRANAEFESEERRE -

18. Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high-quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights for
a period of two vyears till October 2019 and further extended
for a period of two years till October 2021. Due to decrease in
mining areas of the two mines upon renewal of the exploration
rights. An impairment loss of RMB5,630,000 was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The directors of the Company
considered that no impairment was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020.



19. EEHEA
RS - AR TAELR

(a)

WA 1SET TR - AEBWEYE -
HENEBIERBITEEZERT -
(2019%F + A R #4,363,0007T &) #) % -
B REBREEERE (EARTASE
HTRITEEOER)

BAAMT R 6FT I ER - AN R B A A A
BEERRITEEZIER - (20195 :
ANE#E5,782,0007CHY 5 A #EE EC1EK
B EARTAEBEETIRITEENE
R) °

WM T2 R - AEBESEAA
R #70,0000007T - ARBZL AR
#211,800,0007T & A R %8,988,0007T
(20194 + AR #50,000,0007T « AR#
11,618,0007T + A R #247,623,0007T &
ARBZT)NEERBITEREIEE
A SRERENER - REIEERE
B REEEMHE RS RIEAFEFNE
= e
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19. Pledge of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

pledge of assets:

(a

As described in note 15, there were no property, plant and
machinery of the Group pledged to secure bank loans.
(2019: RMB4,363,000 was pledged to secure for certain bank
borrowings granted to the Group).

As described in note 16, there were no right-of-use assets of
the Group pledged to secure bank loans. (2019: RMB5,782,000
was pledged to secure for certain bank borrowings granted
to the Group).

As described in notes 27, the Group's pledged bank deposits
amounting to RMB70,000,000, RMBnil, RMB211,800,000
and RMB8,988,000 (2019: RMB50,000,000, RMB11,618,000,
RMB247,623,000 and RMB nil) have been pledged to secure
the bills payable, undrawn borrowing facilities, deposits from
presale of properties and letter of credit, respectively.
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20.

BAFEHAHEMREWEZ  20.Equity instruments at fair value through
BT E other comprehensive income
2020 20195
FiaE ARYET T AREFT
Note 2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FELEHBRAES - RAFEIIE Unlisted equity securities, at fair
value
FRERERERNDAERAF China MinSheng Investment Co.,, Ltd
(MFR#&ED ("CMIC") (@) 198,763 455,297
ZEEEEBEARAR Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(I&=&1) (‘Taihe") (b) 87,414 110,411
ST EMEAEXEESEIEAMR  Zibo Fluorosilicone Industrial Park
2al(TFIP]) Operation Management Co., Ltd.
("FIP") (@] = 100,000
IWRERIEEBR AR Shandong Ziying Investment Co.,
([&R&BEE]) Ltd. ("Ziying") (d) 116,000 =
LEEERERAT Shanghai Yiging Technology. Co.,
(I E8Es)) Ltd. (“Shanghai Yiging”) (e) = 3,000
LRI EECLBREESD Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
BRAR([SPOBE]) Economic Investment Co., Ltd.
("SPOBE") f) = =
SR IEE R/ NEE AR Zibo ZhangDian Huitong
~NE([RIEE® ) Microfinance Co., Ltd. (“ZhangDian
Huitong") (9) - -
402,177 668708

EHIEETRATESAKERE TRHE
LRASEHERINLAEROBE - AQF]
EFEERRSREREREAERFAR
tE2EPRARATE  DHRZERER
REREREMEE -

The above unlisted equity instruments represent the Group's
equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC
and the Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at
FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic purposes.



20. EAPEFAREMEEZEKE 2

BT A (&)

REEFLTTRATAEATER  AEEE
BEYEXMEMETERMGE 228/
BREEFAARKREREMRREZHBENRS
MEBAEE  UHEEFERETERK - 21
REX  RIEERE  RERGERENE
WEEE |J$HF§TT¥1‘E%E/E\H&EEE/TJEiTm
BERNIEIENITETRE

GEE

@ HREAZEIEHZER EBERULENR
Eh¥ IENERERENEETE - K
£ B A R181,400,000,0000% © REAAR
#1,580,000,0007T * AN 5 B 720204 20194
12ANABRFRIGHIFRER28% - RIEFER
BHZE2020F12A31HIEFEPBKHREK - L E
BEERBEETITRE  NEBEXERN
TESABEERNT - R RIZ2020F 2019
¢E’Jﬁ<ﬁﬂ?§>‘ﬁ%ﬂﬁéﬁm+ yEAR - BIEIOR &

FEb - Al RRARESRA - WEAEE
?%W?ﬁi?%ﬁ@ﬁﬁiﬁ% CREERFRE
HIIRER2020F 12 A3 H A FEL A AREK
198,763,0007T (20194 : AR #455,297,0007T) -
SRt AREBMEET2020F 128318 IEFEEEM
ZHERAXHRFEERLNAARE256534,000
JC(2019%F © ARR¥E1,111,703,0007T) °

b)) FTEABEPEKLIHLAETE - FE
fté%(ﬁﬂtﬂ@?ﬁ)éﬁf‘%g@u&qn@m%é B
NEBMOETREEMSEEER - A5EH
Hh AL BHER LIRS  HAMELABARE
10,000,000,0007T + H A& B H & B9 5t & A
B AR ¥600,000,0007C * 1HHRA HGEME AL
6% o B £2020F 128310 - A EE X
A R #120,000,0007C ° 720208128318 » &
RRAIEERE  RREZEENAFENABA
R #87,414,0007(2019%F = A R #110,411,000
TT) c MERAEBEEHE2020F12A318 EF
BEEMEEREZERHATFEBENAEARE
22,997,0007C(2019%F : A FER =N ABARE
2,171,0007T) ° RELE 2020512 A31 B ILFE -
AARBRKREFERE ARE72000007T
(2019% : AR¥10,800,0007T) ©
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity instruments, the

Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform

such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash flow

projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to its

present value and requires the use of key assumptions, including

the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted revenue

and gross margin taking into account the relevant industry

growth forecasts and financial budgets approved management’s

expectation for the market development.

Notes:

(a)

CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC,
is principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
The Group held 1,400,000,000 shares in CMIC at a consideration of
RMB1,580,000,000, and the equity interest in CMIC held by the Group
was 2.8% as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. Based on CMIC's financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, and having considered
the macroeconomic downturn, and the continuous deleveraging as
well as the dual pressure on high level of corporate debts, the funding
situation and cash flow of CMIC in 2020 and 2019 were very tight, and
the financial position has deteriorated sharply. As a result, the directors of
the Company considered, and as agreed by the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Group, the fair value of the Group's investment in
CMIC was approximately RMB198,763,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB455,297,000), fair value loss of approximately RMB256,534,000 (2019:
RMB1,111,703,000) which had been included in other comprehensive
expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in inter alia, asset management and bulk transfer
of non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province,
the PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the
registered capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which
the register capital amount contributable by the Group was RMB600
million, representing 6% of the total registered capital of Taihe. Up
to 31 December 2020, the Group has paid RMB120 million. As at 31
December 2020, the directors of the Company considered the fair value
of the investment of Taihe was approximately RMB87,414,000 (2019:
RMB110,411,000) and a fair value loss of approximately RMB22,997,000
(2019: fair value gain of approximately RMB2,171,000) which had been
recognised in other comprehensive income of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Company received dividend of
RMB7,200,000 (2019: RMB10,800,000) from Taihe during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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20. BAFPEFAHEMEEKE 2
BRAT A (&)

(0)

FIPA — I 72018F 125108 £ & Bl 5% 37 &9 7L
ANEB -FPEEREEXEEIRDESE
BoFPRHARER—EBBIYE=ZFTKI - R
2018F12A3AIEFE - AEEEXTARE
100,000,0007T * {HFIP4R & 22 B& 2K 2 46.15% °
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income (Continued)

(0)

FIP is a private equity and was established in the PRC on 10 December
2018. FIP was principally engaged in garden construction and property
management. The Group and an independent third party established
FIP. The Group paid RMB100 million during the year ended 31 December
2018 and contribute 46.15% of the total registered capital of FIP. As
the Group did not have any representative on the board of directors
or equivalent governing body of the investment, did not participate
in policy-making processes, and did not interchange any managerial
personnel with the investment, it does not consider as having significant
influence on the investment. As at 31 December 2019, the directors of
the Company considered the fair value of the in FIP was RMB100,000,000.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the equity instrument was
disposed of with the consideration of RMB100,000,000.

Ziying is a private entity and was established in the PRC on 13 October
2009. Ziying and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property
development, investment activities, corporation management and
financial advisory services. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group subscribed 18.92% equity interest of Ziying at a consideration of
RMB116,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company
considered the fair value of the investment in Ziying was approximately
RMB116,000,000.

Shanghai Yiging is a private entity and was established in the PRC on
21 June 2019. Shanghai Yiging was principally engaged in new energy
technology, new materials technology and technology consulting. The
Group held 15% equity interest of Shanghai Yiging through an indirect
subsidiary, Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co.,
Ltd. ("Future Hytrogen Energy”) of the Company. The investment in
Shanghai Yiging was derecognised due to the deemed disposal of Future
Hydrogen Energy.

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SPOBE is principally engaged in investment activities. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with SPOBE to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE at
a total contribution of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB126,256,000)
and held 20,000,000 shares which represented 18.18% equity interest
in SPOBE. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group sold its
investment in SPOBE, as this investment no longer suited the Group’s
investment strategy. The shares sold at RMB16,394,000 at the time of the
sale and the Group realised a loss of RMB2,446,000 during the year ended
31 December 2019. The Group recognised fair value loss through other
comprehensive income of RMB31,008,000 in prior years which have been
transferred from fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
to retained earnings of the Group at the date of disposal.
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

(99 Zhangdian Huitong is a private entity established in the PRC and
principally engaged in the money lending business in Shandong
Province, the PRC. The Group held 15% of the equity interest in
Zhangdian Huitong. As at 31 December 2019, the directors of the
Company considered the fair value of the investment was Nil. Fair value
loss of approximately RMB9,760,000 which had been included in other
comprehensive expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

21.Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss
20204 20194
ARET T AREET T
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments
—JE AR A — Unlisted Put Option 15,799 -
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22. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis

financial reporting purpose:

of the deferred tax balances for

20205 20194

AR¥T ARETIT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

EIEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 56,360 53,984
FEEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (78,749) (58,929)
(22,389) (4,945)

FRERRBNEIERLEHIBLE, (BB &

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

HEEHT recognised and movements thereon for the year:
hEcERg
PEHEAT EEEA BARSME R BERR Fhafnn
THAKEN  FERRE  EHER fie% RNREER  EREEE  REERE  TERE 4 i
Tax credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrual for grants on property adjustment
Profits of PRC ~ Depreciation employee  prepaidlease  plant,and  Capitalised on business
Subsidiaries  allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest ~ Taxlosses  combination Others Total
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RIB000 RMB000 RMBO00 RIBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RBO00 RIBO00 RMB000 RMB000
RI9E1 1R At 1 January 2019 (85,726) (39058) 83863 04 17500 (543) (24130) 103602 102712
BfffeBR Dividend withholding ta peid 7200 - - - = = = = 72,00
RERRAMR)TA (Charge) Credit recognised n
profit o oss (45,80 (92946) B0 (248) 14 (15877) (179657)
HioEnANAR At31 December 2019 and
A0E1A18 1 January 2020 (39,008) (132004 65,653 972 17500 (403) (24130) 81725 (4945)
BRSENR Dividend withholding tax peid 00 50200
BALE—ENEBAA Deemed disposal of
3 subsidiary 6389 - - - 6,389
HERRAR)HA (Charge) Credit recognised in
profit or loss (299 (51929) (17939) (5927) - 106 26117 (1470) (74033)
RooEnAnA At 31 December 2020 (31.800) (177,544 ans 379 17500 (297) %117 (24130) 86255 (22309

REEBERIE —Z2-F2FFR
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22. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB123,471,000 (2019: RMB19,025,000) available for offset against
future profits of which deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB104,469,000 (2019: RMB nil) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining
unused tax losses of RMB19,002,000 (2019: RMB19,025,000) as it
is uncertain whether taxable profit of the corresponding group
entities will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of RMB18,564,000 and RMB438,000 will expire 2022 and 2024
respectively (2019: RMB18,564,000 and RMB461,000 will expire
2022 and 2023 respectively).

e
23. Goodwill
20204 20194
ARET T AREEF T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
R COST
M1A1HXI12A31H At 1 January and 31 December 123,420 123,420

BEITRENH - ARM37,526,0007T(2019
F : AR¥37,526,0007T) + ARM84,540,000
TL(2019% A R #84,540,0007T ) & A R #&
1,354,0007T(20194F A [ #1,354,0007T ) 2
BEEPAPET=(EReELEM(RE
EAEEN) BINETBMERR : MR
BOMARXABEFHMEREFR AT
(IRRXRD RILUREXEHERZEBRAR
([MEX]) - B FMESEBES A4 R E
REDEHORERTHEEAR AR ([REHE
21 REZE2020F 128318 LLEFE A&
B &R E i T W ok IR AE R p 2R E (2019

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB37,526,000
(2019: RMB37,526,000), RMB84,540,000 (2019: RMB84,540,000) and
RMB1,354,000 (2019: RMB1,354,000) have been allocated to three
cash generating units (CGUs) representing four PRC subsidiaries,
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (“Zhangjiajie”)
and Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Boda”)
in the property development segment, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
December 2020, management of the Group determines that there
was no impairment of goodwill (2019: nil).

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 235




mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2020F 12531 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

= o

e >

23.

()
e

RRARBAMAIKESEHREFERER
ATEET - TENREEEECHENESF
BB IEEME RS ME LR E11.8%
(2019%F 1 109%) 15 - AFHUEHRS
TER %A BTG R R - FRIERET)
ERMBBTERREDN  BETRAE[EITE
WEHRAERE - FABEBFENEMLE
EREBENA(BIEBEHEELRENEAER
MRS REMFTBE - ZBMETTHERE
XARBANBARAREREHMSER
BTERl - BREMRRE  ZERRAIGESED
BHEMEEEHTEEFRRMB A TNEKR
HREBBIKREREEE -

B FHRSE

EBWAMAIKESERBEREETE
BT HERESEREOIEN AT
BIEEREF RS RE REEIRE159% (2019
F:167%)1FH - AFHUENR S RER
FA3%R BTG R R HEHT o I RETHENAE
BITEREEE - B TEBBEBITENTY
REERE - FAEBEAENEMEERK
DE(PEBEHEERENEEAN)RE
MEMETAR - ZBEMGFTHEREESAN
BARBANEEEHMSERNIEA - B12
BRE  ZEBEAIESELENTRZE
B eEBEBSAMNREAEBRBE K
Bl o

23. Goodwill (Continued)

Property development segment

The recoverable amounts of Zhangjiajie and Boda have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount
rate of 11.8% (2019: 10.9%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include
budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Zhangjiajie and Boda and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related
subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 15.9% (2019:
16.7%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance
of Huaxia Shenzhou and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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24. 78 24.Inventories
20205 20194
ARET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
R KB R Raw materials and consumables 423,213 390,461
ER Work in progress 75,519 77,871
UK Finished goods 379,314 513,140
878,046 981,472
5. fEHERR X 25. Properties for sale

20205 2019%F
ARYET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

EREYEDE Properties under development comprise:
—BERIFEYE — Completed properties for sale 434,875 586,982

—EEERE/HERFEYE - Properties held for/under development
for sale 1,339,354 1,052,073

—BAREUHEEZHE LM - Leasehold land held for development for

sale 966,528 966,777
2,740,757 2,605,832
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25. Properties for sale (Continued)

Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co. Ltd.
(“Union Property”)

)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's
management decided to develop residential properties on
two parcels of lands which situated in Huantai Shandong, the
PRC for sale and the relevant development plan had been
approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction
work commenced in 2012. The project divided into five
phases and phase 1 was completed during the year ended
31 December 2014 and phase 2 was completed during the
year ended 31 December 2015. Phase 3 and Phase 4 were
completed during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
remaining phase expected to be completed in 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
acquired a parcel of land situated in Huantai Shandong,
the PRC to develop residential properties for sale. The
relevant development plan had been approved by relevant
authority in the PRC. The project named Dongyue Guoji was
commenced in 2018 and completed during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Boda”)

1)

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Zhangdian Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work commenced in 2012.
The project named Sheng Jing Lan Ting and the project
had two phases, phase 1 was completed during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the remaining expected to be
completed in 2023.
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25. Properties for sale (Continued)

Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Boda”) (Continued)

2)

Residential properties on a parcel of land which situated
in Dezhou Shangdong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project named Shengjing Yuyuan-Zhongyang Gongguan and
expected to be completed in 2021.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The project named Hanlinyuan and expected to
be completed in 2023.

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co,
Ltd. (“Zhangjiajie”)

D)

Residential properties on a parcel of land which situated
in Zhangjiajie Hunan, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work commenced in 2012. The
project named Xiaoxiang Huafu and the project divided into
two phases, part 1 of phase 1 was completed as at the year
ended 31 December 2017, the part 2 of phase 1 has been
completed in 2020 and phase 2 expected to be completed

in 2023.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB947,258,000 (2019:
RMB950,482,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.
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A
26. 5 R HMEWRFIE 26. Trade and other receivables
20205 20194
AR®ETF T ARETTT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
B S EWGRIE R I EE (MIFE)  Trade and bills receivables (Note) 1,236,340 1,235,225
B EEEERE Less: allowance for credit losses (4,112) (4,232)
1,232,228 1,230,993
R RE 3R Prepayments for raw materials 132,912 172,554
FE S I (R Value added tax receivables 127,575 105,248
YE + H I (E T Prepaid land value increment tax 21,785 9,390
BYEBERES Deposit paid for property development 58,217 27,767
e K H b fE U R TE Deposits and other receivables 154,502 157,517
1,727,219 1,703,469
BSE © R20204E 128318 B 5 FE Uk 208 0 1 E Uk Note: Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting to
= s AR #080825,0005T (20104 ¢ AR RMB989,825,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB951,267,000).
951,267,0007T) °
NREERETREPZEFENRGBEEZENRE Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
THREo0H @ FEURZE S — AR R90H 3180 H 90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
FIEf - EPEMRBREREER(NBREE in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of trade
IR ) IR E R RO 25T o and bills receivables, net of allowance for credit losses presented
based on the invoice date.
20205 20195
AR¥TF T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
90H K Within 90 days 714,383 654,902
91H£180H 91 - 180 days 515,283 526,767
181HZE365H 181 — 365 days 2,562 49,324
1,232,228 1,230,993
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26. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 99% (2019: 96%) of the trade and bills receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the high-ranking
record attributable under the research on the creditworthiness.
The Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending
on the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the trade and bills receivable with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB42,590,000 (2019: RMB49,575,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

2020 20195

ARBTR AR¥ETT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

91H£180H 91 - 180 days 40,391 42,767

181HMNA L Over 181 days 2,199 6,308

42,590 49,575

HAEEBEERES (L BEANEER LA Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group

ZHmENaikE - AREBE KR Fill & EEHE as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality

B NAREERAEXSETBEZEBLEEZR and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
47 o the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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26 EG R HEHMEWRIE(E) 26.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

FEFERESS Movement in the allowance for credit losses

B 5 REWGRIE I RN =R Trade and bills receivable 20204 20194

AR¥T T ARETIT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 4,232 2,853

FR(EE),BE (Reversed)/Provided during the year (120) 1379

F IRk Balance at end of the year 4,112 4232

H b e FRIE Other receivables

20204 2019%F

AR¥ T ARETF T

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB’000

FHER Balance at beginning of the year 4,592 4,795

FR R, B (Reversed)/Provided during the year (56) (203)

F RS Balance at end of the year 4,536 4,592

AR EEE RN EE AN TS The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in currencies

EHARARERE S EWRIBEY T other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are

set out below:

TET ARBTT

US$000 RMB'000
20205124318 At 31 December 2020 20,520 133,891
20195124318 At 31 December 2019 28,850 201,266

242 REEEERAE ZZTEFR
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27.Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

cash
Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB70,000,000, RMBnil,
RMB211,800,000 and RMB8,988,000 (2019: RMB50,000,000,
RMB11,618,000, RMB247,623,000 and RMB nil) have been pledged
to secure the bills payable, undrawn borrowing facilities, deposits
from presale of properties and letter of credit, respectively, and are
therefore classified as current assets.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2020 were
0.59% (2019: 0.53%) and 0.94% (2019: 1.13%) respectively.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

TET ARETT

US$000 RMB'000
7202012 A31H At 31 December 2020 32,916 214,777
20195124318 At 31 December 2019 44,536 310,693

TR ARBTT

HK$000 RMB'000
M20204F12H31H At 31 December 2020 13,408 11,285
720195 12A31H At 31 December 2019 5519 4,944
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28. B 5 R HEMENFE

28.Trade and other payables

2020F 20194
ARET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
B S RENFOR Trade payables 1,961,700 1,661,147
EHEE-HENIER Contract liabilities - sale of chemical
(B3 ) products (Note (i) 114,962 110,645
aHaE-HEWZE (K& ) Contract liabilities — sale of properties
(Note (ii) 1,438,080 826,555
FEAST BB T3 BM (B REGi) ) Payroll payable (Note (iii)) 315,045 341,429
Y - HEEE MR RN A Payable for property, plant and equipment
(PMEEGY) ) (Note (iv)) 167,886 103,170
HAb eI H I8 Other tax payables 40,270 77,520
EHERB 2 EEMEMNERN Construction cost payables for properties
e TR 2N under development for sale 78,403 286,114
Hib et R ERH I Other payables and accruals 136,639 153,222
4,252,985 3,559,802

GEE

Notes:

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

ZeBARECTERESNFRKEPFR -

ZeEATHEEMEELNEREFSRE -
M2020F12A310 - ZeBADEKBRITHE
;A4 A R #211,800,0007T (20195 : A R #&
247,623,0007T ) {EH R o

M2020F12A318 - BB ITHMEIE—1E
ATFBEHBAREEHRESCBEARYE
19,065,0007C(20194F = A R #12,236,0007T ) °
BRECHEEAEEPRMBEARIEEN 28T
RESEMT - DEREFREELRERET - I
BEBFUMREEHE - HREBTIEEE
M—FEFHIE  THRINEMERBETF
PEE TR o

U2 - RS RORIBHE T R MRS
R E TR =B AR - AR EF ARG
AFTIEFERTIE -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of chemical products.

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB211,800,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB247,623,000).

As at 31 December 2020, included in the payroll payable is a
provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB19,065,000 (2019: RMB12,236,000).
The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire
obligation for social insurance fund for employees of PRC
subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant national
regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of
an employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the
minimum limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau
each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
will be settled three months after the completion of installation
of the plant and machinery which is recorded in the addition of
construction in progress during the year.



28. BB R HAMEARIF(E)

2 5 FE T 5018 B 15 3= A R 1298,248,0007T
(2019%F :+ A R #100,000,0007T ) Z J& - Z
B BENERBASENEEBRITFERIE
R -

RBEmNFHEERROB - AEEDH
RS MBRBREIRBUR - LRERAAEA
REREEMRABME -

REZRAH  BFRENFENKRESITZ
FIEn
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28.Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting to
RMB298,248,000 (2019: RM100,000,000). Bills payable are secured
by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, presented
based on invoice date:

20204 20194

ARET T ARETT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

308 Within 30 days 1,023,324 1,064,166
31HZ90H 31 - 90 days 373,493 410,407
91HZ180H 91 - 180 days 363,472 83,322
181AE365H 181 - 365 days 143,561 67,312
1226 1 -2 years 45,726 19,708
HRE2F More than 2 years 12,124 16,232
1,961,700 1,661,147

AEBURBEASBEER BB NI
EHHENE 5 M E MR TR OT

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

F=T ARBTT

US$000 RMB'000
720205124318 At 31 December 2020 570 3,723
20195124318 At 31 December 2019 205 1,432
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29. 8 E€ 29.Borrowings
2020 20194
ARET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIIRIRITER Unsecured bank loans 1,904,550 1,888,550
BEMIRITER Secured bank loans = 42,600
1,904,550 1,931,150
B YR RBBaE TR ER Less: amounts due within one year shown
B BAFRIE under current liabilities (1,406,650) (510,600)
FIRIERB BB THIRIE Amounts show under non-current
liabilities 497,900 1,420,550
BERUTHRAEZENREHE : Carrying amounts are repayable as
follows:
1R Within one year 1,406,650 510,600
LN F BT BB2F More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 497,900 100,000
ZR2F B EBRSF More than two years, but not more than
five years - 1,320,550
1,904,550 1,931,150
R2020F12A31H @ WEAKBIETE A As at 31 December 2020, no secured bank loans were being

REEMEFREREEEEAKF(2019
&F: AR¥42,600,0007t ) E B IRERITE KA
REBEREAE B AREA363,000TTHEF
N BRE A {E B AR E5,782,0007T K FAEE

EERER) -

secured by the Group’s buildings and right-of-use assets
(2019: secured bank loans of RMB42,600,000 being secured
by the Group's buildings with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB4,363,000 and right-of-use assets with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB5,782,000).
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29. 8 E (#&) 29. Borrowings (Continued)
REBTFEEERREEATHA (KEH The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
EEB)WT : contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2020 20196
ARYET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEBE: Fixed-rate borrowings:
1F R Within one year 199,000 -
ENESIERS L EpES In more than one year, but not exceeding
two years = =
EINVESIERN GRS In more than two years, but not more
than five years - -
199,000 -
Uboh - REEEEEENT ¢ In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:
#2020F12A31H Loan amount as at
NWEXREHE FlZ 31 December 2020 Interest rate
AR EREEHIE 0%z RMB1,705,550,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
1,705,550,0007C 15%(ARNFE#EAR (current year applied rate: 4.35% to

R : 4359%%F4.75%)

4.75%)

Interest rate

R2019F12 83181 Loan amount as at

BERss H= 31 December 2019

AR #1,931,150,0007T ZEEFKFIEM0%ZE RMB1,931,150,000
15% (A FE#EARN

R 0 447%%F4.75%)

Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate: 4.47% to
4.75%)
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29. fE & (%)

FEMERRIFREE RN KB o REERK
MEBPEARRITEM  fHHEARRT
BAMEENRES - RRREE RN X
BHEENSBERRE

FEFIENRMEAEFHTE -

BEERME(THREFRQENR)BENT

29. Borrowings (Continued)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate. The standard lending rate is promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at standard
lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the borrowing
rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20205 20194
AR®ETF T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000

BERE Effective interest rate:
TEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 2.2%%4.35% T iE A
2.2% to 4.35% N/A
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 4.35%%4.75% 4.35%24.75%
4.47% to 4.75% 4.47% to 4.75%

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group raise
new unsecured short-term bank loans of RMB599,000,000 and
unsecured long-term bank loans in the amount of RMB249,000,000
(2019: RMBT1,140,000,000).

RELE2020F12A31BILFE - AEEER
A IR A2 BRER 1T B SR A R %599,000,0007T
MEB A AR249,000,0007C(20194F ¢
AR #1,140,000,00070) K EE B RBRITE

RBEHFR > AEBAULTAEREES As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

= undrawn borrowing facilities:
20204 20194
ARET T ARETFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
REAER Expiring within one year 1,655,250 2,205,450
i@ FEm Expiring beyond one year 805,000 -
2,460,250 2,205,450




mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2020F 12831 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

30.HEERE 30. Lease liabilities
20205 20194
ARBT T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ENHEAE: Lease liabilities payables:
1F R Within one year 4,827 4,795
REAZ B BRI Within a period of more than one year,
but not exceeding two years 4,466 4,744
BEEZ 2T BTN HRIBSF Within a period of more than two years,
but not more than five years 25,582 18,865
HERER RS T Within a period of more than five years 9,846 21,201
44,721 49,605
B AR BAEE TEIERSE  Less: amounts due within one year shown
BEIE under current liabilities (4,827) (4,795)
FIRIERB BB THIRIE Amounts show under non-current
liabilities 39,894 44810
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— &
_——"'--/
31. B A 31. Deferred income
RIEUN AE B U AT % - #E2s S ekt - Deferred income represents government grants received in
AREBEANWEBIANBERAEMEE respect of property, plant and equipment and research and
TR TS RT3 A maL - development expenses incurred by the Group in and the prepaid
lease payments for existing office and plant and research and
development expenses.
FRERIER AR E ST Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20204 2019%F
ARET T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1A1R At 1 January 288,835 307,418
NE Additions 4,957 5,151
RAELE B AR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (9,399) =
WESIER Release to profit or loss (21,095) (23,734)
®12H318 At 31 December 263,298 288,835
BREFENDTNT Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20204 20194
ARET T ARETT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIERER o> Current portion 19,569 23,444
JEBNERER > Non-current portion 243,729 265,391
263,298 288,835
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32. R A 32. Share capital
ROEE &S
THx AREFT
Number of Share
shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
FREE.1BTHZER Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each
ZEE - Authorised:
201951 B1H ~ 20194128318 At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
20204E1 A1 H &%20205E12 A31H 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 4,000,000 382,200
BEZITRHEE - Issued and fully paid:
7201951318 ~ 20198128318 At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
202091 A1 8 &2020F12H31H 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 2,111,689 200,397

e B BERTEIFTIREE N - M2020F K
201958 - BIEARFMBAREE L&

HIEE AN RIEM EHES

Other than as disclosed in the employee share option scheme,
none of the Company'’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year 2020 and

2019.
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_,_/'M//
3. FEERBREER 33. Non-Controlling Interests

pax
=Ny
BEEFE
Share of net assets of
subsidiaries
AREFT
RMBS$000
7201941 18 At 1 January 2019 1,055,593
DIEFE Share of profit for the year 279,307
g Transfer 60
FEERIR R ERITE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 39,200

REEKB A RE IR Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

RS, (298,556)
720194612 A31 B 202041 A1H At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 1,075,604
DIEFEE R Share of profit for the year 130,689
e Transfer 265
B IR AR S A s S —FEMT B Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary from non-

AR RESME 2R controlling interest (144,061)
BAHE BB ARZMHEZ  Deemed partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary 1,247,706
BAELE—HHEAT Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (99,831)
AEE W BA RS IR Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

RS, (222,166)
72020512 A31H At 31 December 2020 1,988,206




34. BAEIE

20205124318 + ANEE & R EE R FIE

34. Capital commitments

mEMBRERME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding commitments

I as follows:
20204 2019%F
ARYET T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
BARIE Capital Commitment
BRANEDE  HERRBENER  Capital expenditure in respect of
S BETAERTELGRE VR acquisition of property, plant and
FNEE equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 257,983 57,950
BB AT EFAHMEAWYE 2  Capital expenditure in respect of equity
BATEREARTE - 2ETAE instruments at fair value through other
RIEL B TRER N comprehensive income contracted
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 480,000 480,000
737,983 537,950
Hth &g Other commitment
ERELERBRZERYENMBT  Construction commitment contracted
EIE - BETRERIEARE TR in respect of properties under
FRNEE development for sale contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 21,299 48,594
759,282 586,544
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I5.FEALRS

FA - BREEAMBERRAEIIES - NEE
BETNIIBEALRS

(a) BEEMH

35. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a) Purchase of raw materials

20204 20194

ARET T ARETT

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

R ge (5L Future Hydrogen (note) 20,285 =
(b) SHELEEmM (b) Sales of chemical products

20204 2019%F

ARET T ARET T

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

KRB (M) Future Hydrogen (note) 22,354 -

() TEEEASHMH
N EEREGEREBABOMS

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

LUNNE management during the year was as follows:
20205 20195
ARBT T AREFT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEERA Short-term employee benefits 54,197 54,094

Mt EERREHER2020F5 428K AR

KEZHBERF -

254 REEBEERAE —Z-ZFEFH

Note: Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy became an associate of the
Group on 22 May 2020.



35 BEALRS (&)
(d) FHREERRHOBITERKAE

(e)
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35. Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and

AR S WA related interest income
2020 20194
AR¥T T ARETF T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
K12 A31 BRIRITIER Bank deposit at 31 December 321,418 382,444
FRFEHA Interest income during the year 6,828 620

2020554280 - REBEIE(AR
Al—FHIREIEEEWB AR - UARE
BHIWEE(FIRESR ) BEARKERE
(REEBE AR FEHZEH
#1) - EREE AR300,000,0007T -
H i AR#21,0000007C &R E A
A R #279,000,0007TC & B AN - 1R
BHheE REEHERERARRS
BE X & A R #100,000,0007T © HE A A
R #7,000000 BFMER - AR
93,000,0007C 4 A% 72N & 8 o 20 17 2% B
B BEREAREERERA A K
ERR] HEEERFTAARAF—EH
TEENBMEAN)FERKREE23.71%
Bt - Bt - BIR LA RIS 14A28(2)
I REEBRARBMBERS -

(e) On 28 May 2020, Dongyue Organosilicone, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and several new
investors (“New Investors”) entered into capital injection
agreements (“Agreements”) with Future Hydrogen, an
associate of the Group, with an aggregate amount of
RMB300,000,000, which consisted of RMB21,000,000 as
registered capital and RMB279,000,000 as capital reserve.
Pursuant to the Agreements, Dongyue Organosilicone agreed
to inject RMB100,000,000, which consisted of RMB7,000,000
as registered capital and RMB93,000,000 as capital reserve,
into Future Hydrogen. As at the date of the Agreements,
Paramita Times Technology Holdings Limited ("Paramita"), a
company of which a close family member of an executive
director of the Company is the major shareholder, held
23.71% of Future Hydrogen. Therefore, the capital injection
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Rule 14A.28(2) of the Listing Rules.
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36.

37.

RKEREE

AEBEEFENEE P ESELTRTE
BOBIZRNEMEFTEIMKE - AEEER
R FIEE B DL R FH B A E) - F
REBERNNES - ARENK-EETEY

A ERTEIERIEEHK -

BERBRETSE

R2018F 128278 + NARIERMNE B BB E
FTEI([EEERERE ) HEBEHERAEK
HARF -

BIFEEBRESNSE  AAF2EMRBA
AIREAENEEEARAG(AIREA L
RREARCEBTEXRARKERQA)
ERZFAANIZHEADNDBENRAEEF
AW & (RERFEBRIEREETSEA
800,000,000 ) BmiG EBERBRMD
THEFSHENAEEBREES S ER
(EEES ) UMEAERRFERERN -

EFgUTHREENBERER TEMNEERE
BRENABERBEBRMD(TBERE]D - E17
FEREEER  BRESEEEFL)EER
R/ o i) 6 B BRI 193 8 5 (B 4% B R A
TEERZEANZR(NE)NEHEKE -

BHZE20200F 12A31HEFE - XFEADRE
12 B B A AT 2108 B 49 A R ¥#54,640,0007T
(2019%F : AR#168,897,00070) M5 » &
BOTARNEEERBETEZERNDFESE
We BEEAREBH - EEBREEIET
PR -

36.

37.

Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Employee share option scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee
option scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be
valid and effective for a term of five years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Shandong Dongyue Future Enterprise Management Consulting
Services Co., Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee (the “Trustee”) will purchase existing Shares from the
market out of cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such Shares
on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the Group
selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”).

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
grant to any Selected Employee the right to purchase the
relevant Shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee may, when
exercising the Option, elect the number of Shares which he wishes
to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of
the Option.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Shares in the amount
of approximately RMB54,640,000 (2019: RMB168,897,000 have been
purchased by the Trustee under the Employee Option Scheme. No
Options have been granted under the Employee Option Scheme
up to the date of this report.
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(a) MEBATN—RER
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38. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company

(a) General information of subsidiaries

RIBEHIR AN T B RSS2 W Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
BATSEEMOT the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out
below.
LAY E8/ §
il PEEA ?Ea , FERHRR ARARRE ROAFEFERRRL KARGRERNA  TEER
ountry o
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital 5 by the Company " held by the Company ~ Principal activities
E]
Directly Indirectly
NE - 09E NNE N9 NNE NI9E
T % b % % % %
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
00 % % % % % %
RERAT o iftan ARBe41 300 - S 1000 mm 10000 00 BEREEIRECE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMB41 360 Manufacture and sale of
. ~ gt aﬂuooehy\ene

RELT 48 ifiax ARBM000T - - 1000 00 10000 100 BEREEY

Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 Manf cureand sa\eof

refrigerant

REEX o iftén ARESI00T - S T IR T R N ﬁ&% g4

Don g e Salt PRC Regitered capita RB30,000 Production and sales of st

E &% MRBomor 6979 01 B8 B8 82 B0 PERBERRELY

Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RMBA00,000 Manufacture and sals of

‘ . methane chloride

Honglong Tal htematonal Trading 575 iR BHSm 10000 10000 - S 0000 0000 HENIER
(o,Ltd.

HoyKongTa‘\U Intemational Trading~ HK Regitered capta  HKD5000 Sale of chemical products

i E AL ARHB00007 - - 5B o5 N PEREEAREH

Dongyue Organasficon PRC Registered capial RMBES0,000 Manufacture and sale of
N . , B organosilicon materia

RELRESEAITERAT 48 ifias ARBIS000T - -5 500 5100 500 BERBEEASHE
(hEERESE])

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluarine  PRC Registered capital RABI50,000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. (Inner Mongolia anhydrous luoride
Dongyue Peak’ L o ‘

ﬂﬁiﬂg%%ﬁﬁ 48 iftén AR 0007 - - B0 Bm 800 G0 HEREEED

Z

(hifeng HuaSheng Mining Co, Ltd,  PRC Registered captal RMB9.000 Manufacture and sale of
(‘Chifeng HuaSheng) _ . o fluorite

REHRERMHERLA 48 iftan ARBs00007 - - 10000 00 10000 1000 HEREEER

Inner Mongolia DongyueHuo e  PRC Registered capital RMB30,000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. . , - fluorite

m%@%ﬂmm o8 ifias AR5 70T - -5 500 5100 S0 BEREEEER

PG
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine  PRC Registered capital RMBI15,700 Manufacture and sale of

Chernicals Co, Ltd. (‘Wenhe Fluoring’)

sficone rubber
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38. XATETEMBATHIE(FE)  38.Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

(a) MBRATW—REL (&) (a) General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)
N 236/ ) .
WRATER ?ﬁ‘ﬁﬁt , FisRAEH ERERRE LNl ] KAEREREEND  TEEE
ountry o
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest held Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal actvities
E]
Directly Indirectly
NE 09E NNE N9 NNE N9E
i % % % % % %
2020 019 2020 019 2020 2019
0 % % % b % b
BAEZ ! ifiax AREBONT - - 10000 GO0 100000 e EEME
Union Property PRC Registered captl RB3OO0D Property development
URBARYERSERAT o9 ihax ARES000T - - 10000 GO0 100000 e EEME
Shandong Bods Real Estate PRC Registered capital RMB30,000 Property development
Development Co, Ltd . S u
FARERRUERDARLY  tE &% AEBR07T - - 10000 6400 10000 Mo FENE
Zhangjafe Xinye Real Estate PRC Regstered capital RMBB0,000 Property developrent
Development Co, Ltd. . )
BRREAREHERAT 0 iMax ARESO0T - - 10000 000 10000 100 EERTER
Huangtai Dongyue Intemational Trade  PRC Registered capital RMBS 000 Sale of chemical products
(o, Lud.
2ERA i &% ARB10007T - S 000 M 10000 100 BERMEASSHTHH
Huaxia Shenzhou PRC Registered capital RMBI0000 Manufacture and sale of
; o _ oropolymer
RERENRZERRA g iMax AREI 0500 10000 10000 - - 000 000 REREREISEAE
Dongyue Fluorosiicone Science and ~ PRC Registered capital RMB1,220520 Investment and management
Technology Group Co, Ltd. of fluorasilcone new
. B material industry
FREH 48 iMEx ARBa3019T - - 6 00 316 00 EEREEGKIH
Future Hycrogen PRC Registered capital RMIB419019 Production and sales of
hydragen energy
. . o _ materdls
HETEKBARAAAT g iMEx AREB0T - - 10000 000 10000 1000 SKERREEEY
Zibo Herun Shuiwu Company Limited. ~ PRC Registered capital RMB25,000 Sewage disposal and
environmental
. ~ monitoring
UFRERRERAT 0 ifiax AREM000T - S 000 00 10000 10000 EREEE
Shandong Mingyue Technology Co, Ltd. PRC Registered capital RMB300,000 (hemical technology research
and development
* HE2020F12A31BIEFE  AEERIELE * During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group deemed
RRGEE - WHEH R REBEE QT disposal of Future Hydrogen and remained it as an associate.
# HZE2020F12A31BEFE - AEEBEEF # During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group further
BEM IR R W AR T 36%RR4E - H acquired the remaining 36% equity interest from the non-
MEBARNKAREENZEMNB AR - controlling interest, thus Union Property and its subsidiaries

became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.
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(b)

EERA - LREJINARFIMEAF
IEREANREXELEE -EFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic
enterprises.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:
AR 2K AETFFER AEFHFER Rt FER
MEAREHE TEEENE IR R R R iR SR &R 9 A R R
Place of Profit Profit
incorporation allocated to allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
20205 20195 20206 2019%F 20205 2019
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ARBTR AREFT AR¥TR AR®EFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R H TER 36% TER 72,678 TER 191,589
(Union Property) PRC N/A N/A N/A
REBHE H 42.25% 23% 108,578 125,296 1,705,155 475,620
(Dongyue Organosilicon) PRC
RERRE H 16.78% 16.78% 6,238 28,566 106,602 139,009
(Dongyue Fluo-Silicon) PRC
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38. KR ATTFTEMB A TIFIE (&)  38.Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

(b) BEEARFEERBEEIRWIESD (b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
e G EAC D) that have material non-controlling interests
(Continued)
T E YA EAIEIE IR AR RS R AR Summarised financial information in respect of each of
EFEZHBATINIEELIBEE - T3 the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
BEERHE AETERRYEIINS interests is set out below. The summarised financial
g o information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
BMEERFERREERZNIIESRE Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
NG RE have material non-controlling interests
BHAEX REAKE RERE
®W12A318 At 31 December Union Property Dongyue Organosilicon  Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
20205 20196 20206 019%F  2020F 2019%
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETRT
RMB'000  RVMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMBO0O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

mEAE Current assets FEANA 2193671 3,130,175 1482407 310,650 395520
FRBEE Non-current assets THEF N/A 256438 1,350,812 1000205 1,350,998 1313254
nEYaE Current liabilities TERANA (1859916) (391,280)  (361,648)  (854,125) (689,305
FrRBaRE Non-current liabilities TEANA (58000)  (53,838)  (53049)  (161,920)  (191,043)

TER N/A 532193 4,035,869 2067915 645,603 828,426

ANBEA ANEEEZR  Equity attributable to owners of the

Company REA N/A 340604 2,330,714 1592295 539,001 689,417
JEERRFRELEG#R  Equity attributable to non-controlling
interests TEANA 191,589 1,705,155 475620 106,602 139,009

TER N/A 532193 4,035,869 2067915 645,603 828,426
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38. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

company (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

KB A S SES () material non-controlling interests (Continued)
BHAEE REFHE RERRE
BZ12B31HLFE For the year ended 31 December Union Property Dongyue Organosilicon ~ Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
20206 20196 2020 20196 20205 2019
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ARBTRE ARETT ARETR AR®TT AR%®TRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000
Gy Revenue NEA N/A 952,504 2,572,480 2,760,055 1,771,119 2,280,110
X Expenses TERN/A (750,710) (2,290,375)  (2,215,290) (1,733,943)  (2,109,876)
FREF Profit for the year FEA N/A 201884 282,105 544,765 37,176 170,234
ARRIBE NERGEF Profit attributable to owners of
the Company REH N/A 129,206 173,527 419,469 30,938 141,668
FEE R R R R S R Profit attributable to non-
controlling interests REF N/A 72,678 108,578 125,296 6,238 28,566
TERN/A 201,884 282,105 544,765 37,176 170,234
EREERBRRERANRE  Dividends paid to non-
controlling interests R N/A 58,500 126,750 82,800 36,916 114,104
EEEIR SR ACGRE)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities REA N/A 111,814 2,038,476 728,012 153,477 720,981
RETHHLTAGRE B  Net cash inflow (outflow) from
investing activities RE N/A 143,484 (90,667) (247,805)  (200,845) (253,259)
BETHRSRACGRE)FE  Net cash inflow (outflow) from
financing activities AEA N/A (239,083) (300,000) (360,000) (26,780) (814,828)
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30. AW HE—BEMBLAR 39. Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary

202038120 AEBEEHRILRRES
%éﬁﬂﬁﬂrﬁﬁf’\ﬁﬁEQﬂ(F%Eﬁ%ﬁ%J)E’\J
BREERINBHFZ DB ERDIFET
(F“%FFJ) J aAATxELK"—TE’JF'EH%#E%%{
MEAR  EEREMBNEEEE -
nﬁﬁ&M%TEAhAE%wwﬁ%T
3mmwwW:%E@AE%ﬁm%M%
BT ES 4 AR #1,985,849,000T K F IR &
W@°

EESIFTRE - AEBEREB#ENR
EREBN 7 7% BB E57.75% + At D RS
%ﬁﬁ’\uﬂ% c R AN EEREB K

FEBKEEHE  ARZIIERER
SN MAFAGFREEERREAH#
TE42. 25%REEMN EZRBEER BN E E A #

On 12 March 2020, the Group has completed the spin-off
of Shangdong Dongyue Organosilicone Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicone”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company engaged in manufacture and sale of organosilicon
material, through a separate listing of its shares on the ChiNext
of Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Spin-Off"). The Spin-Off involved
offering of 300,000,000 new A-share of RMB1 each at an issue
price of RMB6.90 per share, which raised a total net cash proceeds
of approximately RMB1,985,849,000.

Immediately following the completion of the Spin-Off, the Group's
equity interest in Dongyue Organosilicone was diluted from
77% to 57.75% and thus the Spin-Off is considered as a deemed
partial disposal. Since the deemed partial disposal of Dongyue
Organosilicone did not result in any loss of control, the transaction
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the difference

e between the net proceeds from the Spin-Off and the then 42.25%
carrying value of Dongyue Organosilicone is recognised in the
equity of the Group.

DIRHM BT ERENT

A summary of the financial impacts of the Spin-Off are as follows:

ARET T
RMB’000
DG E ML Gross proceeds from the Spin-Off 2,070,000
B BT Eﬂiﬁn@%ﬁ Less: Total listing expenses (84,151)
BEERERBEITREARENARNF5E Net proceed directly attributable to the issue of new
A-shares of Dongyue Organosilicone 1,985,849
B R RIS R R R EAMEER  Less: Net assets value of Dongyue Organosilicone
BEFE recognised as non-controlling interest (1,247,706)
REBILEREERENERE Difference on deemed partial disposal of Dongyue
Organosilicone 738,143




39.

40.

BEABIELE—BHE2R
(#&)

BERGALEREERENIEENRER
BT
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39. Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary

(Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the deemed partial
disposal of an interest in Dongyue Organosilicone is as follows:

ARET T
RMB’'000
DS E BT Gross proceeds from the Spin-off 2,070,000

B FEARRMEEA EmAY Less: Listing expenses for the new shares paid during
the year (84,151)

EEEALE—HMBATIIE OIS  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
NERBEEBRAFE of the deemed partial disposal of interest in a

subsidiary 1,985,849

BREPRER

P21 1A 128 - AARIZHBARRE
AERMEEREERERKSEBERE
FMEREREERE(ESDEESED
BABEELERRAR(TEEARE]) 8
BERESERAR(VEERR ) RPEE
WEREBRBRAB([HERIEER])EIL
—teBHE ([(E¥HZE)] ) Hr BHEE
FERT - B - BV B RSEEET
%o

BECERRZR)  EeNVBRFELREAEA
R #500,0000007C * BIEBREBARER
ERE - REAHE - B8 RISIEER
ARIAE S EE ARY1250000007T - AR
#75,000,0007T + AR % 125,000,000 & AR
#75,000,0007C - AR EBEZAFEREER
EARAESEE AR100,0000007T ° E&
FEBBIBE B HR)DBERET -

40. Events after the reporting period

On 12 January 2021, Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology and
Dongyue Organosilicone, subsidiaries of the Company, entered
into a partnership agreement (“Partnership Agreement”) with
Huantai Province Jinhai Kongyou Capital Operation Co., Ltd
("Huantai Jinhai"), Zibo Jugiang Trading Co., Ltd. ("Zibo Jugiang”)
and China Capital Management Co., Ltd. (“China Capital”) in
relation to the establishment of the Zibo Runxin Dongyue New
Materials Equity Investment Fund (“Fund”), which is expected to
primarily invest in fluoro-chemical, organic silicone, membrane
materials and hydrogen-related industries.

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the initial capital
contribution to the Fund is in total RMB500,000,000, comprising
RMB125,000,000, RMB75,000,000, RMB125,000,000 and
RMB75,000,000 to be contributed to the Fund by Dongyue
Fluorosilicone Technology, Dongyue Organosilicone, Huantai
Jinhai and Zibo Jugiang, respectively, as limited partners, and
RMB100,000,000 by China Capital as the general partner. The
capital contribution to the Fund will be made in stages in
accordance with the Partnership Agreement.
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40. HEMERER(E) 40.

RERERE R REEREG VG T ERE
BB DD B A25%K%15% - e B RaE
BARRNKBARIAR - EMBEENT
EHAREEMIRE -

Events after the reporting period
(Continued)

The percentage of capital contribution of Dongyue Fluorosilicone
Technology and Dongyue Organosilicone based on the total initial
capital contribution amount is 25% and 15%, respectively. The
Fund will not be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results will not be consolidated into the accounts
of the Group.

41, 2D B B AR R =R 41.Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company

20204 20194

ARBTF T ARBETT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

R B R THIEE Investments in subsidiaries 1,521,381 1,521,381
RITHEBRIA S Bank balances and cash 29,758 37,962
HitnoEE Other current assets 206 219
HEtmeaE Other current liabilities (598) (2.227)
1,550,747 1,557,335

[N Share capital 200,397 200,397
ft e (B aE) Reserves (Note) 1,350,351 1,356,938
1,550,748 1,557,335

FESN2021F3 AR #E A RIFRETIE -

RELR
Zhang Jianhong
EBEF

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 9
March 2021.

R
Zhang Zhefeng

EF

Director
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41. Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company (Continued)

Mk Note:
EEEE - Movement in the reserves:
EEBRE
sHEETZ
RRE ROBERE RAfEE REBF Fot )
AR¥ETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR¥ETT
Share purchase
reserve under
Share employee Capital Retained
premium  option scheme reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20191818 At 1 January 2019 1,224,924 = 200,344 (33,328) 1,356,940
AFEEHEFNREHRGEEE Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 766,313 766,313
BERAEETRG Purchase of existing
issued shares - (168,897) - - (168,897)
ERE Dividends paid = = = (632,418) (632,418)
#20198 12831 B KRR At 31 December 2019 and
20201 A1H at 1 January 2020 1224924 (168,897) 200,344 100,567 1356,938
AFEHEANREHERGEE Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year - - - 476,088 476,088
BERAEETRG Purchase of existing
issued shares - (54,640) - - (54,640)
2RRE Dividends paid = = = (428,035) (428,035)
#2020512A318 At 31 December 2020 1,224,924 (223,537) 200,344 148,620 1350351

2. #EGZE M BERR

B0 F3A90B AR BRETR S

R -

42. Approval of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9 March 2021.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2020 265



-

N

HFEFEBE
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BE12A3ELEE
Year ended 31 December
20165 20174 20184 20194 20204
ARETTT AREFT ARETL AREFTT AR¥TT
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
g Revenue 7,969,773 10,137,137 14218937 12,958,692 10,044,313
HEMA Cost of sales (6328718) (7,072,865) (9,687,291) (9,512,770) (7,799,717)
EF Gross profit 1,641,055 3,064,272 4,531,646 3,445,922 2,244,596
HA Other income 186,667 225467 119,209 138523 136,207
AIEREERT Distribution and selling expenses (283,058) (313,959) (358,726) (366,263) (353,683)
TBREMRES Administrative and other expenses (387,610) (656,333) (782,735) (668,112) (356,845)
RAEHE—FNBARRMNE Gain on deemed disposal of a
subsidiary - - - - 40,850
A ERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments (42,324) - - - -
BRAERE Impairment of intangible assets = (17,485) = = -
RERAZRS Research and development
expenses (73,947) (94,609) (177,360) (329,242 (590,471)
BATEFABRZEMEE Fairvalue change on finandial
AVEE asset at fair value through profit
orloss (“FVTPL") = = = = (3,978)
BAMKA Finance costs (166,229) (112,890) (97,135) (100,528) (104,560)
JE(EBE N R £ Share of results of associates (12,440) 47310 = = 4,505
BB AR A Profit before tax 862,114 2141773 3,234,899 2,120,300 1,016,621
FrigHi X Income tax expense (246,648) (459,974) (800,200) (378,019) (113,765)
REEHR Profit for the year 615,466 1,681,799 2,434,699 1,742,281 902,856
Hitt2EAX Other comprehensive expense
TEEHFDHEZBLRMNIER ¢ Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BRAFE AR EEUWE 2 Fair value loss on investment
NSREY ! at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - (52,902) (1,119,292 (279,531)
FR2ENEAE Total comprehensive income for
the year 615,466 1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989 623,325
To% A EEREFR2EBEE Profit and total comprehensive
(X 4am: income (expense)
attributable to:
ARAHEBA Owners of the Company 588,154 1,601,397 2,076,196 343,682 492,636
IR AR A Non-controlling interests 27312 80,402 305,601 279,307 130,689
615,466 1,681,799 2,381,797 622,989 623,325
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T FEMBKHBE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BENANHLEE
Year ended 31 December

2016%F 20174 2018%F 2019%F 20205

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETR

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000

BERE Total Assets 10,865,117 12,277,964 16,523,851 14931339 17,121,859
BER%E Total Liabilities (5,178,866) (4,965,553) (7,131,652) (5975716)  (6,591,347)

RRREB AMELRELE  Equity attributable to Owners

of the Company 5,388,008 6,709,732 8,336,606 7,880,019 8,542,306

R R R AE R Non-controlling interests 298,243 602,679 1,055,593 1,075,604 1,988,206
12A31 848 Balance at 31 December 5,686,251 7312411 9,392,199 8,955,623 10,530,512
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Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119
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Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, Capital Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (President) (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Mr. ZHANG lJian
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Mr. YUE Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. MA Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Company secretary

Ms. Chung Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Mr. YUE Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. MA Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)

Mr. LIU Chuanqi (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed on 11 March 2021)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Xiaoyung

Mr. Yue Rundong (resigned on 11 March 2021)
Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on 11 March 2021)

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer

office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.
Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Zibo City, Gaoxin District
Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Limited Huantai Branch
2299 Suo Zhen Zhongxin Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC
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Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 807, Office Plus
93-103 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

Stock code
189
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Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

EE Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{EE Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#HE Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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